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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 08 DECEMBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Se leka,  good morn ing  

everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing  Dr  Ngubane.   Thank you.   

A re  we ready?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We are  ready Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you  Cha i r.   Cha i rperson th is  

morn ing  Dr  Ngubane has come back to  dea l  w i th  cer ta in  10 

t ransact ion  mat te rs  a t  Eskom and I  be l ieve  tha t  he  i s  ready 

to  take  the  oa th  o r  a f f i rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay p lease admin is te r  I  th ink  i t  i s  the 

oa th .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

DR NGUBANE:   Ba ldwin  S ipho Ngubane.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any ob jec t ions to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

DR NGUBANE:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  20 

on your  consc ience?  

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

e lse  bu t  the  t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and  
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say,  so  he lp  me God.  

DR NGUBANE:   So  he lp  me God.  

REGISTRAR:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you fo r  coming back Dr  Ngubane.  

There  is  un f in i shed bus iness.  

DR NGUBANE:   [A f r i can language] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Jus t  –  jus t  by  way o f  

background Cha i rperson wh i ls t  Dr  Ngubane was here  in  the  10 

prev ious appearances he tes t i f ied  on  the  suspens ion  

issues and we ended a t  the  po in t  where  in  Dr  Ngubane ’s  

a f f idav i t  he  says  tha t  there  was a  se r ious vacuum as a  

resu l t  o f  the  suspens ion  o f  the  execut ives .   And we have to  

see how you f i l led  tha t  vacuum Dr  Ngubane and what  

happens thereaf te r  as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t  gap be ing  f i l led .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  l igh t  wh ich  is  no rmal ly  on  i t  is….  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh yes I  see tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So i t  i s  –  as  a  resu l t  i t  i s  darke r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Somebody shou ld  a t tend to  tha t .   I  do  no t  

know what  the  s to ry  i s  w i th  th is  one.   Ja  okay.   I f  –  i f  i t  

causes prob lems then somebody must  te l l  us .   Okay  a l r igh t  

cont inue Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   And –  and the  f i l l i ng  
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o f  tha t  vacuum wi l l  take  us  in to  the  mat te rs  tha t  we are  

focuss ing  on  th is  week Dr  Ngubane wh ich  is  the  

t ransact ions in  regard  to  the  Tegeta  mat te r  in  the  main .  

 And I  w i l l  re la te  the  fac ts  and you – you cou ld  

conf i rm or  o therw ise  exp la in  wha t  happened in  regard  to  

tha t .  

 By  way o f  a  s ta r t ing  po in t  Cha i rpe rson we w i l l  re fe r  

to  Dr  Ngubane ’s  a f f idav i t  wh ich  is  conta ined in  Eskom 

Bund le  9 [A ] .   Dr  Ngubane I  be l ieve  you have… 

CHAIRPERSON:   On –  on  my bund le  the re  i s  no  ind ica t ion  10 

tha t  h is  a f f idav i t  was admi t ted  las t  t ime.   Oh I  do  no t  know 

what  your  reco l l ec t ion  is .   I  wou ld  normal l y  wr i te  Exh ib i t  

XYZ on i f  i t  was admi t ted .   So i f  we d id  no t  do  i t  we  shou ld  

do  i t  today.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i f  we d id  do  i t  then I  must  jus t  

cor rec t  th is .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Mine is  a l so  no t  marked.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s  –  le t  us  do  tha t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  suspect  tha t  we d id  no t  admi t  i t  

fo rmer ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay so  I  th ink  we shou ld  ge t  tha t  ou t  o f  

the  way f i rs t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.   Dr  Ngubane Eskom… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Page here  –  wha t  page was i t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  i t  i s  the  f i rs t  –  i s  the  f i rs t  document  

in  the  f i le .   Le t  us  go  to  page 4 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Page 4 .  

DR NGUBANE:   Oh yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Page 4  and we fo l low the  b lack  

number ing .   The b lack  number ing  on  the  le f t  hand corne r  –  

top  le f t  hand corner  

CHAIRPERSON:   The top .  10 

DR NGUBANE:   The top?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  the  b lack  numbers  on  the  top .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Jus t  tu rn  the  page – no  go the  o ther  

way.  

DR NGUBANE:   Oh a l r igh t  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes bu t  go  back Dr  Ngubane.  

DR NGUBANE:   I  have got  i t  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   He says he  has go t  i t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  Dr  Ngubane.  

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Do not  read ye t  a l l  we need to  conf i rm 

is  you look a t  the  a f f idav i t  on  page  4  – a f f idav i t  o f  Ba ldwin  

S ipho Ngubane.   I  th ink  you a re  on  the  wrong page.  
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DR NGUBANE:   I  am a t  the  four  execut ives .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes bu t  I  th ink  you are  on  the  wrong  

page.   I  want  you  to  go  back.   Yes tha t  i s  r igh t ,  go  back.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To  the  f i rs t  page o f  the  a f f idav i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   O f  the  a f f idav i t .  

DR NGUBANE:   Oh okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes the  a f f idav i t  runs f rom page 4  o f  

the  pag ina ted bund le  to  page 54.   Can you g ive  h im some 

ass is tance?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on a  second.   Go to  page 54 b lack  10 

numbers  a t  the  top  le f t  corne r.    

DR NGUBANE:   Homan and Gi l f i l lan?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja  jus t  ass i s t .  

DR NGUBANE:   I t  m igh t  be  a  wrong f i le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Page 54.   So page 54 tha t  i s  the  end o f  

the  a f f idav i t  Dr  Ngubane and there  i s  a  s ignatu re  the re  

above the  deponent .   You see tha t  s ignature?  I s  tha t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry  jus t  sw i tch  on  –  ja .  

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  my s ignatu re .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   That  i s  your  s ignatu re .  20 

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And the  a f f i dav i t  i s  da ted  4  August  

2020.   You conf i rm th is  to  be  your  a f f idav i t?  

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i rperson I  w i l l  beg l eave to  have i t  
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admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U19.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t  o f  Dr  Ba ldwin  S ipho  

Ngubane s tar t ing  a t  page 4  i s  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  U19.1 .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Then Dr  Ngubane a t  

page 22 o f  the  a f f idav i t .  

ADV MKHABELA:   Excuse me i t  i s  th is  channe l ,  w i thout  

me see ing  Mr  Se leka.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh I  th ink  he  fo rgo t  about  you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Not  a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes p lease p lace yourse l f  on  reco rd .  10 

ADV MKHABELA:   The name i s  Mkhabe la  fo r  Dr  Ngubane.   

I  jus t  wou ld  l i ke  to  add Mr  Se leka  wou ld  reca l l  tha t  there  

was a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t .   I  have not  had ment ion  o f  i t  

and I  th ink  fo r  the  sake o f  comple teness tha t  too  must  be  

p laced on the  record .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Mkhabe la  tha t  i s . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do we a l ready –  do  we a l ready have the  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   We do have i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s  an  exp lanatory  a f f idav i t  o f  Dr  

Ngubane.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   A l r igh t .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  i t  i s  an  exp lanat ion  o f  tha t  the 

guarantee d id  no t  come to  the  board .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Obv ious ly  i t  w i l l  be  impor tan t  to  

know where  i t  i s  in  the  bund le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   My jun io r  w i l l  f ind  i t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You can cont inue in  the  meant ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you can a t tend to  tha t  in  due course .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Dr  Ngubane page 22 o f  you r  a f f idav i t .  

DR NGUBANE:   Page?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   22 .  

DR NGUBANE:   22?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   [00 :09 :19]  to  paragraph 6 .1 .    

DR NGUBANE:   Appo in tment  o f  Mr  Mole fe .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t  ja .   So parag raph 6 .1  the  

appo in tment  o f  –  the  appo in tment  and ear ly  re t i rement  o f  

Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  –  paragraph 6 .1  says:  

“A f te r  the  suspens ion  o f  the  four  execut ives  

inc lud ing  Mr  Matona who was the  C –  the  
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GCEO there  was se r ious vacuum in  the  

leadersh ip  o f  Eskom. ”  

You see tha t?  

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And tha t  ser ious vacuum came as a  

resu l t  o f  the  dec is ion  made by  the  board  to  suspend the  

four  execut ives .   But  we know tha t  one Mr  Koko who was  

the  –  one o f  the  suspended execut ives  does come back  

u l t imate ly.  

DR NGUBANE:   R igh t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   On the  –  in  Ju l y  2015.   So Dr  Ngubane 

le t  us  ske tch  th is  background and  I  w i l l  come back  to  th is  

appo in tment  o f  Mr  Mole fe .   Th is  board  is  appo in ted  –  the  

board  o f  wh ich  you were  a  pa r t  i s  appo in ted  on  the  11  

December  2014 by  Min is te r  Lynne Brown.   Cor rec t?  

DR NGUBANE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The board  has  an  induct ion  on  the  16  

January  2015.  

DR NGUBANE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And they are  taken th rough the  20 

opera t ions o f  Eskom;  what  Eskom does and so  on .   

Cor rec t?  

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The board  has  a  schedu led  meet ing  on  

26 February  2015  tha t  meet ing  ge ts  to  be  cance l led  on  the  
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eve  o f  the  meet ing  da te .  

DR NGUBANE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   On the  8  March 2015 the  board  

rece ives an  emai l  inv i t ing  the  board  to  a  spec ia l  meet ing  

the  next  day wh ich  is  the  9  March 2015.  

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  i s  a t  tha t  spec ia l  meet ing  tha t  the  

board  is  to ld  about  an  inqu i ry  requested by  the  Pres ident .   

Mr  Tsots i  re la tes  tha t  to  you.   Cor rec t?  

DR NGUBANE:   I t  i s  cor rec t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   And the  board  sa id  l ook we a re  new;  we  

cannot  make th is  huge dec is ion  le t  the  Min is te r  o r  

shareho lder  rep resenta t i ve  come and address us .  

DR NGUBANE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Two days la te r  the  meet ing  w i th  the  

Mins te r  i s  schedu led  the  11  March 2015.  

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   From tha t  meet ing  your  wr i te  in  your  

a f f idav i t :   

“ I t  became c lear  to  us  tha t  the  Min is te r  20 

wanted the  inqu i ry  to  be  p roceeded w i th  

and tha t  the  execut ives  shou ld  s tep  as ide . ”  

DR NGUBANE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And the  s tepp ing  as ide  or  suspens ion  

o f  the  execut ives  is  executed on the  same day.   They are  
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suspended on the  same day.  

DR NGUBANE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   On the  19  March 2015 the  board  has a  

meet ing  and Mr  Tsots i  i s  in  t roub le .  

DR NGUBANE:   Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   There  i s  a  vo te  o f  no  conf idence wh ich  

is  u l t imate ly  ac ted  upon in  the  meet ing  o f  30  March 2015  

where  Mr  Tsots i  tenders  h is  res ignat ion .  

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The execut ives  are  suspended 11 10 

March.   The fo l low ing month  on  the  17  Apr i l  2015 Min is te r  

Brown makes a  press  –  ca l l s  a  p ress  confe rence and she 

makes a  pub l i c  announcement  tha t  she has dec ided to  

second Mr  Mole fe  to  Eskom.  

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now you have sa id  in  your  a f f idav i t  

page 23 pa ragraph 6 .3  and th is  i s  dea l ing  w i th  how the  

secondment  o f  Mr  Mole fe  came about .   You say:  

“Whi ls t  the  search  fo r  a  new GCEO was  

underway the  Min is te r  suggested  tha t  we 20 

cons ider  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe .   The board  was  

amenab le  to  the  Min i s te r ’s  suggest ion  

because we knew o f  Mr  Mole fe ’s  t rack  

record  based on  h is  work  a t  the  Pub l ic  

Investment  Commiss ioners  and Transnet .   
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The board  fe l t  tha t  Eskom was  in  d i re  

s t ra i t s  and needed someone  w i th  Mr  

Mole fe ’s  sk i l l s  and exper ience.   The  

Min is te r  suggested tha t  the  board  

approaches Transnet  to  request  fo r  Mr  

Mole fe ’s  re lease to  Eskom. ”  

And then you say :  

“ I  wro te  to  the  Cha i rperson o f  Transnet . ”  

Now the  Min is te r  has pu t  i t  s l igh t l y  d i f fe ren t ly.   In  her  

a f f idav i t  she says  tha t :   10 

“The Transnet  and Eskom boards negot ia ted  

d iscreet ly  the  t ransfer  o f  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  

and Mr  Ano j  S ingh to  Eskom.   My ro le  as  

the  shareho lde r  representa t i ve  was to  

approve the  negot ia ted  ou tcomes.   I f  I  

remember  cor rec t l y  f rom 2016 Eskom’s  MOI  

requ i red  me to  be  noted as  a  pa r ty  to  the  

appo in tment  o f  CEO.   I  a lso  seem to  reca l l  

tha t  there  was a  very  –  a  query  about  the  

lega l i t y  o f  the  t ransfers  and  leave an  20 

op in ion . ”  

The emphas is  i s  on  her  say ing  i t  was the  two boards tha t  

d iscreet ly  negot ia ted  the  appo in tment  o r  secondment  o f  the 

two.   I  on ly  came in to  the  p ic tu re  to  approve the  negot ia ted  

ou tcomes.   What  i s  your  comment  on  tha t?  
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DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  we approached the  Min i s te r  as  I  say  

–  as  I  have s ta ted  Cha i rperson to  p resent  our  p rob lem in  

te rms o f  leadersh ip  o f  the  o rgan isa t ion .   And she sa id  

Br ian  Mole fe  wou ld  he lp  Eskom and we were  ve ry  happy 

w i th  th is  because in  our  m inds Br ian  Mole fe  had  done a  

good job .   P IC,  Transnet  and so  on .   But  a lso  a t  the  press  

conference she sa id  the  secondment  o f  Mr  Mole fe  was 

d iscussed w i th  the  Deputy  Pres ident  and Pres ident  Zuma.   

Qu i te  c lear ly  Cha i rperson th is  was a  very  b ig  dec i s ion  

wh ich  cou ld  no t  have been under taken jus t  by  the  10 

cha i rpersons or  the  boards o f  the  two organ isa t ions.   There  

had to  be  a  h igher  au tho r i t y  to  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So pr io r  to  the  dec i s ion  because  

we dea l ing  w i th  the  –  the  pre tex t  to  the  dec is ion .   The 

Min is te r  says you negot ia ted  the  two boards d iscreet ly.   

You are  say ing  we l l  the  board  –  who approached the  

Min is te r?  

DR NGUBANE:   We d id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   When you say we who are  you re fer r ing  

to?  20 

DR NGUBANE:   The PNG.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   PNG? 

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the  Peop le  and Governance  

Commi t tee  o f  the  board  o f  Eskom.  
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DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  and I  guess do ing  so  on  beha l f  o f  the 

board .  

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  the  impor tan t  po in t  i s  do  you go to  

the  Min is te r  w i th  a  name in  m ind or  i s  i t  the  Min i s te r  who 

suggests  the  name? 

DR NGUBANE:   No we wanted a  secondment  o f  a  sen ior  

o f f i c ia l  e i ther  in  government  o r  in  one o f  the  SOE’s  and  10 

then she came up  w i th  the  name o f  Mr  Mole fe .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  the  Min is te r  i s  the  one who 

suggested i t  as  you say in  your  a f f idav i t .  

DR NGUBANE:   Yes tha t  i s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  you –  you –  you were  look ing  a t  

ge t t ing  somebody  who wou ld  be  –  wou ld  take  the  pos i t ion  

o f  Group CEO at  Eskom.  

DR NGUBANE:   A secondment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Fo r  a  –  bu t  you wanted a  secondment .  

DR NGUBANE:   For  the  –  wh i le  we were  busy.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh look ing .  

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  somebody wou ld  ac t?  

DR NGUBANE:   Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay a l r igh t .   Okay,  no ,  no  then I  
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unders tand.   So –  and you were  say ing  we l l  i t  cou ld  be  

somebody in  one or  o ther  government  depar tment  o r  one o f  

the  SOE’s .  

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  a t  tha t  s tage as  a  commi t tee  you d id 

no t  have any par t i cu la r  name yourse lves.  

DR NGUBANE:   No we d id  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay a l r i gh t .   And the  Min is te r  

suggested Mr  Br ian  Mole fe .  

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

DR NGUBANE:   And she a l so  suggested tha t  we wr i te  the 

board  o f  Transnet .  So I  wro te  to  the  Cha i rpe rson o f  

Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay a l r igh t .   Do you reca l l  a round  

about  when i t  was tha t  the  PNG Commi t tee  approached the  

Min is te r.   Mr  Se leka sketched ou t  the  background .   The 

suspens ions were  on  the  11 t h  March 2015.   Mr  Tsots i  

res igned on the  30 t h  I  th ink  o f  March 2015.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cor rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   The Min i s te r  announced the  secondment  

o f  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe  on  the  17  Apr i l .   In  o ther  words two  

weeks a f te r  Mr  Khoza,  Mr  Zo la  Tsots i  had res igned.   Do  

you have a  reco l lec t ion  o f  when i t  m igh t  have been tha t  the 

PNG Commi t tee  met  w i th  the  Min i s te r?  
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DR NGUBANE:   I  am not  too  su re .  am not  too  sure .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Do you th ink  i t  wou ld  have been 

before  the  end o f  March?  

DR NGUBANE:   I t  shou ld  have been around there  because  

the  annua l  repor t  and f inanc ia l  s ta tements  were  to ta l l y  

d isappo in t ing .   I  mean the  aud i to rs  tha t  pu t  an  emphas is  o f  

mat te r  in  the i r  repor t  wh ich  meant  Eskom was not  a  go ing  

concern .   And a lso  the  debt  –  I  mean the  prev ious CEO Mr  

Matona had wr i t ten  or  in fo rmed  the  Min is te r  tha t  they 

wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  pay sa la r ies  f rom January  2015.  So i t  10 

was a  ve ry  tumul tuous s i tua t ion  tha t  we were  ge t t ing  in .  So  

we dec ided tha t  we must  ask  fo r  a  sen ior  exper ienced 

person to  ac t  wh i le  we look fo r  a  GCEO.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Bu t  shou ld  there  been around end  

March.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A round end o f  March.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Somewhere  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  so  beg inn ing  o f  Apr i l .  

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  r igh t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay.   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Yes Dr  Ngubane tha t  

inc identa l l y  seems to  co inc ide  w i th  what  the  then ac t ing  

DG says in  her  a f f idav i t  wh ich  I  p rov ided you w i th  Ms 

Mats ie t s i  Mokho lo .   She says in  her  a f f idav i t  tha t :  
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“ I t  was somewhere  be tween March 2015  

and Apr i l  2015 tha t  she was aga in  

requested to  accompany the  Min is te r  to  a  

meet ing  a t  Eskom. ”    

Now the  f i rs t  meet ing  is  the  11  March meet ing  where  the  

Min is te r  went  to  meet  w i th  the  board  in  tha t  spec ia l  

meet ing  to  d i scuss the  inqu i ry  and the  s tepp ing  as ide  o f  

the  execut ives .   Now th is  i s  the  second t ime around she is  

ca l led  to  Eskom.   And she sa id :  

“The meet ing  took p lace a t  the  Cha i rman ’s  10 

o f f i ce  a t  Eskom and inc luded the  ac t ing  

cha i rperson Mr  Ben Ngubane – I  mean Dr  

Ben Ngubane and the  ac t ing  CE Zethembe 

Khoza.  A lso  the  cha i rperson o f  the  Transnet  

board  Ms L inda Mabaso.   She was –  I  was  

a lso  p resent . ”  

She goes on to  say.  

“Wi th  Min i s te r  Brown.   I t  must  be  no ted tha t  

no  m inutes  were  taken dur ing  th is  meet ing  

i t  was jus t  a  verba l  d iscuss ion  per ta in ing  to  20 

the  secondment  o f  Mr  B r ian  Mole fe  f rom 

Transnet  to  Eskom which  top ic  o f  

d iscuss ion  was in t roduced. ”  

And she says:  

“By the  ac t ing  Cha i rperson Dr  Ngubane. ”  
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Le t  me jus t  s top  there  and hear  your  comment  on  tha t?  

DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  –  we were  a lmost  a t  the  end o f  the  

process when tha t  meet ing  happened.   I  had wr i t ten  the  

Transnet  board .   They have agreed.   So we were  jus t  

c ross ing  the  T ’s  and dot t ing  the  I ’s  a t  tha t  meet ing .   I t  was  

not  the  or ig ina l  s ta r t  o f  the  request .   Now o f  course  be ing  

cha i rman because i t  was in  my  o f f i ce  I  in t roduced the  

sub jec t  as  be ing  the  secondment  o f  Mr  Mole fe .   Not  tha t  I  

was in i t ia t ing  tha t  p rocess.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The –  when  the  –  when the  PNG 10 

Commi t tee  approached the  Min is te r  as  you sa id  ear l ie r  on  

was tha t  approach by  way o f  a  meet ing  or  was i t  a  le t te r  

wr i t ten  on  beha l f  o f  the  commi t tee  to  the  Min i s te r?  

DR NGUBANE:   We d i scussed the  issue to  request  the  

Min is te r  bu t  then  when I  met  the  Min i s te r  I  am not  sure  

whethe r  I  was w i th  Ms Venete  K le in  o r  w i th  Mr  Zethemba 

Khoza but  we had to  pu t  th is  request  to  the  Min is te r  

d i rec t l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay so  the re  was a  d iscuss ion  o f  the 

issue w i th in  the  PNG Commi t tee  f i rs t .  20 

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   R igh t  and then the  PNG Commi t tee  

dec ided tha t  the  Mins te r  shou ld  be  approached.  

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  was not  the  who le  commi t tee .  
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DR NGUBANE:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  met  w i th  the  Min is te r.   I t  was 

yourse l f  and one  o ther  member  e i ther  Mr  Zethembe Khoza  

or  Ms K le in?  

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  then on tha t  occas ion  d id  the  two o f  

you meet  w i th  the  Min i s te r  as  such on tha t  occas ion?  

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay and tha t  i s  where  she put  –  came 

up w i th  the  name o f  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe?  10 

DR NGUBANE:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And your  –  you cannot  remember  the  

da te  bu t  you th ink  tha t  meet ing  wou ld  have been  where 

about  in  te rms o f  da tes?  Somet ime dur ing  March or  

somet ime dur ing  Apr i l?  

DR NGUBANE:   I  th ink  i t  was somet ime dur ing  March 

towards probab ly  the  end.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   So o f  the  two  

meet ings Dr  Ngubane the  PNG go ing  meet ing  w i th  the 20 

Min is te r  and th is  meet ing  o f  the  two o f  –  cha i rpe rsons o f  

the  board  –  one  o f  Transnet  the  o ther  o f  Eskom wi th  Mr 

Zethemba Khoza wh ich  o f  the  two meet ings came f i rs t?  

DR NGUBANE:   Sor ry?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Which  o f  the  meet ing  took p lace  f i rs t?  
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DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  the  prev ious meet ings as  I  say  the  

meet ing  in  my o f f i ce .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

DR NGUBANE:   Was the  las t  mee t ing  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.   So th is  was the  las t  meet ing .  

DR NGUBANE:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because Ms  Mokho lo  goes on in  her  

a f f idav i t  to  say  tha t ”   

“Mr  Mole fe  was tou ted  by  the  Eskom 

cha i rperson tha t  wou ld  be  you  in  tha t  10 

meet ing  as  an  idea l  cand ida te  fo r  the  ac t ing  

CEO pos i t ion  a lbe i t  on  a  temporary  bas is  

wh i le  the  board  w i l l  be  embark ing  on  a  

se lec t ion  and recru i tment  p rocess.   The  

proposa l  was  suppor ted  by  Transnet  

Cha i rperson.   Both  cha i rpersons agreed 

tha t  Mr  Mole fe  was a  per fec t  [00 :27 :26] . ”  

So she seems to  pa in t  a  p ic tu re  tha t  the  name o f  Mr  Br ian  

Mole fe  came f rom your  s ide .  

DR NGUBANE:   No Cha i rperson.   As  I  sa id  tha t  was the 20 

a lmost  f ina l  meet ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Okay.  

DR NGUBANE:   Lead ing  to  Mr  Mole fe ’s  secondment .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   yes .  

DR NGUBANE:   Now we had d iscussed the  i ssue o f  
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Mo le fe ’s  ab i l i t i es  p r io r  to  th is  s tage.   So I  was  mere ly  

in t roduc ing  the  sub jec t  say ing  to  the  Min i s te r  and the  DG 

we have ag reed as  the  two boards to  th is  p roposa l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  you a re  no t  say ing  tha t  you d id  no t  

b r ing  up  Mr  Br ian  Mole fe ’s  name in  tha t  meet ing  bu t  what  

you are  say ing  i s  b r ing ing  i t  up  d id  no t  mean tha t  the  name 

was coming f rom you.   You were  br ing ing  i t  up  because i t  

had been brought  up  a l ready.  

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And you say i t  had been brough t  up  by  

the  Min is te r  much ea r l ie r.   So you  were  jus t  say ing  here  is  

a  name tha t  has  been ment ioned .  That  i s  what  –  i s  tha t  

what  your  –  what  you are  say ing?  

DR NGUBANE:   Cer ta in ly  Cha i rperson the  necessary  

processes l i ke  wr i t ing  the  le t te r  –  exchange o f  le t te rs  i t  

had a l ready taken p lace.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.   Do we by  any chance have a  

copy o f  tha t  le t te r  in  the  bund le?   I  do  no t  seem to  have 

seen i t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I s  i t  the  one … 

DR NGUBANE:   I  s t rugg led  to  f ind  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You cou ld  no t  f ind  i t?  

DR NGUBANE:   I  cou ld  no t  f ind  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   I s  tha t  –  you say ing  –  

i t  i s  your  le t te r  to  the  Cha i rpe rson o f  Transnet?  

CHAIRPERSON:   YEs.  

DR NGUBANE:   Yes and the  response f rom the 

Cha i rperson o f  Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i r  we w i l l  check w i th  the  

invest iga to rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  Dr  Ngubane th i s  i s  e i ther  a  10 

co inc idence or  an  orchest ra t ion .   Because the  Cha i r  –  the  

Commiss ion  has  heard  the  ev idence o f  one Mr  Hank  

Beste r.  

DR NGUBANE:   Mr?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr  Hank Beste r.   He is  no t  f rom Eskom.   

These are independent – a person belonging to some 

company.   He says to the Commission – he test i f ied in the 

Transnet work st ream and says to  the Commission that  way 

back in or about  Apri l  2014 when the company he was 

employed by seeking to  conclude a t ransact ion wi th 20 

Transnet.   They are cal led to the meet ing,  f i rst ly wi th  Mr Anoj 

Singh,  who is st i l l  wi th Transnet at  the t ime, 2014,  Apri l  

2014.  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    This meet ing takes place at  Mel rose 
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Arch.   Present  in that  meet ing is Mr Sal im Essa,  who is the 

dominant  f igure,  who does most  of  the talk ing.    

 And Mr Sal im Essa is  pressing on him that  you wi l l  take 

the part icular company as your Supply Development partner 

which is a company of  Mr Sal im Essa.    

 And this is how we wi l l  increase the f igures in  the 

contract ,  in the t ransact ion that  wi l l  r ise to th is level .   And he 

thinks this is r id iculous.   You cannot reach those f igures in 

th is t ransact ion.   I  know the budget.    

 That  meet ing is  fo l lowed by another meet ing short ly  10 

af ter that  where Mr Henk Bester to cal led to,  again,  Mel rose 

Arch.   And this t ime around, they meet at  JB ’s Corner.   You 

are fami l iar wi th that  restaurant?  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  a yes Dr Ngubane? 

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  Chairperson I  th ink every 

Johannesburger knows JB’s Corner.   [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   So I  must  be the only one who 

does not  know i t .   [ laughs]    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l ,  I  do not  know that .   [ laughs]    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   [ laughs]   Yes,  h’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mr Mkhabela might  know i t .   I  do not  

know this place.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  th ink Mr Mkhabela knows i t .   

[ laughs]    
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ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]    

DR NGUBANE :    You must int roduce him to good company.  

[ laughs]    

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    In the second meet ing,  Mr Anoj  is not  

there but  Mr Sal im Essa is there and he is pushing the same 

proposi t ion to include Mr Sal im Essa’s company as a Supply 

Development partner in the t ransact ion.    

 And Mr Henk Bester says,  as Mr Sal im Essa is ta lk ing,  10 

he also says to him that :   To show you how powerful  we are.  

He says,  they -  (Mr Sal im Essa),  we have al ready decided 

that  the new boss of  Eskom wi l l  be Brian Molefe.   Now th is is  

way back in  Apr i l  2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You must double check Mr Seleka.   My 

recol lect ion is that  Mr Bester said that  meet ing where 

Mr Sal im Essa said that  was some t ime in October 2014.    

 So just  double check.   I  may be mistaken but  I  seem to 

think I  part icular ly ask him when i t  would have been.   

Obviously,  because i t  is  important  to see where i t  l inks wi th 20 

what happened in Eskom. 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I f  you are correct ,  we wi l l  check 

. . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Because there was some t ime, I  th ink,  in  

2014.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Whether i t  was Apr i l  or  October.   I  seem to 

remember i t  as October.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Sal im Essa in order to t ry and convince 

Mr Bester that  he or they,  whoever they were,  up wi th  

powerful  people and therefore he must  ser iously consider 

taking his company as a Supply Development partner  for the 10 

job h is company was going to get  at  Transnet.    

 Says the next  boss of  Transnet is going to be Brian 

Molefe.   And of  course,  i f  that  meet ing happened in October,  

as I  th ink Mr Bester says i t  d id,  seven months later Mr Br ian 

Molefe is seconded to Eskom af ter the Group CEO, 

Mr Matona and other execut ives had been suspended under 

certain ci rcumstances.    

 I  th ink Mr Seleka’s point  or proposi t ion he is put t ing to  

you is.   How come there is somebody outside of  Eskom who 

speaks l ike this to a part icular par ty who has got  nothing to  20 

do wi th Eskom in 2014 and indeed what he says is what 

actual ly happens.   I  am going ahead of  him now.  He wi l l  te l l  

me i f  that  is not  what he was saying.    

 I  th ink he is saying.   I t  just  seems that  th is whole thing 

was being dr iven by people f rom outside and Mr Sal im Essa 
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seems to have been at  the cent re of  th is.    

 You wi l l  remember that  there is ev idence saying to the 

effect  that  on the 10t h of  March,  one day before the board 

was to ld that  there was a need of  suspensions or the 

suspensions of  execut ives,  that  he was meet ing wi th 

Mr Koko,  and he and Mr Koko had a meet ing wi th or met  wi th 

Ms Daniels.  

 And met wi th Mr Abram Masango where they told them in 

separate meet ings that  there would – certain execut ives 

would be suspended.   10 

 So Mr Seleka is saying.   What do you say to somebody 

who says but  Mr Br ian Molefe’s ul t imate t r ip f rom Transnet to  

Eskom was long planned f rom outside i f  th is evidence by 

Mr Bester is correct? 

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  th is is  a very,  I  mean, st range 

happening.   I  do not  th ink we have that  many powerful  

prophets in th is count ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Ja.  

DR NGUBANE :    I  mean, when i t  came to the suspension of  

the execut ives,  we were taken aback and we did not  real ly 20 

want to go wi th  th is unt i l  the shareholder indicated that  i t  

had to be done.   

 So I  wi l l  cal l  i t  a random happening because in terms of  

our own act ions,  there was no plan.   We just  – th ings just  

developed but  there was no . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe there was no. . .   Maybe there was 

no plan wi thin the board and when I  say that ,  I  am not  saying 

i t  as a f ina l  th ing,  but  maybe there was no plan wi thin the 

board but  certain  people outside of  Eskom may have had a 

plan and they may have had that  plan way before you and 

the new board members got  appointed to that  board.    

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  the evidence that  we heard f rom 

Mr Bester is t rue.  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    So far,  nobody has chal lenged i t .  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And maybe somebody wi l l  chal lenge i t  but  

he was here to test i fy about  matters of  Transnet .  

DR NGUBANE :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And he,  as far as I  know, he did not  – he 

would not  have known much about  Eskom except  what he 

may have read in  the newspapers or  in the media,  heard in 

the media.    

 So as he gives evidence,  he comes up wi th th is  idea 20 

that ,  you know, Mr Sal im Essa was pushing this idea that :   

My company must inc lude his  company as a Supply 

Development partner in th is Transnet  job.   And I  d id not  want 

that .    

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    And he was tel l ing me how he would 

increase the pr ice effect ively for us to get  a lot  of  money.  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  was dismissive of  th is idea or his.  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So as i f  to show me that  I  must  take him 

ser iously.  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He is powerful .  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    He told me that  he knows who the next  

boss of  Eskom is going to be.   I t  is going to Br ian Molefe.  

DR NGUBANE :    And they . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    That  is what he said.   Mr Bester said,  

when later we got  to learn that  Br ian Molefe was Group CEO 

of  Eskom, then he thought about  that  meet ing.  

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  I  am real ly surpr ised Chai rperson.   

Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Of  course,  there are other  th ings 

Dr Ngubane relat ing to Mr Br ian Molefe.   You may or you 20 

may not  have. . .   You may or you may not  be aware that  when 

Transnet was looking for a Group CEO af ter Ms Maria Ramos 

had resigned,  i t  took qui te a long t ime.  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    She res igned,  I  th ink,  at  the beginning of  
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2009,  i t  took qui te a long t ime.  We wi l l  not  go in to issues 

but  by end of  October 2010, the posi t ion had not  been f i l led.   

Ms Barbara Hogan who was Minister of  Publ ic Enterpr ises 

was dismissed.   Mr Gigaba succeeded her.    

 And in December of  2010,  the Gupta’s launched thei r  

newspaper,  The New Age.  I  do not  know whether i t  was the 

f i rst  ed i t ion or – but  in December,  I  th ink December – I  do 

not  know i f  i t  was December 10 or  8 or thereabout,  they 

publ ished a story which included a statement that  Mr Br ian 

Molefe was going to be the new Group CEO for Transnet.    10 

 This was at  a t ime when Transnet had no Group CEO.  I  

th ink Mr Wel ls was act ing.   And appl icat ions had been 

invi ted but  Mr Molefe had not  appl ied for that  posi t ion.   But  

that  is what The New Age said.    

 And a few weeks later,  I  th ink in January,  the Board of  

Transnet – members of  the board were given a chance to 

nominate candidates for th is posi t ion and I  th ink Mr Shaman 

nominated Mr Brian Molefe and I  th ink Mr Sharman is al leged 

to be a Gupta associate.    

 He nominated Mr Brian Molefe.   And Mr Brian Molefe 20 

ended up being Group CEO of  Transnet ,  exact ly  as The New 

Age had said in December even before he appl ied or was 

nominated.    

 And then now, you have a si tuat ion where Mr Bester te l ls 

us that  in 2014,  Mr Sal im Essa told him that  Mr Br ian Molefe 



08 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 320 
 

Page 31 of 187 
 

was going to be the new boss of  Eskom and indeed Mr Brian 

Molefe did become the new boss of  Eskom.   

 But  also,  you have the meet ing between Mr Jonas and 

somebody f rom the Gupta,  who I  th ink was Tony Gupta – i t  

may have been Tony Gupta at  the Gupta residence on the 

23r d  of  Apri l  2015,  at  which,  according to Mr Jonas,  he was 

told by the Gupta brother who was there that  Mr Br ian Molefe 

was one of  the people who were working wi th them and said 

something l ike h is career is wel l - looked af ter or something 

l ike that .   That  was in October 23(?) .    10 

 And of  course,  I  th ink there may be an argument that  Mr 

Molefe,  you know, went to Eskom, res igned and went to  

par l iament and went back to Eskom.  There seems to be 

something qui te special ,  maybe, about  Eskom and him.  

[ laughs]    

DR NGUBANE :    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    So but  I  th ink,  the main point  Dr Ngubane 

is.   Here are these – some of  these very st range features 

where somebody connected wi th the Guptas,  whether i t  is 

The New Age or Mr Sal im Essa,  seemed to say what  is going 20 

to happen in Mr Brian Molefe’s  l i fe and SOE’s and i t  

happened. 

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  Chai rperson my response to th is  

would be.   I f  i t  was a mediocre person,  an ent i ty as i t  were,  

who started to be chai rperson of  the – or CEO of  PIC, CEO 
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of  Transnet ,  CEO of  Eskom.  I  would say,  def in i te ly there is  

something amiss.    

 However,  you know,  among black people,  there are very,  

very,  few people wi th the capabi l i t ies of  Br ian Molefe.   And 

this is a problem because when you f ixate on those few at  

the top,  there seem.. .    

 Wel l ,  there was a saying when BEE came in,  that  the 

same scoundrels were get t ing al l  the tenders and al l  the BEE 

partnerships.    

 Now in our society,  there is a very l imi ted amount  of  10 

people wi th real  ski l l  and capabi l i ty.   So i t  can be easy to  

predict  someone’s t ransgressions(?) .    

 I  am not  saying I  was except ional ly gi f ted but  I  went to  

be. . .   When Mr Mandela ask me to be the Minister of  Science 

and Technology in the f i rst  government of  South Afr ica. . .   

KwaZulu-Natal  was in t rouble.    

 Dr Buthelezi  asked me to go back to KwaZulu-Nata l  to  

Premier for about  one and a hal f  years.   President  Mbeki  

asked me back to Nat ional  Minist ry of  Science and 

Technology.    20 

 One night  he cal led me to his house and he said then,  

the Japanese have sa id they need an ambassador who 

understands technology.   Say,  I  want you to  go to Tokyo as 

ambassador.    

 I  come back f rom there.   One morning,  around seven,  I  
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get  a phone cal l  f rom Mr Pravin.   I t  was Minister  Pravin,  

saying the cabinet  has decided that  you are going to be 

Chairman of  SABC and you are a lso going to be Chairman of  

Lend(?)  Bank.   These two organisat ions are in t rouble.   We 

think you can help them.   

 I  say:   Pravin. . .   I  mean, he was my f r iend.   We were 

together at  Codesa.   I  said:   Pravin,  but  th is is madness.   

How can one person take two such organisat ions?  You 

know, what I  am trying to say is . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

DR NGUBANE :    . . .you get  to a si tuat ion where the same 

people ci rculate,  you know, in di fferent  organisat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  

DR NGUBANE :    So I  am not ,  in a way,  too surpr ised when I  

th ink about i t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

DR NGUBANE :    That  a person l ike Brian Molefe wi th his 

capabi l i ty can be touted for al l  sorts  of  posi t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  Wel l ,  the strange part ,  I  would 

imagine you would concede, is in regard to Transnet,  a 20 

si tuat ion where that  is said when there is a compet i t ive 

process that  is go ing to take place,  is i t  not?   

 In other words,  you might  be good but  you do not  know 

who else wi l l  apply.   And one would have thought that  when 

there is a compet i t ive process . . . [ intervenes]   
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DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .you would not  be able to or to  say so 

and so wi l l .   Maybe i f  you al ready know who the other  

appl icants are and you weigh them, that  might  be di fferent ,  

but  when you do not  know yet  who wi l l  apply,  i t  is st range,  is 

i t  not ,  to be so sure that  so and so wi l l  be,  un less you have 

some informat ion that  other people do not  have.  

DR NGUBANE :    But  Chai rperson let  me remind you.   In  our  

development as a new government was in 1994.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  10 

DR NGUBANE :    There has been a very st rong element of  

deployment of  indicators(?).   So i t  may be compet i t ive but  

when the el i te,  the governing par ty,  knows someone they 

think can ful f i l  their  object ives,  they wi l l  make sure that  

person gets i t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  Wel l ,  one,  to the extent  that  you 

have a compet i t ive process and that  is done,  that  might  not  

be r ight  because then the compet i t ion is not  fa i r.   I f  you talk 

about  your posi t ion that  is not  subject  to compet i t ion 

. . . [ intervenes]   20 

DR NGUBANE :    Sure.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . l ike being a minister,  that  is di fferent ,  

you,  know.  But  i f  there is going to be a compet i t ive process,  

i t  is wrong for that  process to be undermined l ike that .   

[ laughs]   But  I  guess you are saying:   Wel l ,  i t  happens.   
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Maybe.. .   [ laughs]    

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  I  have been in pol i t ics.   You have 

been in the judiciary.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    So approaches are di fferent .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Our worlds are d i fferent .   [ laughs]    

DR NGUBANE :    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  I  wi l l  not  c la im to know what you know 

from pol i t ics.   [ laughs]    

DR NGUBANE :    [ laughs]    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you Chai r.   Dr Ngubane,  we are 

going to come back to that  because what I  was saying to you 

that  i t  is ei ther a co inc idence or an orchestrat ion that  what  

he said a year before becomes a real i ty a year later.   Is that  

a coinc idence or an orchestrat ion?  

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  I  th ink the Chairperson and mysel f  

have been discussing this very issue.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    So i t  could be a coincidence but  as I  have 20 

said people are earmarked for  some type of  jobs(?).   

[Speaker ’s voice t ra i ls off  – unclear]    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    So . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    As far as you . . . [ intervenes]   
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[Speakers intervening each other – unclear]  

DR NGUBANE :    . . .g ive you the informat ion and say f rom the 

cabinet  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    . . .or f rom the people high up and 

downwards,  they could very wel l  predict  Dr Ngubane f rom 

here wi l l  be there.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja,  but  that  –  that  means Sal im Essa 

then wi l l  be part  o f  the cabinet .  

DR NGUBANE :    Sorry? 10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  means Sal im Essa then wi l l  be part  

of  the cabinet  or has insight  into what happens.  

DR NGUBANE :    No,  I  am just  g iv ing you an example.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  know you are just  giv ing me an 

example.  

DR NGUBANE :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    But  th is is a factual  example.   What I  am 

giving to you is a factual  example because the strange part  

of  i t  is,  that  somebody outside of  cabinet ,  outside of  

par l iament,  outside of  SOE’s,  outside of  your meet ings wi th  20 

the minister has said a year before prophet ical ly but  we have 

decided that  Mr Br ian Molefe wi l l  be the chai rperson.    

 So that  is what is st range about i t .   I f  you and I  are 

earmarked for a job by Lesley Nkabela,  that  is f ine.   But  i f  

the minister ’s advisor,  as he int roduced himsel f ,  Mr Sal im 
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Essa to Ms Suzanne Daniels. . .  

 He is saying these things when he is not  -  a legal  

advisor to the min ister,  then i t  is a problem.  And that  is what  

we are deal ing wi th here.  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.   No,  certainly  that  is  wrong 

Chairperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   Chai rperson,  just  quickly on the 

t ranscr ipt  of  Mr Bester before the Commission here when 

asked quest ions by my col league, Ngube.   

“And who did he say that  person would be?”  10 

 Ja,  let  me f i rst  read Mr Bester ’s response.    

“He did not  go in to the detai l  but  he said to me I  

must  worry about  the detai l  or budget.    

I  recal l ,  for instance,  he told me that  they had 

al ready decided who is going to be the next  CEO of  

Eskom.  

And I  could clear ly see when i t  happens that  what  

the power is that  they have and how they make 

decisions i f  I  do not  bel ieve him.”  

 Then he is asked by my col league:  20 

“And who did he say that  person would be?”  

 Mr Bester responds:  

“He said i t  is  go ing to  be decided that  Mr Br ian 

Molefe wi l l  be the CEO of  Eskom.”  

 And my col league asks:  
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“And this was al l  dur ing that  meet ing?”  

 And the response is:  

“That  is correct . ”  

“Okay now this . . . [ intervenes]”  

And then the Chai rperson comes in.  

“ I  am sorry.   This would have been af ter Apri l  2014,  

you said.   Did you say this meet ing would have 

taken place af ter Apri l  2014 Mr Bester?”  

 And he says:  

“That  is correct .   Yes”  10 

 So that  Chai r  would have then been asked about Apri l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  just  checked.   I  th ink I  may have asked 

how long af ter  Apr i l  2014.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  yes.   But  then,  i t  is st i l l  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  we can check.   You do not  have to  

check everything . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . for purposes of  Dr Ngubane’s evidence.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  we wi l l  do that  . . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    For any purposes.   I t  does not  matter  

whether i t  was Apri l  or October.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So that  Dr Ngubane then – he accounts 
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for Mr Br ian Molefe.   The announcement is made on the 

17t h of  Apri l  and you ment ioned the minister says you have 

met wi th the president  and so on.   She later had to correct  

that  and . . . [ intervenes]   

DR NGUBANE :    Sorry,  Chai r.   I  got  a bi t  of  a sinusi t is.   My 

ears are blocked.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   Ja,  please raise your voice.  

DR NGUBANE :    I  was dr iv ing up here f rom KZN.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   [ laughs]    

DR NGUBANE :    Yes.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    P lease raise your  voice Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   So the minister makes the 

announcement on the 17t h of  Apr i l  2015 regard ing the 

appointment of  Mr Molefe.    

 And as you ment ioned,  she had said in that  meet ing that  

she had met wi th the relevant  stakeholders being the 

president  and deputy-president  but  she also included the 

boards of  Transnet  and Eskom.   

 Her statement which she later had to correct  because by 

the t ime she made the announcement,  she had not  met  wi th 20 

the two boards.   She had only met wi th you and Ms L inda 

Mabaso.   

DR NGUBANE :    We were represent ing the two boards.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   But  you did correct  but  she did not  

meet wi th the boards.   She met wi th  the two chairpersons.  
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DR NGUBANE :    That  is r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   So you go into the meet ing of  the 

23r d of  Apri l  2015.   The board meet ing of  the 

23r d  of  Apr i l  2015.   At  least  you as the act ing chairperson of  

the board wi th the knowledge that  Mr Molefe is coming.   He 

has been seconded to Eskom.   

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Maybe more than you because the 

announcement was publ ic ly made.  So the ent i re board 

would know this.   Correct?  10 

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  I  th ink the secondment of  Mr Molefe 

became publ ic knowledge immediate.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   So the board goes into th is  

meet ing knowing his coming because i t  is in the meet ing of  

the 23r d of  Apri l  2015 that  the board approves Mr Molefe’s  

secondment.   

DR NGUBANE :    Right ,  ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   So the resolut ion is,  the secondment  

of  Mr Br ian Molefe f rom Transnet as inter im Chief  Execut ive 

for Eskom is approved with effect  f rom 20 Apri l  2015.  20 

DR NGUBANE :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  is the approval .   The chairman of  

the board is author ised to sign any and al l  agreements and 

documents to give effect  to the above resolut ion and the 

chairperson of  the board is ref lected as you,  in fact ,  act ing 
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chairperson at  the t ime.   

 Then i t  comes this issue of  Opt imum which is the focus 

of  our at tent ion.   The issue of  Opt imum, I  supposed the 

board would have known this,  i t  comes way back f rom 2014 

before the board is appointed.  

DR NGUBANE :    I t  comes back f rom 2012? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Even way back f rom 2012.  But  when 

Opt imum goes into hardship,  when i ts export  market  

plummets,  the export  market  which i t  used to subsidise i ts  

sale to Eskom, plummets.    10 

 Opt imum fal ls into di ff icul t ies because i t  cannot sustain 

the pr ice at  which i t  was sel l ing coal  to Eskom.  The pr ice is  

way below i ts operat ional  costs.   Then i t  goes into hardship.   

This happens – i t  t r iggers negot iat ions in 2014 before your 

t ime.  

DR NGUBANE :    Sorry,  sorry.   Can I  – before you get  even 

more compl icated . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  [ laughs]    

DR NGUBANE :    The issue wi th Opt imum . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

DR NGUBANE :    From what I  have read or what I  have heard 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

DR NGUBANE:    There  was a  per iod  when the  expor t  coa l  
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p r i ce  was rocket ing  in  do l la rs  and every  coa l  p roducer  was 

t ry ing  to  ge t  in to  the  in te rnat iona l  market .   That  t ime 

Opt imum Coa l  M ine was wash ing  i t s  coa l ,  tak ing  ou t  the  

best  fo r  expor t  and g i v ing  rubb ish  to  Eskom.   Even tha t  

rubb ish  was be low the  coa l  supp ly  ag reement  s t ipu la ted  

and th i s  i s  where  the  issue o f  pena l t ies  s ta r t ing  com ing in .  

 So they are  m is rep resent ing  the  issue tha t  the i r  

hardsh ip  s ta r ted  when the  expor t  coa l  p r i ce  co l lapsed.   

They have bene f i ted  b i l l i ons  a t  the  expense o f  Eskom,  

wh i le  the  coa l  p r ice  was up the re .    10 

 So rea l l y,  i t  i s  pa the t ic  tha t  b ig  o rgan isa t ions l i ke  

th is ,  wea l thy  as  they are ,  have to ta l l y  abused us  in  South  

A f r i ca  to  c ream of f  a l l  the  wea l th  and take  i t  overseas to  

the i r  shareho lde rs .   I  th ink  th is  was a  ve ry  we l l  fe l t  

sens i t i v i t y  in  Eskom tha t  G lencoe and the i r  subs id ia r ies  

were  jus t  in te res ted  in  p ro f i t .    

Whethe r  Eskom bo i le rs  bu rs t  o r  su f fe red  damage  

because o f  the  poor  coa l  qua l i t y  tha t  was be ing  bu rn t ,  they  

d id  no t  care  and hence the  harden ing  o f  a t t i tudes and  

when we say Mole fe  to ld  us  la te r  tha t  Mr  G lasenberg  had  20 

sa id  to  h im f rom here  because you are  s t i f f -headed,  I  am 

go ing  to  s top  supp ly ing  Hendr ina  and th is  load shedd ing  

w i l l  then become a  na t iona l  b lackout .   We a l l  fe l t  i t  

because i t  was rea l  a r rogance coming f rom a  man f rom 

Swi tze r land coming to  te l l  us  how he wants  us  to  bow to  
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h is  demands to  t reb le  the  pr i ce  o f  coa l  f rom R150 to  R513  

per  t ime over  n igh t .   So I  wou ld  beg th is  Commiss ion  to  

take  some o f  th is  ev idence w i th  c i rcumspect ion .   Thank 

you,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  i t  i s  very  impor tan t ,  Dr  Ngubane tha t  

you and Br ian  Mole fe  and whoever  e lse  was a t  Eskom at  

the  t ime and was invo lved in  these d iscuss ions,  g ive  us  

your  fu l l  perspect ives  how you saw mat te rs  so  tha t  we  

have,  you know,  a l l  perspect ives .   So we want  to  hear  your  

fu l l  perspect ives  o f  exact ly  what  caused Eskom to  make 10 

cer ta in  dec i s ions ,  what  caused Eskom to  adopt  a  cer ta in  

a t t i tude.   So i t  i s  very  impor tan t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  Dr  Ngubane,  i t  i s  apparen t  to  me 

tha t  you are  fam i l ia r  w i th  the  issues,  so  le t  us  f ree  f low 

in to  them.  

DR NGUBANE:    Wel l ,  I  am not  fami l ia r  w i th  a l l  the  issues,  

bu t  I  am ta lk ing  about  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l ,  I  w i l l  ass is tance w i th  re ference to  

documents  where  we need to .  20 

DR NGUBANE:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  then th is  mat te r  o f  OCM,  wh ich  

Opt imum Coa l  Mine,  the  ev idence was led  yesterday,  

comes f rom 20 –  and I  want  to  l im i t  i t  to  2014 where  there  

is  a  coopera t ion  agreement  be tween OCM and  Eskom,  
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there  i s  a  four th  addendum which  is  p roposed in  te rms o f  

the  pr ices ,  increases to  the  supp ly  o f  coa l  to  Eskom and 

the  in ten t ion  is ,  as  we unders tand i t ,  a l l  tha t  negot ia t ion .  

P rocess,  the  coopera t ion  i s  done in  o rde r  to  ach ieve a  new 

agreement  on  the  1  January  2015.   I  do  no t  know whethe r  

you are  aware  o f  tha t .   There  is . . .  

DR NGUBANE:    [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  r ings  –  you can reca l l .   Le t  us  

conf i rm i t  so  tha t  the  Cha i rperson can hear  you.  

DR NGUBANE:    Qu i te  so ,  I  do  reca l l .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  so  i t  i s  jus t  the  board  ou t l ines  

because what  i s  re fe r red  as  Excops,  the  execut ive  

procu rement  commi t tee  had agreed on the  addendum,  they 

then re fe r red  i t  to  the  BTC for  approva l .   I t  comes  to  the 

BTC in  the  meet ing  o f  13  or  15  Apr i l .   The BTC does not  

dec ide  tha t  mat te r,  i t  re fe rs  i t  to  the  board .  

 Then i t  comes to  the  board  on  the  23  Apr i l .   When  

i t  comes to  the  board ,  the  board  a lso  does not  dec ide  i t .   

The board  dec ides ins tead to  re fer  i t  to  the  new Act ing  

CEO and maybe  you cou ld  g ive  the  Cha i rperson some 20 

ins igh t  in to  why d id  the  board  make tha t  dec is ion  to  re fer  

th is  mat te r  tha t  comes way back,  a t  leas t  2014,  to  a  man 

who is  comple te ly  new and he wou ld  be ,  what ,  about  a  

week a t  Eskom and i f  you are  second ing  h im e f fec t i ve  f rom 

the  20 Apr i l ,  I  do  no t  know when  does he s ta r t ,  you are  
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mak ing  your  dec i s ion  th ree  days about  re fe r r ing  th i s  mat te r  

to  h im.   Now wha t  – g ive  the  Cha i rperson some ins igh t  in to 

tha t  dec i s ion .  

DR NGUBANE:    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  I  w ish  I  had a  v ideo o f  

B r ian  Mole fe  go ing  to  the  most  t roub led  power  s ta t ions .   

He comes in  there ,  s ta f f  i s  ga thered,  the re  is  an  open 

space,  he  j umps  in  there  and s tar ts  j i v ing  and s ing ing .   

That  was the  man.   And then,  one,  two,  th ree ,  a l l  s ta t ion  

masters  are  under  p ressure  to  p roduce because the i r  own  

peop le  are  demand ing e f f i c iency,  p roduct iv i t y.   Tha t  i s  how 10 

we overcame load shedd ing .    

 So the  fac t  tha t  he  was new,  the  fac t  tha t  the  BTC 

was re fus ing  to  accept  the  proposa l  f rom Excops,  wh ich  is  

the  Exco p rocurement  subcommi t tee ,  on  an  increase in  

p r ice  wh ich  aga in  I  th ink  was about  th ree fo ld .   They sa id  

they cannot  dea l  w i th  th is ,  they w i l l  no t  accept  i t ,  they  are  

br ing ing  i t  to  us  and a lso  we,  o f  course ,  cou ld  no t  dea l  w i th  

th is  because th i s  was a  mat te r  o f  negot ia t ion  bu t  we a l l  

sa id  le t  us  leave i t  fo r  the  CEO.    

 But ,  knowing Br ian ,  he  came in  here  boots  and a l l  20 

and s ta r ted  dea l ing  w i th  i t  and we were  qu i te  happy w i th  

the  way he dea l t  w i th  i t  because he was s topp ing  

exp lo i ta t ion  o f  the  peop le  o f  th is  count ry.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   Of  cou rse ,  by  the  t ime you made  

the  dec is ion ,  he  had not  gone to  a  power  s ta t ion ,  c l imbed 
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on  a  p la t fo rm to  dance and j i ve .  

DR NGUBANE:    Sure .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You d id  no t  know anyth ing  on  whethe r  

–  how he wou ld  tu rn  around the  s i tua t ion .   But ,  anyway,  

you have acce lera ted  i t ,  you  say you were  happy w i th  the  

way he hand led  i t .  

DR NGUBANE:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because what  he  d id  i s ,  a  year  a f te r  

the  coopera t ion  agreement  had  been conc luded,  i t  i s  

conc luded in  May 2014,  the  par t ies  have entered in to  an  10 

agreement  tha t  they w i l l  negot ia te  in  May o f  2015.he  

te rm inates  nego t ia t ions  process ,  he  te rm inates  the  

coopera t ion  agreement  and he imposes –  no t  impose,  bu t  

he  demands the  payment  o f  the  pena l t ies ,  the   R2.17  

b i l l i on  pena l t ies ,  wh ich  you have re fer red  to .  

DR NGUBANE:    Sure .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And you are  say ing  the  board  was 

happy w i th  the  way he hand led  i t .    

DR NGUBANE:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now ta lk ing  o f  the  pena l t ies ,  do  you 20 

know how the  pena l ty  i ssue was hand led? ,  

DR NGUBANE:    Sor ry?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you know how the  pena l ty  i ssue  

was hand led?  

DR NGUBANE:    Oh,  ja .   Wel l ,  no t  fu l l y.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

DR NGUBANE:    Bu t  in  te rms o f  what  I  know,  th is  pena l ty  

i ssue had or ig ina ted  f rom 2012.   By  the  t ime we came in  as  

a  board  some par ts  o f  i t  because i t  was happen ing  a t  

d i f fe ren t  s tages accumula t ing  pena l t ies  fo r  th is  per iod  and 

so  on .   By  the  t ime we came in ,  some par ts  o f  i t ,  a  b ig  par t  

o f  i t  was go ing  to  –  in  law they ca l l  i t  p rescr ibe  –  and f rom 

what  Br ian  repor ted ,  he  had no cho ice  bu t  to  make sure  

tha t  he  does not  a l low prescr ip t ion ,  he  does not  a l low OCM 

and Glencoe to  ge t  away w i th  murder  and tha t  was the  10 

approach tha t  was taken,  tha t  we w i l l  no t  take  your  sad 

s to ry  o f  hardsh ip  when you are  so  wea l thy,  you  te l l  us 

hardsh ip ,  you te l l  us  G lencoe f rom Swi tzer land is  re fus ing  

to  g ive  you money eve ry  month  to  run  the  show.   I  mean,  

tha t  was a l l  fa lse .   

 You know,  they cou ld  use the i r  reserves to  suppor t  

Opt imum.   Opt imum went  in to  bus iness rescue pu re ly  to  

avo id  the  issue o f  pay ing  the  pena l ty.   And even when 

arb i t ra t ion  was suggested they re fused i t .   So they must  

no t  come here ,  Cha i rperson,  and  be ho ly,  ho l y  and n i ce .   20 

They are  bad.   I  w i l l  ca l l  them crooks,  l i ke  many o the r  

in te rna t iona l  corpora t ions when they come in to  A f r i ca ,  they 

th ink  we are  there  fo r  the  tak ing ,  the  s tup id  A f r i cans fo r  the  

tak ing .   No,  no ,  S i r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    You know,  remember ing  the  ev idence 

tha t  was g iven las t  year  about  these issues,  one  o f  the  

mat te rs  tha t  was s t range to  me was th is ,  tha t  I  th ink  OCM’s  

compla in t  was tha t  the  pr ice  o f  coa l  tha t  they were  bound 

to ,  in  te rms o f  t he i r  agreement  w i th  Eskom,  was  a  pr i ce  

tha t  had been the re  fo r  ages,  i t  had not  been rev i sed.   But ,  

o f  course ,  the  quest ion  wou ld  be ,  bu t  how d id  you s ign  an  

agreement  tha t  t ied  you to  the  same pr ice  fo r  ages  w i thout  

pu t t ing  in  a  c lause tha t  wou ld  ensure  tha t  i t  increased  

accord ing  to  the  in f la t ion  or  whatever.  10 

DR NGUBANE:    Sure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  tha t  made room or  annua l  

negot ia t ions  to  take  p lace to  rev ise  the  pr ice ,  bu t  –  so 

there  was tha t  pa r t i cu la r  aspect  to  say when they say look,  

th is  p r ice  tha t  Eskom is  en forc ing  is  an  o ld  p r ice ,  a l l  we 

are  ask ing  i s  tha t  le t  us  ta lk  and rev ise  i t  and they are  

re fus ing .   Of  course ,  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  Eskom may have 

been re fus ing ,  i t  wou ld  have been usua l  i t s  con t rac tua l  

r igh ts .  

 But  the  quest ion  a lso  f rom the i r  s ide ,  OCM’s  s ide ,  20 

wou ld  be  but  how d id  you a l low whoever  s igned on your  

beha l f ,  s igned th is  cont rac t ,  to  s ign  a  cont rac t  tha t  the  

pr ice  wou ld  be  the  same fo r  10  years  o r  more?  Were  they 

s leep ing  or  what  was –  how cou ld  you have s igned such a  

cont rac t?   Nobody s igns such a  cont rac t .   
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 So  there  was tha t  aspect .   Of  course ,  i t  d id  come 

across,  I  can say,  maybe a  l i t t le  harsh  on  Eskom’s  s ide  

when they –  I  th ink  i t  was Mr  Br ian  Mole fe ’s  –  we are  no t  

negot ia t ing ,  go  accord ing  to  the  cont rac t ,  go  accord ing  to  

the  cont rac t ,  bu t  tha t  may have been cont rac tua l l y  

permiss ib le  bu t  i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  we get  the  fu l l  

perspect ive  f rom Eskom’s  s ide  because you have now sa id ,  

fo r  example ,  they took the  cream of  the  coa l  and  sent  i t  

overseas and gave you coa l  tha t  was be low s tandard  and 

tha t  i s  why the  pena l t ies  came in .   So i t  i s  impor tan t  to  10 

have a l l  o f  tha t  in  the  basket .  

DR NGUBANE:    Wel l ,  on  tha t  no te ,  Cha i rpe rson,  G lencoe 

came in  fa i r l y  la te  in to  m in ing  in  South  A f r i ca ,  Wi tbank.   

They bought  a  lo t  o f  m in ing  assets .   I  th ink  a t  one s tage 

they had about  14  in  the  coa l  bas in  area o f  Wi tbank.   They  

bought  compan ies  tha t  had been cor rup t ly  g iven very  long 

cont rac ts  in  the  apar the id  era .   So what  they were  ta lk ing  

about  i t se l f  was cor rup t ion  in  i t s  own r igh t .  

 Now they come in  because they rea l i se  tha t ,  you  

know,  i t  i s  no t  g iv ing  them as much re turns ,  they want  20 

sudden ly  to  up  i t ,  they  do  not  want  to  pay the  pena l t ies .   

No,  S i r.    

 Pemban i  wanted to  buy OCM,  I  mean there  were  

th ree  b idders  fo r  OCM.   One o f  them was Pembani ,  the 

o ther  one was Tegeta .   I  fo rge t  the  th i rd  one.   Pemban i  
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came to  Eskom to  say ra i se  the  pr ice  then we buy OCM.   

Eskom sa id  no ,  i t  w i l l  no t  be  done.   So i t  was not  jus t  to  

OCM tha t  Eskom was hard ,  i t  was hard  even to  the  peop le ,  

o ther  peop le  who wanted to  buy OCM.   Eskom was  

ins is t ing  tha t  un less  you s t i ck  t o  the  es tab l i shed coa l  

supp ly  agreement  we are  no t  in te res ted  in  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  suspect  there  i s  go ing  to  be  a  t ime 

when Mr  Se leka w i l l  say  bu t  was i t  hard  on  Tegeta?   But  le t  

me leave [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  th ink  re la t ing (?)  to  the  next  quest ion .  10 

DR NGUBANE:    Be fore  you say i t ,  S i r,  Tegeta  o f fe red  to  

pay R150 per  ton  a f te r  tak ing  Opt imum,  so… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  there  are  o the r  mat te rs ,  D r  

Ngubane.   Le t  us  take  the  tea  break.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Tea b reak.   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We wi l l  take  the  tea  break  and Mr  

Se leka w i l l  ra ise  o ther  mat te rs  as  we l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  twenty  two minutes  past ,  we w i l l  

resume a t  twenty  to  twe lve .    20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

DR NGUBANE:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   D r  Ngubane there  i s  

the  issue o f  pena l t ies  and the  issue o f  exp lo i ta t ion  you  

re fer red  to  j us t  be fore  the  ad journment .    I  w i l l  come to  the  

pena l t ies  in  a  moment ,  bu t  le t ’s  dea l  w i th  the  exp lo i ta t ion 

tha t  you ment ioned,  su re ly  I  ga ther  f rom your  tes t imony 

tha t  you d id  no t  want  to  dea l  w i th  G lencore  anymore ,  I  

mean I  w i l l  be  the  las t  person myse l f  to  suppor t  

exp lo i ta t ion  o f  a  fo re ign  company,  the  exp lo i ta t ion  o f  a  

loca l  company by  a   fo re ign  company,  I  w i l l  be  the  las t  10 

person to  do  tha t ,  I  wou ldn ’ t  encourage tha t  s i tua t i on ,  and 

so  you are  say ing  tha t  to  the  Cha i rpe rson as  we l l ,  tha t  th is  

i s  what  you d idn ’ t  want  as  Eskom,  the  exp lo i ta t ion  o f  

Eskom by G lencore  or  OCM,  r igh t?  

DR NGUBANE:    Cha i rperson unfor tunate ly  i ssues ar i se  

here  tha t  fo rce  one to  make cer ta in  observa t ions,  because 

o f  e lec t r i c i t y  a t  one s tage was ve ry  low,  the  lowest  in  the 

wor ld ,  tha t  i s  why  we got  smel te rs  l i ke  A lusav,  i ron ,  I  mean 

s tee l  and so  on  and a  very  s t rong min ing  secto r,  because 

our  energy costs  were  low,  bu t  when i t  came to  the  coa l  20 

p lus  m ines wh ich  were  the  main  supp l ie rs  to  Eskom Power  

S ta t ions,  reduc ing  the i r  p roduct ion  as  a  way o f  fo rc ing  

Eskom to  g i ve  them h igher  ra tes ,  and the  cost  o f  p roduc ing  

energy esca la ted  and then the  e lec t r i c i t y  ta r i f f  s ta r ted  

go ing  up l i ke  i t  i s  today.   We app l ied  fo r  a  16% increase in  
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ta r i f f  in  2015,  NERSA gave us  on ly  8%.   We employed  

McKinsey to  do  DTC2 wh ich  i s  des igned to  cost  two,  be fore  

tha t  we had bus iness product iv i t y  p rogramme,  wh ich  was  

a imed,  main ly,  a t  cos t  sav ing ,  reduc ing  costs .    

The DTC2 was  a imed a t  f ind ing  a  new ta r i f f  

t ra jec to ry  wh ich  w i l l  no t  requ i re  taxa t ion  o f  peop le  in  

buy ing  e lec t r i c i t y  r i se  to  h igh  bu t  fo r  Eskom to  deve lop  

a l te rna t ive  ways  o f  ra is ing  revenue.   One o f  the 

programmes we had w i th  the  Un ivers i t y  o f  S te l lenbosch  

and the  Un ivers i t y  o f  Johannesburg  was to  p roduce ou r  10 

own roo f top  pane ls  fo r  so la r  energy,  very  advanced.   The  

f i rs t  fac tory  was go ing  to  be  bu i l t  in  Soweto  and then o ther  

fac tors  were  bu i l t  e lsewhere .  The wate r  heat ing  so la r  

energy was go ing  to  be  prov ided to  every  home in  an  

a t tempt  to  ensure  equ i tab le  access to  energy fo r  everyone  

by  keep ing  the  ta r i f f  low but  wha t ’s  happened now,  we ’ re  

see ing  an esca la t ion  in  ta r i f f ,  Eskom is  no t  even  mak ing  

the  same revenues tha t  we used to  make because  we are  

pay ing  IPP ’s ,  lo ts  and lo ts  o f  money fo r  very  smal l  amounts  

o f  megawat ts  o f  e lec t r i c i t y,  they  are  bu rn ing  d iese l  a t ,  20 

probab ly,  R1b i l l i on  a  month  because the  IPP ’s  can ’ t  

p rov ide  –  p roduce enough wat tage or  megawat ts ,  sor ry,  o f  

e lec t r i c i t y  so  as  was the  case w i th  Base load when  we had  

coa l  f i re  power  s ta t ions .   So,  what  I ’m  get t ing  to  i s ,  we had  

a  v is ion  fo r  e lec t r i c i t y  access ib i l i t y  in  th is  count ry  to  
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benef i t  everybody.   They ’ve  dec ided to  c lose  down the  coa l  

f i red  power  s ta t i ons  in  favour  o f  IPP ’s ,  okay,  we ’ re  a l l  

concerned about  c l imate  change,  bu t  we are  a  deve lop ing  

count ry.   You can ’ t  expect  a  poor  person to  pay a  ve ry  h igh  

ta r i f f s  tha t  renewable  energy w i l l  demand,  you can ’ t .   in  

o ther  words,  we ’ re  go ing  to  cu t -o f f  f rom e lec t r i ca l  supp ly  

and power,  a  huge pe rcentage  o f  the  South  A f r i can  

popu la t ion ,  75% probab ly,  because peop le  are  unemployed,  

there ’s  no  money,  i t ’s  on ly  the  ones tha t  a re  go ing  to  a f fo rd  

e lec t r i c i t y  in  the  fu tu re  w i th  these h igh  ta r i f f s .  10 

So,  I ’m get t ing  back to  the  po in t  tha t ,  you must  look  

a t  the  ph i losophy  tha t  we pursued  and look a t  the  present  

charges and c la ims aga ins t  us .   As  Koko sa id ,  h is to ry  w i l l  

abso lve  us  because we cannot  have growing  

indust r ia l i sa t ion  and a t  the  present  reg ime,  in  te rms o f  

e lec t r i c i t y  management  and cost ,  so  I  jus t  wanted to  make 

tha t  remark  be fore  we cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You under took  to  me tha t  you wou ldn ’ t  

be  long-winded.  

DR NGUBANE:   Sor ry?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  sa id ,  you under took to  me tha t  you  

wou ldn ’ t  be  long-winded in  your  answers .  

DR NGUBANE:    I  be?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You wou ldn ’ t  be  long-winded  in  your  

answers .  
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DR NGUBANE:    Oh,  I ’ l l  be  shor t ,  thank you.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    [Laughter ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes so ,  I  was say ing  Dr  Ngubane tha t ,  

c lea r ly  f rom what  you ’ re  exp la in ing  be fore  the  ad journment  

you d idn ’ t  want  to  cont inue dea l ing  w i th  the  s i tua t ion ,  you  

were  be ing  exp lo i ted  by  Opt imum as Eskom,  f rom your  

exp lanat ion  be fore  the  ad journment .  

DR NGUBANE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  you ’ re  tak ing  too  long  to  th ink  10 

about  i t ,  bu t  i f  your  dec is ion  on  the  10 t h  o f  December  was  

oppos i te  to  tha t  sent iment ,  I ’m  go ing  to  b lame you and  

your  Board .  

DR NGUBANE:    10 t h  o f  December…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    10 t h  o f  December,  wh ich  dec is ion  on  –  

wh ich  one is  tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The p re-payment  dec i s ion .  

DR NGUBANE:    P re-payment?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE:    As  fa r  as  I  am concerned i t ’s  been taken  20 

to ta l l y  ou t  o f  contex t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE:    I f  you  read the  mot iva t ion ,  you know,  Ms 

Dan ie ls  came to  my o f f i ce  in  the  a f te rnoon jus t  be fore  I  

was go ing  home and sa id ,  there ’s  an  emergency now,  we 
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need to  deem th is  as  an  emergency and an emergency in  

Eskom is  24  hours .  Wi th in  24  hours  we must  have a  

reso lu t ion  passed by  the  Board .   I  sa id ,  fo r  what ,  she  

showed me the  papers ,  R1.68b i l l i on  pre -payment  fo r  coa l  

to  Opt imum.   I  sa id ,  IFC wi l l  have to  dea l  w i th  th is  f i rs t ,  

she sa id ,  no  they ’ve  a l ready taken a  reso lu t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Oh,  so  when is  he  meet ing  w i th  you?  

DR NGUBANE:    Sor ry?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    When i s  th is  –  her  coming  to  your  

o f f i ce  tha t  wou ld  be  on the  9 t h …[ in tervenes] .  10 

DR NGUBANE:    Be fore  we put  the  Round Rob in  to  the  

Board  members ,  she came to  the  o f f i ce  w i th  the  

documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  same day?  

DR NGUBANE:    On the  same day.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE:    I  had to  approve tha t  she s ta r ts  the  

Round Rob in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

DR NGUBANE:    Bu t  the  cond i t ion  fo r  any emergency i s  

tha t  the  most  sen ior  o f f i cer  on  s i te  must  approve a l r i gh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  sor ry,  bu t  you say she a lso  sa id  

to  you IFC has a l ready dea l t  w i th  th is…[ in te rvenes] .  

DR NGUBANE:    Yes,  yes  so  –  in  fac t ,  I  th ink  I  sa id  tha t  in  
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my a f f idav i t  a l r igh t ,  and then she  exp la ined,  we read the  

documents ,  there  was an emergency,  the  pu t t ing  o f  OCM 

in to  bus iness rescue has crea ted an emergency anyth ing  

can happen i f  they  go  in to  l iqu ida t ion ,  we might  lose  a l l  our  

coa l ,  we might  –  the  workers  may  lose  the i r  jobs ,  DMR is  

commi t ted  on  th is ,  i t ’s  the  best  approach i s  to  p re -

purchase the  coa l .  So,  I  read the  documents  and  I  sa id ,  

we l l  tha t ’s  f ine  then put  i t  on to  a  Round Rob in .   The te rms  

o f  th is  reso lu t ion  cent red  on the  fac t  tha t  i f  we pre -

purchase the  coa l  we ’ l l  lock  in  the  coa l  supp ly  fo r  Eskom 10 

fo r  a  year,  5 .5b i l l i on  tons o f  coa l .  So,  whoever  purchases  

or  i f  i t ’s  l iqu ida ted ,  whoever  pu rchases OCM we have  

locked in  ou r  supp ly  o f  coa l ,  they  cannot  take  the  coa l  and  

wa lk  away w i th  i t ,  say  expor t  i t  o r  do  anyth ing ,  they w i l l  

s t i l l  have to  supp ly  our  coa l .   That ,  essent ia l l y,  was the  

log ic  o f  the  pre-purchase.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  your  dec i s ion  was to  buy d i rec t l y  

f rom OCM? 

DR NGUBANE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And…[ in tervenes] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  in  o ther  words,  you wou ld  say to  

OCM,  you wou ld  de termine how much coa l  you needed as  

Eskom for  a  year?  

 

DR NGUBANE:    That ’s  cor rec t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    And say  to  OCM we are  pay ing  you in  

advance fo r  coa l  tha t  w i l l  las t  us  fo r  a  year.  

DR NGUBANE:    That ’s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    There fo re ,  i f  th is  succeeds i t  means  

Eskom wou ld  be  guaranteed o f  coa l  fo r  a t  leas t  a  year.  

DR NGUBANE:    That ’s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  wou ld  g ive  you or  Eskom an  

oppor tun i ty  to  see how to  hand le  the  s i tua t ion  beyond 12  

months .  

DR NGUBANE:    That ’s  cor rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Se leka .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So ,  OCM obv ious ly  had coa l  ava i lab le .  

DR NGUBANE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  d id  you p re-pay them? 

DR NGUBANE:    OCM was in  bus iness rescue but  they 

were  go ing  to  come out  o f  bus iness rescue fo r  the  purpose 

o f  th is  t ransact ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  d id  you pre -pay them? 

DR NGUBANE:    Sor ry?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you p re-pay them? 20 

DR NGUBANE:    We prepa id  them,  bu t  the  cond i t ions  were  

very  c lea r,  the  fund ing  w i l l  no t  be  a  lump sum i t  w i l l  come 

in  s tages.  We’ l l  reduce the  i nventory  o f  our  s tockp i le  f rom 

54 days to  48  days.  Now,  the  inventory  work ing  cap i ta l  

reduct ion  is  a  un ivers i t y  app l ied  methodo logy because 



08 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 320 
 

Page 58 of 187 
 

when you reduce invento ry,  tha t  i s  the  s tockp i le  in  our  

case,  on  rand o f  reduct ion  in  inventory  resu l ts  in  one rand  

add i t ion  in to  opera t ing  cash…[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Be fo re  you go in to  those de ta i l s ,  Dr  

Ngubane,  a  pre-payment  was never  made to  OCM.  

DR NGUBANE:    The p re-payment  was fo r  coa l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja  bu t  i t  was never  made.  

DR NGUBANE:    Wel l ,  I ’m ta lk ing  about  how we  

approached the  reso lu t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  my quest ion  was,  was the  pre-10 

payment  made to  OCM? 

DR NGUBANE:    Wel l ,  i t  was go ing  to  be  made over  t ime,  i t  

wasn ’ t  go ing  to  be  a  lump sum payment .   I  mean,  i t ’s  l i ke ,  

what  Toyota  wou ld  ca l l  jus t  on  t ime,  you know you  empty  

your  b in  o f  spa re  par t s  and then  the  compute r  sends the  

message to  the  supp l ie r  o f  the  par ts  they de l i ve r  the  par t s ,  

i t  was tha t  same sor t  o f  approach.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  bu t  le t ’s  c la r i f y  i t  because i t  

needs to  be  c la r i f ied .   You sa id  i t ’s  been taken  out  o f  

contex t  and we need to  contex tua l i se  i t .   One is  tha t ,  i f  20 

your  p re-payment  was meant  to  go  to  OCM owned by  

G lencore  i t  goes  cont rary  to  the  sent iment  expressed by  

you,  so  s t renuous ly  be fore  the  ad journment ,  tha t  you d idn ’ t  

want  to  be  exp lo i ted .   You took a  dec is ion  tha t  goes  

cont rary  to  tha t  sent iment .  Cont rary  to  the  ac t ions o f  Mr  
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Mo le fe  wh ich  you suppor ted ,  te rm inat ing  the  agreement  –  

corpo ra t ion  agreement  w i th  OCM terminat ing  negot ia t ions ,  

tha t ’s  the  one aspect ,  i t  goes cont rary  to  a l l  tha t .  

DR NGUBANE:    No,  the  issue w i th  OCM was want ing  R513 

per  ton ,  ins tead o f  R150 we were  go ing  to  buy i t  a t  the  coa l  

supp l ie r  agreement  p r ice .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    By the  way,  the  cor rec t  amount  i s  R432 

per  ton .  

DR NGUBANE:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The second po in t  i s  th is…[ in tervenes] .  10 

DR NGUBANE:    Sor ry,  I  hadn ’ t  f in ished.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay.  

DR NGUBANE:    So ,  i t  wasn ’ t  par t  o f  the  se t t lement  

negot ia t ions  w i th  a  second addendum or  anyth ing  l i ke  tha t  

i t  was s imp ly  purchas ing  coa l  fo r  a  year  because we  

needed the  coa l ,  w i thout  tha t  coa l  Hendr ina  Power  S ta t ion  

wou ld  go  out  o f  serv i ce .   Komat i  Power  S ta t ion  wou ld  go  

out  o f  serv ice ,  so  i t  was a  c r i t i ca l  i ssue tha t  we  had a  

supp ly  o f  coa l  fo r  a  year.  As Cha i rperson sa id ,  we l l  you 

make o ther  a r rangements  so  I  don ’ t  see where  now,  I ’m  20 

cont rad i c t ing  myse l f ,  sor ry,  you know.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  tha t ’s  a l r igh t .   The second po in t  i s  

th is ,  and I  want  to  read i t  f rom the  submiss ion  i t se l f  wh ich  

is  on  page 281 o f  Eskom Bund le  18  Cha i rperson.  

DR NGUBANE:    Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 281…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you reca l l ,  Dr  Ngubane,  whose idea  

th is  p re-payment  was,  I  know tha t  you sa id  Ms Dan ie ls  

came to  you w i th  the  paperwork  o r  the  submiss ion ,  I ’m  not  

sure  bu t  d id  you  get  to  know whether  i t  was her  idea o r  

whethe r  i t  was somebody e lse ’s  idea?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No Mr  Matshe la  Koko had s igned the  

document .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay so  you took i t  to  be  Mr  Koko ’s  

idea?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    A lso ,  there  was a lso  a  le t te r  f rom DMR 

which  was a lso  suggest ing  the  same th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  yes  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Can I  jus t  p iggyback  

on the  Cha i rperson ’s  quest ions because accord ing  to  Ms  

Dan ie ls  –  I  w i l l  no t  lose  focus o f  tha t  po in t ,  acco rd ing  to  

Ms Dan ie ls  you were  the  one who ca l led  her  on  or  about  

the  7 t h  o f  December  so…[ in tervenes] .  

DR NGUBANE:    Sor ry  I  phoned her?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  she says i n  he r  a f f idav i t  you were  20 

the  one who te lephoned he r,  on  or  about  the  7 t h  o f  

December  2015,  you sa id  to  he r,  

“Suzanne,  p lease ass is t  Mr  –  there  are  two 

Execut ives ,  Mr  Koko and Mr  Ano j  S ingh in  d ra f t ing  a 

submiss ion  tha t  wou ld  be  submi t ted   to  the  Board” ,  
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 She then se t  about  to  do  tha t ,  ge ts  the  in fo rmat ion  

f rom the  two Execut ives  in  o rder  to  pu t  together  th is  

document  I ’m  about  to  re fe r  you to .  The document  i s  then  

c i rcu la ted  to  the  Board  members  on  the  8 t h  o f  December,  

today f i ve  years  ago but  much la te r  in  the  day,  in  the 

even ing ,  i t ’s  c i r cu la ted  to  the  Board  members  fo r  a  

reso lu t ion  by  Round Rob in ,  tha t ’s  how she te l l s  the  

ev idence,  can you reca l l  whethe r  you ca l led  he r?  

DR NGUBANE:    Wel l ,  I ’m  thorough ly  d i sappo in ted  w i th  Ms  

Dan ie ls ,  you know,  I  re l ied  on  th i s  lady  fo r  eve ry th ing  a t  10 

Eskom,  she was  h igh ly  knowledgeab le ,  I  never  in i t ia ted  

anyth ing  w i th  –  I  d idn ’ t  even know about  th is  p ro jec t  un t i l  

she  brought  the  documenta t ion  to  me,  you know.   So,  I  

don ’ t  know why she shou ld  t ry  –  what  i s  she t ry ing  to  do ,  I  

mean,  I  was hard l y  invo l ved in  p r imary  energy issues  wh ich  

is  coa l ,  d iese l…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  jus t  unders tand,  he r  ev idence is  

tha t  you ca l led  to  say,  the  two Execut ives .  

DR NGUBANE:    No,  no .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.   Le t  me go to  the  po in t  I  20 

wanted to  make w i th  you Dr  Ngubane,  then we ’ re  on  page  

281,  page 281 pa ragraph 2 .1…[ in tervenes] .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  so  tha t  the  record  w i l l  be  c lea r,  

tha t ’s  page 281 o f  Eskom Bund le  18?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    18 ,  cor rec t  Cha i rperson,  thank you  



08 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 320 
 

Page 62 of 187 
 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you see tha t  Dr  Ngubane?  

Paragraph 2  says ,  

“Reso lu t ion  requ i red ,  then i t  says ,  i t  i s  hereby 

reso lved tha t  the  request  f rom the  Depar tment  o f  

Minera l  Resources is  he reby noted ” ,  

 Now you know tha t ,  tha t  request  i s  the  le t te r  you ’ re  

ta lk ing  about ,  Dr  Ngubane? 

DR NGUBANE:    Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  request  i s  tha t  le t te r  f rom the  

DMR you were  ta lk ing  about .  

DR NGUBANE:   Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then you have  paragraph 2 .1 .2 ,   

“The Group Ch ie f  Execut ive ,  together  w i th  the 

Group Execut ive  fo r  Genera t ion  and Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  

Off i cer  a re  he reby author i sed to  negot ia te  and 

conc lude a  pre -purchase o f  coa l  agreement  w i th  the  

proposed owners  o f  OCM (coa l  supp ly ) ” ,  

 Now the  proposed owners  was Tegeta .  20 

DR NGUBANE:    A t  th is  s tage no,  I  don ’ t  th ink  Tege ta  was  

owning OCM and th is  s tage.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  the  proposed owner.  

DR NGUBANE:    Oh,  I  see.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  was Tege ta .  
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DR NGUBANE:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now,  exp la in  th is  paragraph  then or  

s ta tement  because tha t ’s  the  requ i red  reso lu t ion .   You say  

the  pre -purchase o f  coa l  was to  buy i t  f rom OCM.  

DR NGUBANE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    D i rec t l y.  

DR NGUBANE:    Wel l ,  they  s t i l l  owned the  m ine,  I  mean,  

the  m ine was in  bus iness rescue,  owned by  G lencore .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That ’s  r igh t .  

DR NGUBANE:    I t  hadn ’ t  changed  hands.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    That ’s  r igh t .  

DR NGUBANE:    D id  i t  change hands?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  i t  hadn ’ t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    The po in t  tha t  Mr  Se leka is  mak ing ,  Dr  

Ngubane is  th is ,  he  says,  in  te rms  o f  the  ev idence tha t  you 

have a l ready g iven the  pre-payment ,  accord ing  to  you,  was 

to  be  an  ar rangement  o r  ag reement  be tween Eskom and 

OCM in  order  to  secure  coa l  fo r  12  months  bu t  he  says,  

when you look a t  th is  c lause here  i t  au thor ises  the  Group  

Ch ie f  Execut ive  fo r  Genera t ion  and the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  20 

Off i cer  no t  to  negot ia te  w i th  OCM for  th is  dea l  to  be  made  

fo r  a  p re-payment  bu t  i t  au thor ises  them to  negot ia te  w i th  

peop le  who are  no t  own ing the  m ine who are  proposed  

owners .   So,  he  is  say ing ,  a re  you  ab le  to  exp la in  why the 

reso lu t ion  sa id  these th ree  are  au thor i sed  or  were  
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au thor ised to  negot ia te ,  no t  w i th  OCM or  w i th  the  rescue  

prac t i t ioners  bu t  w i th  peop le  who d idn ’ t  own the  m ine a t  

the  t ime but  were  proposed owners ,  tha t ’s  what  he ’d  l i ke  

you to  dea l  w i th .  

DR NGUBANE:    Thank you fo r  c la r i f y ing ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE:    I  th ink  th is  comes f rom the  fac t  tha t  OCM 

had a l ready s ta ted  tha t  they were  se l l ing  the  m ine.   They 

were  tak ing  OCM out  o f  bus iness  rescue under  G lencore .   

Eskom – I  th ink  I  saw a  le t te r  to  tha t  e f fec t  and a l so  tha t  10 

two o ther  b idders  had fa l len  away and Tegeta  was the  on ly  

one remain ing  bu t  what  I  was not  unders tand ing  was,  

whethe r  in  fac t  he  meant  tha t  we a l ready knew tha t  Tegeta  

had bought  the  m ine,  I  don ’ t  th ink  so ,  bu t  we knew tha t  i t  

was in  the  process o f  be ing  bought ,  you know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  so  the  s ta tement  here  in  the  

reso lu t ion ,  wh ich  was sought  f rom the  Board  appears ,  on  

the  face  o f  i t ,  to  be  incons is ten t  w i th  the  exp lanat ion  tha t ,  

in  your  unders tand ing  as  the  Board ,  you were  dea l ing  he re ,  

d i rec t l y  w i th  OCM in  regard  to  the  pre -payment .  20 

DR NGUBANE:    Wel l ,  as  I  sa id  the  who le  th ing  i s  very  

complex  bu t  in  my unders tand ing  the  coa l  wou ld  come f rom 

OCM which  was s t i l l  runn ing  the  m ine,  even the  one who 

bought  i t ,  wou ld  be  bound by  tha t  sa le ,  tha t  payment  and 

so  the  coa l ,  w i l l ,  essent ia l l y,  have been ceded to  Eskom 
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even before  the  sa le ,  tha t  was  in  tha t  contex t ,  I  was  

say ing .   I  wasn ’ t  say ing  the  money w i l l  be  taken  to  the  

po tent ia l  buyer  in  my unders tand ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  the  money w i l l  go  to  the  supp l ie r.  

DR NGUBANE:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE:    Bu t  even when i t ’s  so ld ,  we wou ld  be  su re  

o f  coa l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  wou ld  have expected tha t  the  

negot ia t ions  wou ld  be  w i th  the  owners  –  the  then owners  o f  10 

the  m ine or  those who represented the  owners ,  maybe the  

bus iness rescue prac t i t ioners ,  i f  they  were  any p lace a t  the  

t ime.   P rec ise l y  on  the  bas i s  tha t  you g ive  tha t  i f  such an  

agreement  was conc luded w i th  the  cur ren t  owners  or  the i r  

rep resenta t i ves  tha t  agreement  wou ld  b ind  those who  

bought  the  m ine  i f  i t  was so ld .   So,  i f  tha t  approach i s  

cor rec t  then i t ’s  d i f f i cu l t  to  unders tand why the  Board  

wou ld  au thor ise  these th ree  o f f i c ia ls  the  CEO,  Ch ie f  

F inanc ia l  Off i ce r  and the  Group Execut ive  fo r  Genera t ion  

to  negot ia te  w i th  peop le  who are  p ropos ing  to  buy the  m ine  20 

and not  jus t  negot ia te ,  conc lude a  dea l  w i th  them ins tead  

o f  the  Board  say ing ,  negot ia te  and conc lude a  dea l  w i th  

the  cur ren t  owners  o f  the  m ine because these proposed  

owners  don ’ t  own  the  m ine ye t  so  why shou ld  you negot ia te  

w i th  them and conc lude a  dea l  w i th  them,  you see,  I  th ink  
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tha t ’s  where  there  are  quest ion  marks ,  you unders tand? 

DR NGUBANE:    I  do ,  I  do  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  and then the  urgency  o f  the 

mat te r,  D r  Ngubane,  because you  see the  DMR’s  l e t te r  i s  

pu t  together  on  the  4 t h ,  the  4 t h  o f  December  2015,  i t  i s  

s igned by  Mr  Koko on the  6 t h ,  two days la te r,  o f  December  

2015,  he  sent  i t  to  the  DMR,  he ’s  ask ing  fo r  the  DMR’s 

ass is tance.   The type o f  ass i s tance is  no t  spe l t  ou t ,  there ’s  

a  response f rom the  DMR which  is  undated but  s igned by  10 

Dr  Ramont ja ,  so  we don ’ t  know,  when exact ly  do  you  

rece ive  i t  bu t  apparent ly  i t  was par t  o f  the  package tha t  

went  to  the  Board .  In  tha t  response le t te r  ment ion  is  made 

o f  the  R1.7b i l l i on  l iab i l i t y  tha t  OCM might  s t i l l  have ,  i t ’s  no t  

c lea r  what  i s  t h is ,  un t i l  you  read the  a f f idav i t  o f  Dr  

Ramont ja  wh ich  he  says –  he  exp la ins  i t  by  re ference to  

rehab i l i ta t ion ,  Env i ronmenta l  Rehab i l i ta t ion  Fund.   Ment ion  

is  made o f  a  p re-payment  and Eskom shou ld  ac t i ve l y  ass is t  

in  tha t ,  tha t  i s  the  le t te r  f rom DMR.   Your  meet ing  –  i t ’s  no t  

even a  meet ing ,  I  beg your  pardon,  the  Round Rob in ,  tha t  20 

pack is  c i r cu la ted  to  the  Board  bu t  be fore  tha t  we have 

gone th rough the  dra f t  o f  the  submiss ion  yeste rday,  the  

dra f t  i s  a  submiss ion  to  IFC,  Investment  F inance 

Commi t tee ,  were  you aware  o f  tha t?  

DR NGUBANE:    Wel l ,  I  was aware  in  the  sense tha t  Ms 
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Dan ie ls  to ld  me tha t  IFC had ac tua l l y  taken a  dec i s ion  on  

the  emergency supp ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:  Ja ,  we l l  th is  i s  how –  f rom the  

documenta t ion ,  the  ev idence unfo lds .   A dra f t  i s  p repared  

before  i t ’s  c i r cu la ted  on  the  8 t h  o f  December,  today f i ve  

years  ago and i t  goes out  o f  Eskom r igh t ,  i t  goes to  Mr  Er i c  

Wood and Mr  Hower  [? ]  and Bus inessman.   Bus inessman 

wr i tes  an  emai l ,  he  says he  doesn ’ t  want  –  there ’s  a  

requ i rement  fo r  PFMA approva l ,  he  doesn ’ t  want  tha t  and 

number  two,  he  says,  th is  th ing  shou ld  no t  go  to  IFC,  i t  10 

shou ld  go  d i rec t l y  to  the  Board ,  were  you aware  o f  tha t?  

DR NGUBANE:    No,  no t  a t  a l l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And tha t ’s  how th is  document  changes  

f rom a  submiss ion  to  IFC to  a  submiss ion  to  the  Board .  

DR NGUBANE:    Bu t  tha t  can ’ t  be ,  Cha i rperson ,  in  an 

emergency e i the r  BTC can dec ide  or  i f  no t  IFC can dec ide  

on  amounts  l i ke  t h is .   So,  w i thout  a  recommendat ion  f rom,  

e i ther  BTC or  IFC th is  Board  Round Rob in  cannot  happen.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That ’s  impor tan t ,  Dr  Ngubane because 

i t  happened,  and let  me tel l  you how i t  happened.  20 

DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  then there is something very wrong.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is r ight .   So I  wi l l  g ive you the facts.  

So i t  gets changed.  We went through the evidence 

yesterday.  

DR NGUBANE:   Ja.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   From IFC – submission to IFC.  I t  is a  

submission to the board.   On the 8t h in the evening of  the 8 t h 

i t  is c i rculated to the board members to be decided upon by 

way of  a Round Robin.   Right .   I t  was only when one of  the 

board members approving the … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh I  am sorry Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Actual ly I  do remember now yesterday that  

i t  was Businessman who said the – the resolut ion should not 

– the matter should not  go to the Investments and Finance 10 

Commit tee.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  should go straight  to the board.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja there is an emai l  a long those l ine I  th ink 

Mr Seleka might  read i t  to you f rom Businessman I  th ink to 

Mr Koko and f rom Mr Koko to Ms Daniels i f  I  am not  

mistaken.  

DR NGUBANE:   No I  – I  was not  aware Chai rperson of  the 

background.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.   No i t  is  one of  those things that  

are st range because I  sa id to Ms Daniels i t  looks again l ike 

somebody f rom outside Eskom is giv ing inst ruct ions to  

people inside Eskom when people inside Eskom th ink this  

matter should go to the Finance and Investment Commit tee 
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he or she whoever he or she is says no,  no,  no you people 

take this to the board not  to the Invest  – Finance and 

Investment Commit tee.   And then that  is what happens.  

DR NGUBANE:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You know they obey.  

DR NGUBANE:   And Businessman is not  a DG.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And the Businessman is not  the DG. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   A lr ight .   And – and he says you know in 

this submission I  do not  want th is PFMA..  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Take i t  out .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The page reference to this is 453.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In the Bundle 18? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Eskom Bundle 18.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Assist  Dr  Ngubane to have – so that  

he can have – he can see what we are talk ing about.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What is the page? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Page 453.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   453.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   So he can see what was happening at  

Eskom whi le he was act ing chairperson or chairperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   He was the chairperson at  the t ime.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja he was the chairperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Molefe.  

DR NGUBANE:   But  th is – th is suggest ion is total ly inval id.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Indeed.  Indeed.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  might  not  be – i t  might  not  be a 

suggest ion Dr Ngubane.  You see the language there – I  

want the PFMA approval  part  removed.  

DR NGUBANE:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is not  I  am suggest ing.  

DR NGUBANE:   But  then the person does not  understand 10 

actual ly how the Publ ic Finance Management  Act  works.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja maybe he does not  care about that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja I  was about to say that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja maybe he does not  care about that .   

Maybe his at t i tude is you people do not  te l l  me about PFMA 

– no and do not  te l l  me about the – the Investment 

Commit tee this th ing must  go to the ful l  board.   He says I  

a lso think i t  should be ful l  board not  IFC.  Ja.   Okay Mr 

Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   So – so then Dr 20 

Ngubane so that  is  the evolut ion of  th is document.   I t  

changes and changes and ul t imate ly i t  goes to the board – 

this emai l  is on the 7 December.  

DR NGUBANE:   R ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The board receives the pack on the 8 
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December accord ing to the evidence led yesterday for a 

Round Robin.   So the board has not  received a not ice for a  

meet ing.  

DR NGUBANE:   No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Correct  

DR NGUBANE:   You are r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   There is no agenda c irculated a few 

weeks beforehand or two weeks beforehand. 

DR NGUBANE:   Chai rperson that  is  the nature of  an 

emergency.   Those processes are suspended.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja – no I  th ink that  is a fa i r  point .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

DR NGUBANE:   I  th ink – I  th ink 32.10.34 are Procurement 

Procedure descr ibes the emergency.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Emergency.  

DR NGUBANE:   Procurement.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

DR NGUBANE:   [ Inaudible]  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  is a point .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   No let  me wri te that  emergency 

down in big let ters and I  wi l l  come to i t .   So the board then in 

the emai l  f rom Ms Danie ls is asked to decide on th is by 12 

midday on the 9 December.   Wel l  I  do not  know whether you 

recal l  that?  We can f ind the emai l  to you f rom Ms Daniels.  



08 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 320 
 

Page 72 of 187 
 

DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  we do not  need to Chai rperson 

because … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR NGUBANE:   I t  would fol low the – emergency.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja that  is r ight  ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then as Verushni  Naidoo on the same 

evening I  th ink af ter nine she says I  approve and ment ions 

points there one of  which is  the matter should go to IFC.   

That  is the evening of  the 8t h.   And Ms Daniels says she 10 

acted on that  to  ca l l  an IFC in  the morning of  the 9 t h 

December.   An IFC started at  n ine o’clock meet ing of  IFC 

started at  nine o’c lock.   You – do you know that? 

DR NGUBANE:   No I  do not  know that  because that  actual ly 

inval idates that  Round Robin completely.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   Yes you are r ight  because you gave 

your approval  to the submission.  

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   At  8:34 on the 9 December before IFC 

had i ts meet ing.  20 

DR NGUBANE:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l  need I  go any further there.   So this  

Round Robin is inval idated.  

DR NGUBANE:   Ja Si r  absolutely ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So the emergency – can I  come to the 
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emergency issue?  What was – what was the emergency 

here? 

DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  i f  by put t ing Opt imum Coal Mining into 

business rescue we were actual ly  saying that  i t  cannot t rade 

anymore.   So i f  i t  was not  t rading there would be no coal  

supply to  Hendrina and Komat i  Power Stat ions.   That  was 

the essence of  the emergency.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So that  is how you understood i t  or  

that  is how i t  was put  to you? 

DR NGUBANE:   Essent ia l ly when she went wi th me – wi th – 10 

through this document wi th me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

DR NGUBANE:   That  was the understanding.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Wel l  I  appreciate you are not  a 

lawyer but  the business rescue pract i t ioners when they take 

over as business rescue.  

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   As he word says rescue – business 

rescue they are t ry ing to rescue that  business.   The business 

wi l l  t rade that  is  why Tegeta is able to come and be the 20 

middle man between you and OCM.  They get  coal  f rom OCM 

and supply to Eskom.  Because that  business can st i l l  t rade.   

I t  is t ry ing to come out  of  the di ff icul t ies i t  f inds i tsel f  in.   To 

be rescued.   

 But  let  us – you understand i t?  
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DR NGUBANE:   Ja.   But  I  – I  –  i t  is contrary to  what I  

thought business rescue was about.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja because i t  is not  l iquidat ion.  

DR NGUBANE:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   They are not  being l iquidated.  

DR NGUBANE:   Sure.   Al r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The business rescue comes with  a plan 

how to rescue this business and they…he business rescue 

comes with a plan how to rescue this business and they. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are being helped to surv ive.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

DR NGUBANE:   A lr ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja al r ight .   You are being helped to 

surv ive.  

DR NGUBANE:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  you know what happened to the – 

your  decision for  pre-payment Dr Ngubane? By now you 

know by then I  do not  know whether  did you know.  

DR NGUBANE:   No.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  gets converted into a guarantee.  

DR NGUBANE:   No that  … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja i t  is … 

DR NGUBANE:   Is a mystery.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   i t  is a mystery? 
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DR NGUBANE:   Ja because i t  is not  what the resolut ion was 

saying.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is r ight .   So how did i t  happen 

because i t  happened the next  day on the 10 December? 

DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  again you see I  cannot bel ieve that  Ms 

Daniels fa i led to inform the board.   Wel l  i t  reached me as 

chairperson about  th is development .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  what do you say about  the execut ives 

who converted i t  because she did not  s ign the guarantee 

somebody e lse signed i t .  10 

DR NGUBANE:   No,  no I  am just  ta lk ing in terms of  th is has 

happened. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR NGUBANE:   Because she is the custodian of  

governance.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  see.  

DR NGUBANE:   In the company.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes so she never to ld you this? 

DR NGUBANE:   No,  no never did.   I  only learnt  about  th is  

somewhere in  Apr i l  as I  was about to leave Eskom. 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

DR NGUBANE:   You know i t  came through the media.   

Otherwise there was never  a submission to say this person 

signed an i l legal  order or whatever.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   And you know that  the guarantee was in  

favour of  Tegeta and not  OCM. 

DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  that  is what I  learnt .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So completely the ant i thesis to … 

DR NGUBANE:   No absolutely.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The resolut ion.  

DR NGUBANE:   Which undermined th is whole thing.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  –  i t  ra ises the quest ion Dr Ngubane 

which I  k ind of  said last  t ime when you were here the 10 

commission has to look at .   We have to remain open minded 

about var ious issues and conclude when al l  the evidence is  

in.   But  I  said in  effect  one cannot close one’s eyes to a 

certain l ine of  th inking.  

DR NGUBANE:   R ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  is  important  to put  i t  to  people who 

were involved so that  one hears what they have to say about  

i t .   I t  ra ises the quest ion of  whether there were people 

outside of  Eskom who may have been manipulat ing Eskom 

processes for thei r  own agendas and that  includes the issue 20 

of  the suspension of  the execut ives.   So i t  ra ises that  

quest ion whether  there were people outside of  Eskom who 

were manipulat ing Eskom processes in order to achieve or 

pursue thei r  own goals.   I  mean in regard to th is we have 

just  referred to the fact  that  here is  Businessman sending an 
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emai l  saying take out  the PFMA approval  I  do not  want i t .   I  

want  i t  removed.  Do not  send this  th ing to the IFC i t  must  go 

to the ful l  board.   We have just  to ld you about Mr Henk 

Bester ’s evidence that  al ready in 2014 he says he was told 

by Mr Sal im Essa the next  boss of  Eskom is Mr Br ian Molefe 

and then of  course you have the Transnet  th ings but  wi th 

regard to Eskom you then have the evidence of  –  f rom Abram 

Masonga and Ms Daniels which says before the board could 

know about th is idea of  suspensions because the board only 

got  to know about that  f rom the evidence that  I  have heard 10 

on the morning of  the 11t h or on the 11t h March.   But  before 

the board could discuss this al ready on the 10t h March the 

day before i f  Ms Daniels evidence is correct  and i f  Mr 

Masonga’s evidence is correct  Mr – Mr Sal im Essa knew 

about i t  and knew the names of  the execut ives who would be 

suspended and of  course Mr Koko you know accord ing to  

their  evidence.   And i f  thei r  ev idence is correct  Mr Koko 

denies that  such a – those meet ings happened.  But  i f  I  

evaluate the evidence at  the end and i f  I  u l t imately f ind that  

indeed those meet ings did take place which involved Mr 20 

Sal im Essa and Mr Koko on the 10 March and that  what was 

said included that  the four execut ives would be suspended 

according to Mr Masonga he goes further he says,  Mr Koko 

said that  al though he would be one of  the execut ives to be 

suspended ul t imately he would come back af ter  the 
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suspension but  the other three would not  come back.   That  is 

what Mr Masonga says.   Of  course Mr – as I  said Mr Koko 

denies that .   But  i f  – i f  the – i f  i t  was t rue – i f  i t  were to be 

t rue that  that  meet ing d id take place and that  is what was 

discussed then i t  would be d i ff icu l t  not  to – to ser iously 

consider whether there was not  one or more people outside 

of  Eskom who were manipulat ing ei ther processes wi thin  

Eskom or  even manipulat ing some people wi thin Eskom for 

their  own purposes.   And i t  is important  that  al l  of  us look at  

these issues and give our own input  because i f  i t  d id  happen 10 

i t  is not  something that  should happen – that  should have 

happened. 

DR NGUBANE:   Agree Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So Dr Ngubane i t  would seem that  these 

execut ives were on the f rol ic of  thei r  own.  

DR NGUBANE:   That  was? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  these execut ives were on a f rol ic of  

their  own.  

DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  qui te clear ly.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   From this informat ion here.  

DR NGUBANE:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   And let  me tel l  you I  do not  know – he – I  

do not  know whether you are aware when Mr Anoj  S ingh was 

at  the Parl iamentary Port fo l io Commit tee he explains the 
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rat ionale for the guarantee when asked about i t  in th is way.   

He says he concluded – he issued that  guarantee because 

Eskom could not  obtain coal  immediate ly f rom Tegeta.  The 

agreement – the underly ing agreement – that  agreement was 

concluded between Eskom and Tegeta for the supply of  coal  

which is your – to which your resolut ion relates a pre-

purchase of  coal .   I t  was not  concluded with  OCM i t  was 

concluded as per that  paragraph 2.1.  

DR NGUBANE:   But  there is no ment ion of  Tegeta.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes but  the agreement was concluded 10 

wi th Tegeta.  

DR NGUBANE:   A lr ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course the resolut ion did not  say they 

must  negot iate and conclude a deal  wi th OCM. 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The resolut ion of  the board said they must  

negot iate – they should negot iate and conclude that  the deal  

wi th the proposed owners of  [00:17:45] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which they ident i f ied as Tegeta.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   And . . .  

DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  Chai rperson just  to – wel l  devi l ’s 

advocate.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR NGUBANE:   Obviously once the buyer takes over there 
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would have to be negot iat ions about the coal  supply 

agreement and the pr ices again and so on.   So negot iat ing 

wi th the new owner is inevi table because there wi l l  obviously 

be regulatory issues that  need to be i roned out .    

CHAIRPERSON:   No.   No,  no I  understand but  based on the 

idea of  an emergency the emergency i f  there was one. 

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Dictated that  the deal  that  needed to be 

concluded was wi th OCM. 

DR NGUBANE:   That  is correct .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  there were to  be any negot iat ions wi th 

the proposed buyers or owners that  could come later.  

DR NGUBANE:   That  is r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  was not  urgent .   What was urgent  was 

a deal  wi th OCM. 

DR NGUBANE:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And of  course i f  the posi t ion was that  i f  

Eskom negot iated wi th OCM and concluded a deal  that  bi l l  

that  deal  would be binding on the buyers.  There would be no 

need for other  negot iat ions wi th  the buyers.   But  i f  i t  was not  20 

going to be binding on the buyers then there may have been 

a need for negot ia t ions.   You understand? 

DR NGUBANE:   I  do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   So the agreement – 
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now we are on the 10 December.  

DR NGUBANE:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  agreement  wi th Tegeta is concluded 

on the very day the 10 December but  i t  has suspensive 

condi t ions.  

DR NGUBANE:   To buy coal .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja pre-purchase of  coal .  

DR NGUBANE:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So on page 719 of  th is bundle – Eskom 

Bundle 18.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   719? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   719.   And i t  is  s igned by Mr Anoj  Singh 

on behal f  of  Eskom on page 722.   You see i t  on 719?  

Agreement regard ing the pre-purchase of  coal  f rom – i t  says 

Opt imum Coal.  

DR NGUBANE:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You see that  

DR NGUBANE:   I  see that .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  see who signs on page 722.   Page 

722.  20 

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   For Tegeta Explorat ion and Resources 10 

December 2015 [00:20:51] .   And Mr Singh at  the top.   There 

is two things I  can go quickly to the one aspect .   So this  

agreement is then subject  to suspensive condi t ions and Mr 
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S ingh says to the Par l iamentary Port fo l io Commit tee.   I  d id  

th is the guarantee because Eskom could not  in terms of  th is  

agreement obtain coal  immediately  f rom Tegeta because of  

the suspensive condi t ions.   There crumbl ing the theory of  an 

emergency.   Do you fol low? 

DR NGUBANE:   I  do but  I  mean probably the – the mistake 

was to say the resolut ion grants the r ight  to  negot iate and 

conclude.   Normal ly in many tender processes the mandate 

is g iven to the negot iat ing team to negot iate but  not  

conclude.   This forces the issue to come back to the BTC 10 

where – which have a board commit tee.   Here this we did not  

include that .   I  th ink th is is what led to th is type of  th ing.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So the mistake was on the part  of  what  

the board? 

DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  I  mean i t  is now signed on behal f  of  the 

board a mandate which was not  g iven di rect ly  l ike this.   I t  

was just  a mandate to negot iate.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No i t  a lso said to conclude.  

DR NGUBANE:   Ja to conclude yes but  on the basis of  what  

was before us.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  let  me ask this quest ion.   At  the t ime 

that  th is Round Robin Resolut ion was that  – by the t ime that  

you considered i t .  

DR NGUBANE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Were you aware that  i t  was saying the 
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board was author is ing the three off ic ia ls Group Execut ive,  

Chief  Execut ive,  Group Execut ive for Generat ion and the 

CFO to negot iate and conclude a deal  not  wi th OCM but wi th 

the so cal led proposed owners of  OCM.  Did you understand 

that  at  the t ime or were you under a di fferent  understanding 

that  something you picked up later  – or  you heard about 

later? 

DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  I  must  say no that  one beat  me 

because I  was thinking in terms of  OCM and the – the 

business rescue people.   But  c lear ly  here. . .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

DR NGUBANE:   I t  g ives them author i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  

DR NGUBANE:   To go outside.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Do you – do you – are you able to 

throw l ight  on whether maybe other members of  the board 

were under the same understanding as yoursel f  maybe 

through d iscussion af terwards or do you not  know whether 

other members of  the board did understand i t  that  th is way 

and approved i t  l ike that? 20 

DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  I  th ink on average most  people would 

have thought what I  d id th ink that  i t  was to buy pre-

purchased coal .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR NGUBANE:   From OCM. 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Dr Ngubane then i f  go 

– that  is the agreement – go to page 723.  

DR NGUBANE:   Of  my… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   7 – yes of… 

DR NGUBANE:   This one? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Where we were looking at  the agreement 

– Eskom Bundle 18.  

DR NGUBANE:   Sorry page? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   723.  10 

DR NGUBANE:   723.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now there Businessman again ra ises his  

head.   There is an emai l  f rom Businessman to Mr Matshela 

Koko on the 10 December 2012 and there the subject  is two-

pager and he deals wi th  what  should go into the construct ion 

of  the guarantee.   Three pager between Tegeta and Eskom 

not  OCM Tegeta and Eskom sal ient  points Eskom wi l l  provide 

bank guarantee for  R1.68 bi l l ion.   See piece we understand 

those are condi t ion precedents for release is Sect ion 11 

approval  f rom DMR Compet i t ions Commission approval  and 20 

then the rest  of  i t .   That  document  gets to be forwarded to 

Ms Suzanne Daniels f rom Matshela2010@yahoo.com.  These 

condi t ions i f  you go to page 726 – 725,  26 i t  is an emai l  on 

7:25 f rom Ms Daniels on the 10 December st i l l  to Mr 

Rishaban Moodley of  CDH and she is asking for  thei r  

mailto:Matshela2010@yahoo.com
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assistance in draf t ing the agreement.  

CHAIRPERSON:   CDH I  take i t  to Cl i ff  Decker? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   CDH yes correct  Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cl i ff  Decker Hofmeyr.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   She – that  is  what  she test i f ied 

yesterday.   And i f  you look at  the document on page 726 

which she says was an annexure to that  emai l  i t  reproduces 

those points you saw in the emai l  of  Businessman on the 10 

previous page which is the point  the Chai rperson has been 

emphasising that  you see the st r ings being pul led on Eskom 

by somebody f rom outs ide of  Eskom.  You see that? 

DR NGUBANE:   Ja.   I  do.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Hm.  That  is the state capture that  is 

being invest igated.   I  th ink I  am done not  to ment ion your  

emai ls between yoursel f  and Businessman.  

DR NGUBANE:   With? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   You and Businessman.  

DR NGUBANE:   Businessman? 20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   That  came in June 2016.  

DR NGUBANE:   Wel l  i t  happened.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   I t  is water  under the br idge.  Chair  

that  I  th ink are the quest ions I  had for Dr Ngubane.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  –  wel l  Dr  Ngubane I  want to hear 
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whether having learnt  what you have learnt ,  having read 

what you have read,  having heard what you have heard 

about matters or th ings that  were happening at  Eskom at  the 

t ime that  you were Chai rperson whether you do not  see the 

possibi l i ty – you do not  concede at  least  to the possibi l i ty 

that  dur ing your t ime at  Eskom there may have been people 

outside of  Eskom who were manipulat ing or who may have 

been manipulat ing processes wi th in Eskom.  Maybe also 

manipulat ing or using people wi thin Eskom for thei r  own 

agendas and before you respond I  go back to just  giv ing you 10 

the picture that  emerges and I  am not  saying that  that  is  

what I  bel ieve to be the posi t ion but  i t  is something I  cannot  

ignore as I  hear  more and more evidence.   You have a 

si tuat ion where in 2010, December the New Age suggests.   

Maybe i t  is more than a suggest ion.   [ laughs]   That  Mr Br ian 

Molefe is  going to  be the new Transnet Group CEO.  He does 

become the new Transnet CEO.  You have. . .    

 Of  course,  certain th ings happened at  Transnet ,  

t ransact ions and al legat ions of  i r regular i t ies whi le he is  

there.    20 

 And there,  accord ing to Mr Henk Bester,  i t  was at  some 

stage in 2014,  Mr Sal im Essa tel ls  him, Mr Br ian Molefe is  

going to be the new boss of  Eskom.  And then you and your  

other members of  the board are new at  Eskom.   

 And out  of  the blue,  the news comes that  there must  be 
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an inquiry.   Four execut ives must  be suspended at  the same 

t ime.   

 When you hear about  th is,  you are opposed to th is  and 

you want to hear f rom the shareholder minister.   She comes 

and she says what she said and af ter that ,  the board goes 

along.    

 But  the day before,  namely the 10t h,  now we hear that 

Mr Sal im Essa was meet ing wi th Mr Koko and with 

Ms Daniels and some other t ime on the same day wi th  

Mr Abraham Masango.   10 

 And saying to Ms Daniels:   What is the procedure that  

must  be fol lowed i f  you want  to  suspend an execut ive at  

Eskom?  Accord ing to Ms Daniels,  that  is  what  Mr Sal im 

Essa asked,  you know.   

 And then Mr Masango has his version also in terms of  

what was sa id.   And then mister. . .   Af ter the execut ives are 

gone, are suspended, indeed three do not  come back.   Qui te  

some money is then to – to let  them go.   Mr Koko does come 

back.    

 And in the meant ime, I  th ink about  a month or so af ter  20 

the suspensions of  the execut ives,  Mr Br ian Molefe comes.  

Is seconded to Eskom.   

 And then,  of  course,  on this evidence and Mr Koko is  

st i l l  go ing to come to put  his side of  the story on some of  the 

things about th is emai l  and so on.    
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 But  on the face of  i t ,  i t  looks l ike,  somebody f rom 

outside,  Businessman is k ind of  d ictat ing to Mr Koko that  

certain things must  happen and Mr Koko passes this on to  

Ms Daniels and so on and so on.    

 So when you look at  al l  of  those th ings and,  of  course,  

certain t ransact ions happened at  Eskom and there are 

al legat ions of  i r regular i t ies about certain t ransact ions.    

 When you know what you know now, and when I  say 

know, I  accept  that  we have not  heard al l  the evidence.   We 

must st i l l  here more.    10 

 But  on the face of  i t ,  do you think that  the possib i l i ty  

that  there were people outside of  Eskom who may have been 

manipulat ing Eskom processes,  maybe also manipulated 

some people wi thin Eskom or using them for thei r  own 

agenda, is farfetched? 

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  i t  is qui te disturbing because what we 

read here should never have happened.  I  mean,  people 

actual ly dictat ing to us,  remove PFMA, the board must  do 

this.    

 So.   However,  one must  a lso bear in mind that  I  th ink i t  20 

is a bigger problem we have as a count ry.   The issue of  

governance.   So I  do not  know how to f ind i t  but  I  see i t  as a 

problem that  the count ry faces.    

 Why is informat ion leaking. . .   I  mean, there were 

accusat ions,  for  instance,  that  the Gupta fami ly was 
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appoint ing ministers.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    Things l ike that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    You know.  Why are we having a l l  these 

sorts of  th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  

DR NGUBANE :    So the suggest ion that  there were people 

manipulat ing,  I  agree but  I  th ink i t  is a b igger problem. 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  Ja,  okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Chai r,  may . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Anything ar is ing? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    And may I?  [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Dr Ngubane, I  had said that  I  wi l l  touch 

on the penal t ies.   You know those penal t ies were set t led. . .   

Wel l ,  there was a set t lement agreement wi th  Tegeta,  

ul t imately,  in 2017 on those penal t ies.  

DR NGUBANE :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    You know that? 20 

DR NGUBANE :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    The R 2.17 bi l l ion . . . [ intervenes]   

DR NGUBANE :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .was set t led at  R 599 mi l l ion in terms 

of  the agreement.   I t  is a signi f icant  drop.  
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DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  as far as I  know, i t  was the 

appl icat ion process . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    That  came to that .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    And i f  OCM had gone to arbi t rat ion 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    . . .most  probably they would have got  the 

same resul ts.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  is  i t  not  the posi t ion that  i t  was not  the 

resul t  of  arbi t rat ion,  i t  was the resul t  of  negot iat ions? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You remember when you said – when you 

said – I  th ink you said Mr Br ian Molefe adopted a hard 

at t i tude towards OCM because they were taken al l  the cream 

and giving i t  to overseas and giving you al l  the rubbish.  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And so on.   And I  said:   Wel l ,  you know,  I  

th ink Mr Seleka wi l l  say but  they might  not  have been hard 20 

on Tegeta.    

 So the picture that  emerges – emerged, at  least ,  on what 

we know now.  Mr Br ian Molefe is s t i l l  going to come and put  

his side of  the story and put  his perspect ive.   Maybe that  wi l l  

change when he has done that .    
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 But  at  th is stage,  the picture seems to be that  when 

OCM was there,  Mr Br ian Molefe. . .   Eskom, through Mr Brian 

Molefe,  did not  even want to negot iate.  

DR NGUBANE :    I  see.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And yet ,  when i t  was Tegeta,  one,  they are 

prepared to negot iate.   Not  just  negot iate.   Agree to a 

signi f icant  reduct ion of  the penal t ies f rom two comma 

something b i l l ion to . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    To R 599 mi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    To R 599 mi l l ion.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    And the story does not  end there 

Dr Ngubane.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Then there are deduct ions on that  

amount but  reduces i t  further to R 255 mi l l ion.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And i t  does not  end there.   Tegeta is  

given 20-months to pay in insta lments.   But  i t  does not  end 

there.   Tegeta defaul ts af ter paying R 121 mi l l ion.   And i t  

remains wi th a balance of  over R 13 mi l l ion before i t  goes 20 

into business rescue.   And Eskom has lost .  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.   Wel l ,  I  th ink Ms Daniels would have 

bet ter knowledge of  these processes because she was 

obviously a legal  person,  advisor,  the company secretary.   

But  on the face of  i t ,  there is  a discrepancy that  is  
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s igni f icant ,  you know.   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Chai r,  I  am going to f inal ise wi th th is  

because this is . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    This is too important .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ms Daniels has not  f in ished test i fy ing 

Dr Ngubane.  She has an emai l  at tached to her aff idavi t  and 

I  want to get  your view on this.   As we talk about  the 

ser iousness of  the cont rol  and the lack of  corporate 10 

governance.  

 On the same bundle,  Eskom Bundle 18,  page 288.   I  am 

going to take you back and show you what is happening 

wi thin your board.   Not  by yoursel f .   Page 288.  

 Now th is is  an emai l  exchange f rom the 

22n d of  November 2015.  I t  is the bui ld-up to December 2015.  

I t  is a paral le l  process.   Bear in mind,  because Tegeta wants 

to acqui re OCM.  Tegeta wants to acquire OCM. 

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    They have offered R 2.1 b i l l ion to buy 20 

that  mine.   And the evidence,  as we see i t ,  is that  th is 

prepayment resolut ion we went through which becomes a 

guarantee.    

 The actual  intension is to assist  Tegeta in acqui r ing 

OCM but before they could conclude thei r  agreement,  which 



08 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 320 
 

Page 93 of 187 
 

is concluded on the 10t h.  

 Incidental ly,  on the 10t h of  December,  the very day 

Mr Anoj  Singh is s igning this guarantee and the pre-purchase 

agreement,  you – before that ,  see this  emai l  

22n d of  November 2015,  is  f rom Mr Mark Pamensky,  one of  

your board members.  

 He is wri t ing to athol@ann7.com and there is Varoom(?).   

Meet ing of  even date,  is the subject  and he says:  

“Hi  Chai r.   Thank you for the conversat ion 

. . . [ intervenes]   10 

[Part ies intervening each other – unclear. ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Who is the chair  he is referr ing to? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Sorry Chai r? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Who is the chair  he is referr ing to? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    The chai rperson seems to be Mr Athol  

Gupta,  who . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Who was. . .   Let  us see.   I f  you turn the 

page Chai r,  he is  the Chairman of  TMA.  The signature on 

the emai l  that  I  wi l l  come to af ter th is.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So he says:  

“Hi  Chai r.   Thank you for the conversat ion today.   I  

wi l l  act ion al l  the i tems and ensure that  they are 

completed.   I  wi l l  send an emai l  to Terry regard ing 



08 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 320 
 

Page 94 of 187 
 

the lead independent. ”  

 Now I  want to get  to the paragraph I  want to.  

“We wi l l  have the Shiva Uranium Board 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   I  am sorry Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON :    So that  emai l  address – that  emai l  at  page 

288,  Bundle 18 of  Eskom is f rom Mr Mark Pamensky? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And on the emai l  address 10 

markpam2@mark.com.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then there is  mai l  to  

markpam2@mark.com, dated 22 November 2015 at  07:40 in 

the morning or pm. 

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  is pm.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  the af ternoon.  Ja.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    At  19:40.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Twenty to eight .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  pm.  And then i t  is addressed to 

athol@ann7.com.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Mai l  to athol@ann7.com.  And i t  is  copied 

to varoom@shiva.com.  Mai l  to varoom@shiva.com.  And the 
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subject  is:   Meet ing of  even date.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  just  wanted to capture that  into the 

record.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Thank you Chai r.   And I  have read,  

Hi  Chai r.   Then i t  goes on to other  paragraphs.   Paragraphs 

number 1 to 2,  3,  4,  start ing wi th  the words:   In terms of . . .   I t  

says:  10 

“ In  terms of  the Investment Commit tee,  I  am 

avai lab le to start  st raight  away. ”  

 Now Chai r. . .   Dr Ngubane, Mr Pamensky,  Mark 

Pamensky,  at  th is t ime, he is a member of  the board of  

Eskom.  This is November 2015.   

CHAIRPERSON :    In November 2015? 

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes? 

CHAIRPERSON :    You conf i rm? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    You conf i rm? 20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    He says:  

“ In  terms of  the Investment Commit tee,  I  am 

avai lab le. . . ”  
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 Oh,  sorry.   He was the Chai rperson of  the IFC.  He is  the 

one who recused himsel f  in December.  

DR NGUBANE :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So:  

“ In  terms of  the Investment Commit tee,  I  am 

avai lab le to start  st raight  away.    

As I  am at  the tai l  end of  the main accusat ion of  

Opt imum Coal,  p lease ensure that  a condi t ion 

precedent is that  the R 2 bi l l ion claim f rom Eskom is  

wi thdrawn or i t  becomes the se l ler ’s  problem.   10 

I  am happy to get  involved to assist  wi th the 

acquisi t ion and monthly monitor ing/analysing of  al l  

investments f rom today.  

I  can meet anyone you requi re.  

I f  you need me in India or Dubai  to d iscuss,  I  wi l l  

meet you there.  

Travel  safe and looking forward to seeing you soon.  

Once again,  thank you for today.  

Kind regards,  Mark. ”  

 He seems to be ta lk ing about Tegeta requi r ing Opt imum.   20 

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    He is te l l ing this Mr Athol  Gupta:   Let  the 

condi t ion precedent of  R 2 bi l l ion,  which is the penal t ies,  let  

i t  be wi thdrawn or let  i t  be the problem of  the sel ler of  

Opt imum.  Do you see that?  
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DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Before the deal  is  made.  And you were 

sketching out  the problem in corporate governance.   The 

problem which seems to be inherent  in our system.  You talk 

of  i t .   This cannot be any more evident  of  that  problem.   

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    You see that?  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja,  ja.   I  see that .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Did he . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Okay Dr Ngubane, I  know i t  might  be 10 

a long day but  i t  is important  for the recording to capture 

your responses.  

DR NGUBANE :    Okay.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   [ laughs]    

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You said you do see that .   Is that  r ight? 

DR NGUBANE :    I  do see that  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Ja.  

DR NGUBANE :    And i t  is unfortunate.   Let  me put  i t  l ike 

that .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    H’m.  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Did you suspect  anything on h is  part  at  

the t ime?  

DR NGUBANE :    No,  not  at  a l l .  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Did you know that  he was a director,  my 

understanding,  Oakbay?  

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  he had recused himsel f  f rom 

. . . [ intervenes]   

[Part ies intervening each other – unclear]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . . that  te l ls the story  

DR NGUBANE :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  te l ls the story.  

DR NGUBANE :    But . . .   Wel l ,  we d id not  know that  he was 

. . . [ intervenes]   10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.  

DR NGUBANE :    . . . that  act ive.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   Because the emai l  above,  which is 

forwarded,  i t  seems f rom Athol  Gupta on the 

22n d of  November.   I t  is sent  to  Giovanni  at  the same 

meet ing and to Rajesh Gupta Tony.   tony@sahara.co.za.   But  

i t  does not  end there Mr Ngubane.   

 And this may wel l  explain what we were talk ing about,  

the penal t ies.   A sign i f icant  drop of  the penal t ies f rom 

R 2.1 bi l l ion to  f ive.   F ive wi th  deduct ions made i t ,  i t  20 

becomes to R 255 mi l l ion.   Even that  R 2.5 mi l l ion is only 

part ly paid.  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And then Tegeta defaul ts.   You turn to  

the next  page.   Go to the next  page.    
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DR NGUBANE :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    This is on the day of  the agreement on 

both sides between OCM and Tegeta and between Tegeta 

and Eskom, which is Mr S ingh’s doing.    

 The emai l  below that  page,  page 289,  Eskom Bundle 18 

is on the 10t h of  December 2015 at  22:32.    

 Now that  is twenty eight  minutes before eleven at  night .   

A lso coming f rom Mr Mark Pamensky,  the same emai l  

address.   Oh, no.   This is mark@blts.co.za.   Do you know 

what b- l - t -s stands for Dr Ngubane?  10 

DR NGUBANE :    I . . .   Sorry? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Do you know what b- l - t -s stands for?  

DR NGUBANE :    Sorry,  just . . .  which . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Where is BLT? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    In the middle of  – his emai l  address 

Chairperson.   mark@blts.co.za.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Because that  is the f i rst . . .   You 

know, you always have to read f rom bot tom up,  these emai ls.   

Just  show Dr Ngubane.  20 

DR NGUBANE :    No,  no.   I  see.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    You see i t?  

DR NGUBANE :    I  see,  ja.   mark@bl ts.co.za.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.  

DR NGUBANE :    Right .  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Do you know what that  BLTS stands for?  

DR NGUBANE :    I  am sure . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  is a company also.  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja,  i t  is a company address.   I  am sure.   

ADV SELEKA SC :    So he says . . . [ intervenes]   

DR NGUBANE :    I t  was Blue Label .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh,  Blue Label?  

DR NGUBANE :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  he worked for Blue Label?  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.    10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    He says:   Hi  Chai r.   The emai l . . .   Wel l ,  

we do not  see who i t  is addressed to but  you see the 

response at  the top.   Let  us read the message f i rst .   I t  says:  

“Hi  Chai r.   Congratulat ions! ”  

 Then there is that  word in brackets.   “(Mazel  tov)” .   You 

can assist  us there Dr Ngubane.   

“Congratulat ion on a br i l l iant  and wel l - thought out  

plan and st rategized acquis i t ion of  the Opt imum 

Group of  Companies.    

Wel l  done!   I  am proud of  you al l .    20 

This is only the beginning of  the resource group 

growth and many more to come into play.   

I  am more than sure that  you and the team wi l l  make 

a huge success of  th is acquisi t ion.  

I  wish you al l  the success on the deal .  
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The hard work begins now and we as the team wi l l  

produce the resul ts. ”  

 We as the team wi l l  produce the resul ts.   Next :  

“Let  me know when you are ready to discuss the 

operat ional  implementat ion.  

I  am t ruly proud to be part  of  th is group.  

Enjoy the wel l -deserved hol iday.  

Mark. ”  

DR NGUBANE :    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    10 

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  Chairperson th is capi tal  has met i ts  

best .   [Speaker not  c lear. ]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Within the board.   [ laughs]   Ja,  I  can 

only p icture,  punching the air  wi th h is f ist .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Dr Ngubane.  I f  you go back to  

Mr Pamensky’s let ter or emai l  at  288,  the one where 

Mr Seleka starts,  which is addressed to Mr Athol  Gupta.  

 I t  seems to me that  i f  you ask somebody to make 20 

another company wi thdraw a claim of  R 2 b i l l ion,  must  be 

that  you think that  that  person is very powerful .  

DR NGUBANE :    H’m.  Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    By any standards,  that  is a huge claim. 

DR NGUBANE :    H’m.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    To expect  that  that  person can get  i t  

wi thdrawn.  I t  just  seems that  you must  be thinking – so 

Mr Pamensky must  have been thinking that  Athol  was 

capable of  achieving that .    

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  a sent iment that  you f ind also – 

that  i t  agrees(?) wi th you? 

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  I  a lways thought i t  was the arbi t rator.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    But  now i t  is c lear ly the . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  the negot iat ions.  

DR NGUBANE :    [Speaker not  c lear  – speaking too sof t . ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Okay al r ight .   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   No,  i t  was not  the arbi t rator at  a l l .   

They set t led,  saying there were errors in the ca lcu lat ions.   

So that  is what  they said.   But  go back to page 289 

Dr Ngubane, so we can. . .   You see there is a response then 

at  the top of  that  page?  A response to Mr Mark Pamensky’s 

emai l  of  10 December.    

DR NGUBANE :    [No audible reply]   20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  response is f rom Athol  Gupta,  

athol@ann7.com.  I t  is to Mark Pamensky.   And that  these. . .   

I  th ink they swopped the date and the month,  judging f rom 

the previous emai l .   So that  would be on the 

12t h of  November or the 11t h of  December.   Wel l ,  the 
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11t h of  December.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  the 11t h of  December.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  is correct ,  ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   I  could hear a message f rom my 

junior(?) out  of  the chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And i t  is copied to Varoom and to Rajesh 

Gupta Tony.   He says – Athol  says – Athol  Gupta:  

“Hi .   Thank you Mark.   I  real ly  appreciate i t .   We wi l l  10 

talk soon.   Regards Athol  Gupta.   Chairman, TMA 

Media (Pty) Ltd. ”  

 And that  is the correspondence between the part ies.   So 

even the board – some boar or one board member,  at  the 

very least ,  seems to have assis ted the Gupta ’s  in the 

acquisi t ion of  Opt imum. 

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  I  do not  th ink you can accused the 

board of  assist ing.   Obviously,  th is was an individual .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    You know.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja,  but  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Of  course,  i f  in the end that  deal  was 

brought to  the board and the board approved,  i t  would be 

legi t imate to ask the board to explain.   You accept  that? 

DR NGUBANE :    [No audible reply]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    A c laim of  R 2 bi l l ion going down to 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    R 599 mi l l ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   I t  would be legi t imate to. . .   I  

mean, I  have not  checked.  I  assume that  for such a big 

amount,  before they set t led,  whoever was negot iat ing would 

need that  to be brought to the board to approve.   I  am 

assuming because i t  is a big amount.  

DR NGUBANE :    I t  was never brought to the board Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was never brought to the board? 10 

DR NGUBANE :    No.   That  is why I  was suggest ing probably 

Ms Daniels . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Arbi t rat ion.  

DR NGUBANE :    . . . is the legal  person.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

DR NGUBANE :    Who might  shed l ight  on the processes 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    . . . there.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   But  on your  own understanding.   Any 20 

negot iat ions that  led to an agreement where Eskom’s claim 

of  R 2 bi l l ion was reduced to f ive hundred and something 

mi l l ion or two hundred and something mi l l ion,  should have 

been brought to the board for  the board to approve,  is i t  not?  

I t  is too big an amount to say – to be deal t  wi th by somebody 
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e lse.   I  would imagine.  

DR NGUBANE :    Wel l ,  I  would say so Chairperson because 

we were seized wi th the issue of  penal t ies.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  Yes,  yes,  yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    And they inf luenced a lot  of  th inking.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    On the side of  the board.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.   Okay but  you say,  def in i te ly i t  

was not  brought to the board? 

DR NGUBANE :    No,  i t  was not .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l . . .   Sorry,  Chai r.   Dr Ngubane, 

Ms Daniels  has not  f in ished test i fy ing.   But  is  i t  not  that ,  she 

had submit ted a memorandum to the board.  

DR NGUBANE :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   And she requested a mandate for  

Mr Anoj  and I  th ink Mr Koko to author ise,  to do the 

set t lement because she did not  want to do i t  hersel f .   The 

board had said she should do i t .    

 And she said:   No,  you author ised these two execut ives.   20 

And this was pr ior the set t lement.   And in her memorandum 

to the board,  proposed an amount  by which the set t lement  

should be concluded.    

 And she was told:   No less than f ive hundred mi l l ion.   

Set t le but  no less than f ive hundred mi l l ion.   But  the 
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author isat ion was then by the board given to Mr Anoj  and Mr 

Koko.    

DR NGUBANE :    Not  by the IFC.   

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  do not  know but  I  know that  f rom my 

reading of  the documents,  the memorandum is  made to the 

board and the request  is that  the board should author ise the 

two execut ives.  

DR NGUBANE :    I  do not  remember i t  Chairperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.  

DR NGUBANE :    Do you have the document? 10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l ,  she says:   I  presented the BTC.. .   

Sorry.   To BTC but  the Board Tender Commit tee was chaired 

by you.  

DR NGUBANE :    Mr Khosa.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Was i t  chaired by Mr Khosa?  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l ,  there was a t ime that  i t  was 

chaired by you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

DR NGUBANE :    A very short  t ime.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    A very short  t ime?  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.   Once I  became act ing chairperson,  I  

stopped chair ing BTC.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Wel l ,  that  was. . .   She says BTC.  

DR NGUBANE :    Okay.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    But  I  guess,  even the BTC for wri t ing of ,  

in effect ,  such a b ig amount . . . [ intervenes]   

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    They would have need to make sure that  

the board went along wi th that .   I  would imagine.  

DR NGUBANE :    They would probably need to make sure 

that  IFC approved i t  and then report  i t  to the board.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

DR NGUBANE :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.    10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  is f rom ourselves Chairperson.   

That  is i t  f rom ourselves.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi l l  th is mean we are done with  

Dr Ngubane or are there some matters that  he wi l l  st i l l  come 

back for? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  you are not  sure? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh.   I  know Chai r  and I  spoke this 20 

morning . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  yes about other matters.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    So you wi l l  ta lk to h im in due course i f  you 

need to.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  th ink that  wi l l  be the next  cal l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Okay.   Thank you very much 

Dr Ngubane.  We are done with you for today but  the work of  

the Commission cont inues and i f  we ask you to come back,  I  

am sure you wi l l  cooperate again as you have done al l  a long.    

DR NGUBANE :    Not  on New Year ’s Eve or Christmas Eve 

Chairperson.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    [ laughs]    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]    

DR NGUBANE :    That  is when we are. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  before we f in ish.   Mr Mkhabela,  

you do not  have any re-examinat ion you need? 

ADV MKHABELA :    Not  f rom our side Chai r.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay thank you very much.  So thank you 

very much Dr Ngubane.  And we are going to adjourn for 

lunch and then . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . I  wi l l  resume at  quarter past  two wi th 20 

another work st ream.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    As i t  p leases.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We adjourn.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you Chai r.  

DR NGUBANE :    Thank you.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good a f te rnoon,  Mr  Chaska lson,  good  

a f te rnoon,  everybody.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Good a f te rnoon,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Today we are  go ing  to  f in ish  the  

money f lows re la t ing  f rom the  k i ckbacks on  the  Transnet  

cont rac t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  tha t ,  have you been to ld  what  the  

exp lanat ion  is  fo r  th is  de lay?  Ten minutes  de lay  about  the 

f i les .   Has somebody g iven you an exp lanat ion?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  no ,  I  was not  pa r t  o f  o r… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Th i s  i s  jus t  no t  acceptab le .   We were  

supposed to  s ta r t  a t  quar te r  past ,  I  was ready,  I  was to ld  

cer ta in  peop le  are  supposed to  b r ing  the  f i les ,  they were  

no t  here .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  I  can  f ind  ou t  what  the 

cause o f  the  de lay  was and maybe repor t  when I  am back 20 

on Thursday.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   A t  leas t  the  least  we were  en t i t led  

to  i s  an  exp lanat ion  as  to  why there  was th i s  de lay.   I  was  

kept  wa i t ing  fo r  ten  m inutes  a f te r  we were  supposed to  

s ta r t .   I  unders tand tha t  i t  i s  no t  the  lega l  team’s  fau l t ,  
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f rom what  I  have been to ld .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  on ly  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  we 

were  no t  tak ing  respons ib i l i t y  fo r  ge t t ing  the  documents  

here ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   No,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  bu t  p lease  

do f ind  ou t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  w i l l ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  we are  go ing  to  be  f in ish ing  

the  Transnet  money f lows ev idence –  we l l ,  o f f shore  10 

ev idence today and today we are  go ing  to  be  focus ing  fo r  

the  most  par t  on  k ickbacks tha t  were  pa id  th rough the  

Wor lds  Window network  and so  we touched on the  Wor lds  

Window network  a  fa i r  amount  on  the  las t  few days bu t  

maybe jus t  very  br ie f l y,  Mr  Ho lden,  to  s ta r t  aga in  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  bund le  do  we s tar t  w i th?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We wi l l  be  in  6A and 6B today,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  we w i l l  u  se  bo th .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Indeed,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Most  o f  i t  w i l l  be  6A but  there  

w i l l  be  a  l i t t le  b i t  in  6B.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden,  can you very  br ie f l y  

jus t  maybe go to  parag raphs 135 and 136 o f  your  repor t  a t  

page 220 where  you touch on who the  Wor lds  Window 

network  were  and  the  compan ies  in  tha t  ne twork  were?  

CHAIRPERSON:    220?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    220,  Cha i r,  o f  6A .  

CHAIRPERSON:    6A ,  ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The Wor lds  Window 

network  as  I  have ind i ca ted  a t  paragraph 135,  the  

cent rep iece,  the  hear t  o f  the  Wor lds  Window Group  – sor ry  10 

the  hear t  o f  the  Wor lds  Window Network  i s  the  Wor lds  

Window Group and I  p rov ide  the  webs i te  address there  

wh ich  www.wwg.c . in .   Accord ing  go t  the  group webs i te  and 

a lso  accord ing  to  f i l i ngs  w i th  the  Ind ian  Company 

Reg is t ra t ion  house,  Wor lds  Window was f i rs t  reg is te red in  

1997 and i t  began t rad ing  fe r rous and non- fe r rous meta l  

sc rap.  

 Subsequent  to  1997,  the  Wor lds  Window Group 

opened up a  vas t  a r ray  o f  bus inesses reg i s te red in  Ind ia  

and e lsewhere .   I  p rov ide  a  l i s t  o f  the  key en t i t ies  there  20 

under.   The f i rs t  one is  p rov ided a t  A wh ich  is  Wor lds  

Window Impex Ind ia  Pr iva te  L im i ted  wh ich  is  desc r ibed on  

the  Wor lds  Window Group webs i te  as  the  f lagsh ip  o f  the  

group and one o f  the  la rgest  impor te rs  in  Nor thern  Ind ia .  

 On access ing  Ind ian  company records he ld  a t  the i r  

http://www.wwg.c.in/
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vers ion  o f  Companies  House was  to  ab le  to  es tab l i sh  tha t  

Wor lds  Window Impex Pr iva te  L im i ted  was es tab l i shed on 

the  14  February  1997 w i th  the  address 75  Kh i rk i  Vi l lage,  

New Delh i  and tha t  i s  an  address tha t  cont inues to  be  used 

th roughout  in  re la t ion  to  a l l  o f  the  o ther  Wor lds  Window 

subs id ia r ies .    

Impor tan t  to  bear  in  m ind is  tha t  Wor lds  Window 

Impex Pr iva te  L im i ted  is  49% owned by  In te rnat iona l  Meta l  

and S tee l  BV wh ich  is  reg i s te red  in  Ho l land and IMSBV,  

wh ich  is  the  ac ronym for  In te rnat iona l  Meta l  and S tee l  BV,  10 

is  a  who l ly  owned subs id ia ry  o f  the  European  Meta l s  

Recyc l ing  Group based in  L ive rpoo l  in  the  UK.   So 51% of  

the  cent rep iece company was s t i l l  owned by  the  Wor lds  

Window Group.  

I  ident i f ied  13  o ther  Wor lds  Window Group 

compan ies .   I  am go ing  to  jus t  l i s t  them by name and the  

reason why I  l i s t  them by name wi l l  become a  l i t t le  b i t  

c lea rer  in  the  ev idence but  the  13  add i t iona l  compan ies  

ident i f ied  Wor lds  Window Agro  Pr iva te  L im i ted ,  Wor lds  

Window Cabs Ind ian  Pr iva te  L im i ted ,  Wor lds  Window 20 

Deve lopers  Pr iva te  L im i ted ,  Wor lds  Window Eco Trade 

Pr iva te  L im i ted ,  Wor lds  Window Esta te  Pr iva te  L im i ted ,  

Wor lds  Window Ex im Pr iva te  L im i ted ,  Wor lds  Window 

Farming Pr i va te  L im i ted ,  Wor lds  Window Greenf ie ld  Pr iva te  

L im i ted ,  Wor lds  Window Hold ing  Pr iva te  L im i ted ,  Wor lds  
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Window In f ras t ruc tu re  and Log is t i cs  Pr iva te  L im i ted ,  

Wor lds  Window Trad ing  Pr iva te  L im i ted ,  Wor lds  Window 

Ur ja  Pr i va te  L im i ted  and Wor lds  Window Wardha  

In f ras t ruc ture  Pr i va te  L im i ted .    

In  add i t ion  to  tha t  the  Wor lds  Window Group a l so  

main ta ined and ran  one company o f  par t i cu la r  no t ice  in  

Duba i  wh ich  was Everest  Meta l s  FZE wh ich  the  Wor lds  

Window Group c la ims was es tab l i shed in  2008  as  the  

in te rnat iona l  t rad ing  a rm o f  the  group.   The re levance he re ,  

Cha i r,  i s  tha t  Everest  Meta ls  FCE (s i c )  was the  who l ly  10 

owned Everest  G loba l  Meta ls  reg is te red in  South  A f r i ca  

and as  we d iscussed in  re la t ion  to  the  Est ina  ev idence a  

wh i le  back,  tha t  was the  en t i t y  wh ich  was engag ing  in  a  

loan back scam invo lv ing  the  Gupta  en terpr i se  inc lud ing  

us ing  Est ina  as  one o f  the  payees.  

And then f ina l l y  wor th  ment ion ing  is  Arc tos  Trad ing  

(P ty)  L td  wh ich  is  a  South  A f r i can company and tha t  was 

reg i s te red w i th  reg is t ra t ion  number  2011/002541/7 .   That  

company was a  who l ly  owned –  was benef ic ia l l y  owned by  

Vasudhamaa Resources PTE  L im i ted ,  a  company 20 

inco rpora ted  in  S ingapore .   On access ing  the  S ingapore  

company records  I  was ab le  to  es tab l i sh  tha t  one  or  the 

two d i rec to rs  o f  Vasudhamaa Resources was  Wor lds  

Window company  d i rec to r  as  we l l ,  h is  name is  An i l  Kumar  

Mish ra .    
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I t  i s  very  c lear  f rom the  Gupta  Leaks reco rds  

themse lves tha t  A rc tos  Trad ing  was the  veh ic le  th rough 

wh ich  the  Wor lds  Window Group conducted the  major i t y  o f  

i t s  investments  in to  the  Gupta  en terpr i se  inc lud ing  m in ing  

investments  and  prov id ing  another  Gupta  l ink  i s  the  

address tha t  reg is te red fo r  Arc tos  Trad ing ,  the  reg is te red  

address fo r  A rc tos  Trad ing  is  144 Grayston  R idge,  

Kather ine  S t ree t ,  Sandton,  wh ich  is  an  address tha t  i s  

shared w i th  a  number  o f  o ther  Gupta  en terpr i se  companies .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ho lden,  can I  ask  you to  go  10 

to  bund le  6A page 498 wh ich  is  some f inanc ia l  s ta tements 

fo r  Arc tos  fo r  2011.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  page number?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  in  f ac t  499,  Cha i r,  o f  bund le  

6A.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Annexure  B  and you have 

a l ready ment ioned to  the  Cha i r  tha t  the  ho ld ing  company o f  

A rc tos  was Vasudhamaa Resources.   One sees tha t  a t  

page 499 where  i t  says  incorpora ted  in  S ingapore .  20 

 Can I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 512,  s t i l l  par t  o f  the  

same document?   And under  4 ,  Investment  and  Min ing  

R igh ts ,  can you jus t  no te  to  the  Cha i r  what  we see there  

and what  the  s ign i f i cance is?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  what  we see a t  paragraph 
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4  there  o f  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  end ing  2011 is  a  f i rs t  –  

i t  reads Investments  and Min ing  R igh ts  and the  name o f  

the  company is  Idwa la  Coa l  (P rop r ie ta ry)  L im i ted  and the  

car ry ing  amount  i s  R165 mi l l ion  and the  name underneath  

tha t  i s  Tegeta  Exp lo ra t ion  and  Resources (Propr ie ta ry)  

L im i ted  and the  car ry ing  amount  as  o f  2011 is  

R197 852 050.   Those two amounts  added together  a re  

R362 852 050.   The re levance here ,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  bo th  

Idwana Coa l  and  Tegeta  Exp lora t i on  are  Gupta  en terp r ise  

compan ies wh ich  wou ld  very  c lea r ly  a t  A rc tos  has  10 

under taken an investment  in to  Gupta  en terpr ise  compan ies  

and there fore  the  two ente rpr i ses ,  the  Wor lds  Window 

Group and the  Gupta  en terpr i se  are  opera t ing  togethe r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then to  deve lop  tha t  po in t ,  

two pages down,  page 514 under  11 ,  o ther  f inanc ia l  

l i ab i l i t i es .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  a t  o ther  f inanc ia l  l i ab i l i t i es  

i t  ind ica tes  a  number  o f  en t r i es ,  i t  says :  

“A t  amor t i sed cost ,  a  Bank o f  Baroda loan o f  

R283 611 482 wh ich  the  f inanc ia l  s ta tements  20 

ind ica te  were  secured by  inves tments  in  Tegeta  

Exp lo ra t ion  and Indwala  Coa l  w i th  in te res t  cha rged  

a t  9% l inked to  p r ime and repayab le  quar te r ly  in  20  

equa l  ins ta lments  e f fec t i ve  f rom 28  February  2012. ”  

The next  en t ry  o f  re levance is :  
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“J IC Min ing  Serv i ces . ”  

I t  ind ica tes :  

“An unsecured loan,  in te res t  f ree  and repayab le  on  

te rms agreed annua l ly  fo r  R44 mi l l ion . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And what  J IC Min ing?  

MR HOLDEN:    J IC Min ing  is  the  fo rmal  name fo r  West  

Dawn.   West  Dawn t raded as  West  Dawn but  the  under ly ing  

corpo ra te  en t i t y  was J IC wh ich  is  a  Gupta  en terpr i se  

company.   Beneath  tha t  we have JJ  Trad ing ,  wh ich  

ind ica tes :  10 

“An unsecured loan w i th  in te res t  charged a t  2% 

percent  per  annum and payab le  on  te rms agreed  

annua l ly. ”  

And tha t  i s  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you jus t  remind the  Cha i r  

who JJ  t rad ing  is?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y ,  JJ  Trad ing  is  a  company 

reg i s te red in  the  UAE,  tha t  was benef ic ia l l y  cont ro l led  by  

the  Wor lds  Window Group and was one o f  the pr imary  

veh ic les  th rough k ickbacks are  pa id  in  re la t ion  to  the  ear l y  20 

phase o f  the  Transnet  k ickback scheme.   That  ind ica tes  a  

loan amount  o f  R9 564 773.    

 Thereaf te r  there  is  a  loan ind ica ted  fo r  Oakbay 

Investments :  

“An unsecured loan,  in te res t  f ree  and repayab le  on  
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te rms agreed annua l ly  fo r  R96 mi l l ion . ”  

And then f ina l l y  IMR Genera l  Trad ing :  

“An unsecured loan where  in te res t  i s  cha rged a t  2% 

per  annum and payab le  on  te rms agreed annua l l y  

fo r  R1 246 922. ”  

IMR Genera l  Trad ing ,  Cha i r,  i s  a  company tha t  was  

u l t imate ly  owned by  the  Wor lds  Window Group.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then,  Mr  Ho lden,  can  we jus t  

desc r ibe  the  peop le  who we w i l l  come ac ross i n  re la t ion  to  

the  Wor lds  Window Group maybe  s tar t ing  w i th  Mr  P iyoosh  10 

Goya l  who we have met  a l ready but  you descr ibe  h i s  

Wor lds  Window ro le  a t  page 223 o f  bund le  6A,  pa rag raph    

139.   223.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cha i r,  the  key f igure  here  is  in  the  Wor lds  

Window Group fo r  our  invest iga t ion  was Mr  P iyoosh Goya l .   

Mr  P iyoosh Goya l  was the  Cha i rperson o f  the  Wor lds  

Window Group dur ing  the  per iod  in  wh ich  the  Transnet  

k ickbacks were  pa id .  

 I  shou ld  ment ion ,  Cha i r,  tha t  when th is  par t i cu la r  

s to ry  and the  connect ion  to  Wor lds  Window Group was 20 

made pub l i c ,  the  Wor lds  Window Group e f fec t i ve ly  e rased 

Mr  P iyoosh Goya l  f rom the i r  webs i t e  and he was no longer  

a  d i rec tor  in  the  Wor lds  Window Group.   What  I  was  ab le  to  

do  is  to  look  a t  a rch i ved cop ies  o f  the i r  webs i te  wh ich  

conf i rmed tha t  p rev ious ly  and dur ing  the  t ime in  wh ich  we  
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cons ider  he  was the  Cha i rpe rson and he was a  d i rec to r  o f  

a  number  o f  d i f fe ren t  Wor lds  Window Groups a t  tha t  t ime -  

Wor lds  Window Group companies  a t  tha t  t ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you then go to  pa rag raph 

140 over  the  page on 224,  6A,  where  you descr ibe  o ther  

Wor lds  Window employees who you come across in  the  

Gupta  Leaks.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  the  f i rs t  ind iv idua l  I  

ind ica te  there  is  a  Shuch i  Bansa l  who was s ty led  as  the  

execut ive  ass is tan t  to  the  Cha i rman ’s  o f f i ce ,  there fore  the  10 

execut ive  ass is tan t  to  P iyoosh Goya l .   

 An ind iv idua l  by  the  name o f  Ami t  Agrawal  who was 

an accountant  a t  the  Wor lds  Window Group and he  

cor responded ex tens ive ly  w i th  Ashu Chawla  in  re la t ion  to  

payments  made by  Everest  Meta ls  FCE in  South  A f r i ca  in  

re la t ion  to  a  loan back scheme.  

 Poo ja  Pur i ,  Wor lds  Window employee,  who   

cor responded ex tens ive ly  w i th  Ashu Chawla  aga in  

regard ing  payments  made by  Everest  Meta l s  FCE.  

 And then f ina l l y  La l i t  Tewar i ,  a  Wor lds  Window 20 

employee who the  Gupta  Leaks record  show was invo lved  

in  runn ing  Arc tos  and opera ted  i n  Arc tos  emai l  address.   

In te res t ing ly  Mr  Tewar i  appears  to  become in tegra ted  in to  

the  Gupta  en terp r ise  as  o f  2014.   My search  o f  the  records  

ind ica tes  tha t  f rom a t  leas t  March 2014 he was opera t ing  in  
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Oakbay address and an E lgaso lve  address f rom a t  leas t  

August  2014.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then  i f  I  can  take  you to  

annexure  Z wh ich  s ta r ts  a t  –  le t  me jus t  ge t  my re fe rence,  I  

th ink  i t  i s  bund le  6A.  

MR HOLDEN:    597.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    597.   597 where  you  have a  

co l lec t ion  o f  Gupta  Leaks documents  showing P iyoosh 

Goya l ’s  ro le  in  re la t ion  to  the  Gupta  en terp r ise .   The one 

document  tha t  I  wou ld  ask  you to  descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  i s  10 

a t  page 615.   615 o f  bund le  6A and can you te l l  the  Cha i r  

what  tha t  i s?    

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  th is  i s  an  ema i l  aga in  

emanat ing  f rom the  Gupta  Leaks,  i t  i s  sent  f rom Bever ley  

Hardy,  an  employee o f  Sahara  to  Jo lene Roux,  a lso  an  

employee o f  Sahara  on  the  4  January  2011 w i th  the  

sub jec t :   TNA Dinner  Tab le  A l loca t i on .   That  s tands fo r  the  

New Age d inner  tab le  a l loca t i on  and i t  a t tached a  

spreadsheet  w i th  the  name …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Chaska lson,  20 

I  th ink  I  have los t  you,  the  las t  page number  I  had was 

597.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  Cha i r,  we have gone down 

to  615.  

CHAIRPERSON:    615.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    S t i l l  i n  the  same bund le  6A.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Yes,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And maybe i f  you can jus t  take  

the  Cha i r  aga in  to  the  cover ing  emai l  tha t  you were  

desc r ib ing  a t  615 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Aga in  th is  i s  an  emai l  that  

comes f rom the  Gupta  Leaks,  the  emai l  i s  say ing  f rom 

Bever ley  Sahara ,  tha t  Sahara  address,  she was a  Sahara  

employee,  to  Jo lene Roux,  another  Sahara  employee,  the  10 

date  i s  the  4  January  2011 and the  sub jec t  i s :  

 “TNA Dinner  Tab le  A l loca t ion . ”  

And TNA is  an  acronym for  the  New Age.   The a t tachment  

reads:  

“TNA d inner  tab le  a l loca t ion  XLSX”  

Which  is  an  Exce l  spreadsheet .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  you go ove r  the  page  

to  616,  i s  tha t  the  a t tachment  o r  the  beg inn ing  o f  the 

a t tachment?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you take  the  Cha i r  

qu ick l y  th rough 616 and then get  to  617 where  the  cr i t i ca l  

in fo rmat ion  i f  fo r  our  purposes?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  th is  i s  a  spreadsheet  tha t  

se ts  ou t  the  ways in  wh ich  seat ing  was to  be  a l loca ted  a t  
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the  pa r t i cu la r  tha t  i s  descr ibed here  w i th  number  1 ,  the  

f i rs t  tab le  be ing  desc r ibed as  the  Pres ident ’s  tab le  and  as  

you can see there  the  number  1  en t ry  i s  Pres iden t  Jacob 

Zuma and i t  p rov ides a  number  o f  ind iv idua l  who wou ld  

a lso  be  s i t t ing  a t  the  tab le  w i th  the  fo rmer  Pres ident .  

 Tab le  2  i s  Ashu tab le ,  wh ich  I  take  to  mean Ashu  

Gupta ,  who was the  Cha i rman o f  the  New Age a t  tha t  t ime 

and he i s  s i t t ing  w i th  a  number  o f  no tab le  ind iv idua ls  

inc lud ing  Malus i  G igaba.   

 The th i rd  tab le  was the  Duduzane tab le  wh ich  I  take  10 

to  mean Duduzane Zuma.   That  i s  c la r i f ied  by  the  fac t  tha t  

the  f i rs t  en t ry  there  is  p rov ided M D Mabange la  and  he was  

a  d i rec tor  in  Mabange la  Investments  and i t  p rov ides a  

number  o f  d i f fe ren t  ind iv idua ls  who are  s i t t ing  there .  

 And then tu rn ing  to  the  en t ry  o f  re levance here  on  

page 617 is  tab le  6  wh ich  is  descr ibed as  P iyoosh tab le 

and we can see def in i te ly  tha t  th is  re fe rs  to  P iyoosh Goya l  

because he is  the  number  1  en t ry  a t  tha t  tab le  a l loca t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And what  i s  happen ing  a t  tab le  5 ,  i s  i t  

one person?  And tab le  4?   Or  maybe i t  was rese rved fo r  20 

h im and whoever  he  brought  a long.    

MR HOLDEN:    I  th ink  so .   I t  i s  no t  en t i re ly  c lea r  wh ich  Mr  

Zuma i t  i s  re fe r r i ng  to ,  I  am a f ra id ,  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Go ing  to  P iyoosh ’s  tab le ,  tab le  
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6 ,  can you ident i f y  any peop le  who wou ld  be  seated w i th  

P iyoosh Goya l?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   We have ent ry  number  th ree ,  

was the  Deputy  Pres ident  Kga lema Mot lan the ,  a l though  

s l igh t ly  m isspe l t .   And then o f  in te res t  to  th is  d iscuss ion  is  

the  en t ry  number  7  wh ich  is  adv iser  to  Min  PE wh ich  I  

unders tand to  mean the  adv i sor  to  the  Min is te r  o f  Pub l i c  

Enterp r ises  and the  f i rs t  name is  g iven as  S iyabonga,  I  

take  tha t  to  mean S iyabonga Mahlangu,  who has g iven 

ev idence before  the  Commiss ion  a l ready.    10 

 And then the  en t ry  there  a t  number  8  i s  DG Pub l ic  

Enterp r ise ,  wh ich  I  take  to  mean Tshed iso  Matona,  who I  

th ink  has a l so  g i ven ev idence befo re  the  Commiss ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then very  br ie f l y  because the 

two Wor lds  Window ent i t ies  tha t  we w i l l  be  focus ing  on  are  

JJ  Trad ing  and Century  Genera l  Trad ing .   Can you  br ie f l y  

desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i r  the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween JJ  Trad ing  

and Century  Genera l  Trad ing  and the  Wor lds  Window 

Group?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The Century  Genera l  20 

Trad ing  and JJ  Trad ing  are  bo th  reg is te red in  the  UAE.   

The Gupta  Leaks  makes i t  very  p la in  tha t  CGT and  JJT are  

bo th  e f fec t i ve ly  be ing  run  by  the  Wor lds  Window Group a t  

the  d i rec t ion  o f ,  amongst  o thers ,  P iyoosh Goya l  and i t  was  

these two compan ies  tha t  were  cent ra l  to  en te r ing  in to  
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k ickbacks w i th  va r ious Ch inese ra i l  manufac turers .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And a t  page 225 o f  your  repor t ,  

s t i l l  bund le  6A,  you re fer  to  Ram Ratan Jagat i ,  can you 

desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  you know o f  Ram Ratan Jagat i?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y ,  Cha i r.   Ram Ratan  Jagat i  

appears  in  the  Gupta  Leaks on  th ree  separa te  occas ions.   

He is  a lso  l i s ted  on  L inkedIn  on  var ious o the r  webs i tes  

re fer r i ng  to  JJ  Trad ing  as  the  manag ing d i rec tor  o r  d i rec tor  

o f  JJ  Trad ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you.   Then to  move now 10 

to  the  spec i f i c  cont rac ts  invo l v ing  JJT and CGT o f  wh ich  

we are  aware ,  the  f i rs t  i s  a  cont rac t  wh ich  is  a t tached as  

annexure  A a t  page 298 o f  vo lume 6A.   Can you take  the  

Cha i r  to  tha t  cont rac t  and we have  seen i t  be fore  bu t  i f  you  

take  the  Cha i r  in  some more  deta i l  now tha t  we are  go ing  

to  be  focus ing  on  tha t  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  298?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    298 a t  6A ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  a  descr ibed as  –  s ty led  as  an  20 

agent  agreement  wh ich  is  da ted  to  13  June 2011.   Par ty  A 

is  g iven as  Shangha i  Zhenghua Heavy Indust r ies  Co  

L im i ted  wh ich ,  as  I  ment ioned yesterday,  i s  a lso  re fer red  to  

by  a  separa te  ac ronym which  is  ZPMC.    

 Par ty  B  is  JJ  Trad ing  FCE and i t  p rov ides a  P O Box 
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add ress fo r  JJ  Trad ing  in  Shar jah  in  the  Un i ted  Arab  

Emi ra tes  and the  sub jec t  i s  p rov ided as :  

“Cont rac t  fo r  two sh ip  to  shore  conta ine r  c ranes ,  

STS,  inc lud ing  repos i t ion ing  o f  ex is t ing  Noe l l  

Cranes,  an  add i t i on  5  number  sh ip  to  shore  c ranes 

fo r  Transnet  South  A f r i ca . ”  

And s l igh t ly  fu r ther  down on tha t  page under  paragraph 1 .1  

prov ides the  name o f  the  pro jec t  wh ich  then ind i ca tes  the  

fo rmal  name tha t  was g i ven to  the  pro jec t  by  Transnet  Por t  

Termina ls  wh ich  is  g iven the  code iCLMHQ0762.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  you can the  Cha i r  to  

c lause 2  o f  th is  cont rac t  a t  the  bo t tom o f  tha t  page 298.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   A t  c lause 2  i t  reads:  

“Wi th  a  v iew to  fac i l i ta t ing  the  b idd ing  fo r  the  

pro jec t  and o ther  re levant  mat te rs ,  par ty  A hereby  

appo in ts  pa r ty  B  as  the  agent  o f  par ty  A to  ass i s t  

par t y  A in  hand l i ng  the  b idd ing  fo r  the  pro jec t  and  

o ther  re levant  mat te rs  as  per  the  te rms and 

cond i t ions  o f  th is  ag reement  and pa r ty  B  he reby  

accepts  the  appo in tment  o f  par t y  A . ”  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  par ty  B  is  JJ  Trad ing .   Can  

we look a t  i t s  ob l i ga t ions under  c lause 4  on  page 299? 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  a t  c lause 4 ,  4 .1  i nd ica tes  

tha t :  

4 .1  “The ob l iga t ions  o f  par t y  B  to  be  to  p rov ide  
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in fo rmat ion  about  the  pro jec t  to  par ty  A ,  to  

purchase the  tender  documents  and submi t  

documents  to  par ty  A ,  to  p rov ide  cop ies  o f  the  loca l  

laws and sa fe ty  codes re la ted  to  the  pro jec t  and 

in fo rmat ion  pe r ta in ing  to  loca l  cus toms. ”  

4 .3   To  ass is t  the  personne l  o f  par ty  A in  sa id  count ry 

fo r  the  dura t ion  o f  the  cont rac t  inc lud ing  issu ing  

inv i ta t ion  le t te rs ,  communica t ions  w i th  the  buyer,  

ho te l  rese rva t ions,  a i rpo r t  p ickup and send o f f . ”  

4 .4 :  To  communica te  w i th  the  buyer  on  beha l f  o f  pa r ty  A 10 

and take  pa r t  in  a l l  necessary  ac t i v i t ies  in  re la t ion  

to  the  pro jec t .   A l l  dec la ra t i ons,  commi tmen ts 

and/or  guarantee  made by  par t y  B  to  the  buyer  o r  

any o ther  ac t  o f  par t y  B  tha t  m ight  expose par t y  A 

to  cer ta in  ob l iga t ions sha l l  be  approved in  wr i t ing  

by  par ty  A in  advance.  

4 .5  To promote  the  p ro jec t  in  favour  o f  par t y  A .  

4 .6  To prov ide  an  in te rp re ter  fo r  pa r ty  A’s  personne l  in  

the  non-Eng l ish  speak ing  count r ies  a t  the  s tage o f  

b idd ing ,  no t  cont rac t  execut ion .  20 

4 .7  To ensure  tha t  par ty  A’s  pe rsonne l  can lega l l y  and 

un in te r rup ted ly  execut ive  th is  cont rac t .   In  cases o f  

in te r rup t ion ,  such as  f rom un ion  prob lems,  pa r ty  B 

sha l l  make pos i t i ve  e f fo r ts  to  e l im ina te  the 

d is tu rbance and  make sure  the  cont rac t  can be 
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executed smooth l y. ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then over  the  page on page 

300 c lause 5  dea ls  w i th  commiss ion  and o ther  fees.   Can 

you take  the  Cha i r  th rough –  we l l ,  how th is  c lause 

opera tes?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y ,  Cha i r.  I  shou ld  c la r i f y,  Cha i r,  tha t  

above a t  4 .8  wh ich  I  have not  read out ,  wh ich  is  the  o the r  

ob l iga t ion ,  i t  reads:  

“To  pro tec t  par ty  A’s  in te res ts . ”  

That  was pa r ty  B ’s  requ i rements .   Cha i r,  th is  c lause 10 

es tab l i shes a  few s t ruc ture  by  wh ich  par ty  B ,  wh ich  is  JJ  

Trad ing ,  wou ld  be  pa id .   Under  the  –  there  are  two 

methods o f  payment ,  tha t  I  ind ica ted ,  a t  5 .2  the  method o f  

payment  A .   I t  says :  

“Upon sa t is fac t ion  o f  a l l  the  fo l low ing th ree 

cond i t ions  par ty  L sha l l  pay  the  commiss ion  in  sum 

o f  US do l la rs  o f  3% o f  p r i ce  A and 85% of  p r i ce  B . ”  

A t  5 .1  we ind i ca te  tha t  par ty  A’s  o f fe r  to  Transnet  i s  

re fe r red  to  as  pr i ce  A .   And par ty  B ’s  p r ice  increase beyond 

the  pr ice  A w i thout  impact  o f  par t y  i s  re fe r red  to  as  pr ice  B .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  can you t rans la te  tha t  in to  s imp ler  

te rms fo r  us  o r. . .?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly ,  as  w i th  o ther  cont rac ts  we have 

seen th is  i s  an  incent ive  –  a  cont rac t  tha t  incent iv i ses  JJT 

Trad ing  to  ensure  tha t  Transnet  pays an  amount  over  and 
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above tha t  wh ich  had a l ready been –  ind ica ted  wou ld  be  

the  ac tua l  cos t  to  the  company o f  p rov id ing  the  cont rac t  

and any amount  tha t  i s  earned  ove r  and above – the  

cont rac t  has a l ready been agreed ,  85% of  tha t  wou ld  be  

accru ing  to  JJT and 15% wou ld  be  accru ing  to  ZPMC.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Mr  Ho lden.   I s  there  

anyth ing  e l se  in  th is  cont rac t  tha t  you wou ld  want  to  

emphas ise?  

MR HOLDEN:    Not  a t  th is  moment ,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Maybe jus t  to  po in t  to  the 10 

s ignator ies  a t  page 303.  

MR HOLDEN:    Oh,  cer ta in ly.   We do have,  Cha i r,  th ree  

s ignator ies .   Fo r  par t y  B  we have a  s ignature  there ,  

un for tunate l y  we  are  no t  ab le  to  ident i f y  desp i te  qu i te  

ex tens i ve  invest iga t ions.  

 For  par ty  A we have a  s ignatu re  w i th  a  handwr i t ten  

no te  next  to  i t  wh ich  appears  to  read Agwa Shen(?) .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Agwa Shen on  beha l f  o f  wh ich  

en t i t y?  

MR HOLDEN:    Apo log ies ,  Cha i r.   Agwa Shen on beha l f  o f  20 

par t y  A ,  wh ich  is  Shangha i  Zhenghua Heavy Indust r ies  Co 

L im i ted .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And have you been ab le  to  

es tab l i sh  who Agwa Shen is?  

MR HOLDEN:    I  am a f ra id  I  have not ,  Cha i r.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  the  f i rs t  JJT,  CGT 

cont rac t  tha t  we have come ac ross.   In  your  repor t  you 

in fe r  the  ex is tence o f  the  Centu ry  Genera l  Trad ing  cont rac t  

in  re la t ion  to  the  95  locomot ives  pro jec t ,  can I  take  you to  

Annexure  L wh ich  is  a cont rac t  we d iscussed yeste rday.    I t  

i s  a t  Bund le  6A page 427.   And maybe s ta r t  a t  426 and 

desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  i t  i s?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in l y  Cha i r.   A t  Annexure  L we have an  

addendum to  agreement  s igned between CRRC Hong Kong 

Company L im i ted  and Reg iments  As ia  L im i ted  and 10 

Tequesta  Group L im i ted  da ted  August  2016.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now I  f ear  tha t  I  have taken you 

–  I  may have taken you to  the  wrong cont rac t ,  because i t  

doesn ’ t  say,  i f  you  go to  page 4  –  I  have taken you to  the  

wrong cont rac t ,  I  must  apo log ise  fo r  tha t .    I t  i s  the  ear l ie r  

addendum tha t  I  wanted to  –  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  m igh t  be  conven ien t  Mr  Chaska lson 

fo r  us  to  take  f i ve  m inutes  wh i le  you are  look ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r,  I  wou ld  

apprec ia te  tha t ,  my re fe rence is  incor rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  le t  us  take  f i ve  m inutes  ad jou rnment .   

We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 



08 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 320 
 

Page 129 of 187 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r  we have so r ted  ourse lves 

ou t ,  I  a lso  have a  message f rom Secre tar ia t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Unfo r tunate l y  due to  leave 

ar rangements  there  is  on ly  one  person a t  Secre tar ia t  

work ing  w i th  documents  today,  p repar ing  fo r  the  res t  o f  the  

week and he was  s topped by  secur i t y  in  th is  bu i ld ing  who 

searched h is  car  be fore  he  came in ,  wh ich  is  why he was 

de layed.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   I t  i s  no t  

someth ing  tha t  happens o f ten .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  does  seem to  be  an ex t reme 

s i tua t ion ,  I  a lso  know f rom the  way in  wh ich  I  had 

Secre tar ia t  runn ing  a round w i th  my la te  requests  fo r  

documents  th is  week tha t  they a re  shor t -s ta f fed  and be ing  

poss ib ly  be ing  poor l y  t rea ted  by  the  Ev idence Leaders ,  

myse l f  inc luded.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No i t  i s  jus t  tha t  a t  leas t  i f  there  i s  an  

exp lanat ion  one  can unders tand i f  there  i s  a  good  20 

exp lanat ion .   I t  i s  jus t  tha t  i f  there  i s  no  exp lanat ion  i t  

a l lows a  s i tua t ion  where  th ings jus t  de ter io ra te .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes indeed.   No,  no  tha t  i s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ten minutes ,  tomorrow i t  i s  20  m inutes  
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the  next  day i t  i s  30  m inutes  bu t  a t  leas t  i f  we know then i t  

i s  okay and i f  there  must  be  some in te rvent ions then they 

can be cons idered.   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  thank you .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you Cha i r.   We are  on 

page 427 now,  Bund le  6A.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And Mr  Ho lden can you address 

C lause 1 .4  o f  tha t  agreement ,  o r  maybe le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  

the  cover  page  o f  the agreement  so  we know what  the 

agreement  is ,  and tha t  i s  a t  page 426 .  10 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  a t  page 426  we have  the 

cover  page wh ich is  an  addendum to  an  agreement  s igned 

between CRRC Zhuzhou Locomot ive  Company L im i ted  and 

Reg iments  As ia  and tha t  is  dated August  the  26 t h ,  August  

2016 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And Cha i r  you w i l l  reca l l  we 

d iscussed th is  agreement  last  n ight .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr .  Ho lden can you  take the 

Cha i r  to  c lause  1 .4  and show what  we  can in fe r  in  re la t ion  to  20 

in  an  an te r io r  agreement  invo lv ing  Centu ry  Genera l  Trad ing? 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  c lause 1 .4  reads :  

“As fo r  the f inanc ia l  conversa t ion to  Centu ry  Genera l  

Trad ing  FCE g iven as  CGT under  the  consu l tancy  

agreement  da ted  14  Apr i l  2012 consu l tancy 



08 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 320 
 

Page 131 of 187 
 

ag reement  Reg iments sha l l  reso lve  to  speak w i th  

CGT th rough  amicab le  consu l ta t ion  and  show that  

there  is  no fu r ther  d ispute  w i th  CRRC ZELC f rom 

e i ther  s ide. ”  

Wh ich  I  th ink i t  i s  p re t ty  c lear  tha t  we  can  ident i f y  tha t  the re 

was a  consu l tancy  agreement  be tween CGT and CRRC that  

was o r ig ina l ly  dated the  14 t h  o f  Apr i l  2012 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  what  i s  the  sub ject  mat te r  o f  

th is  addendum so  that  we  can  then in fe r  what  the CGT 

agreement  re la ted to? 10 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  th is  is  in  re la t ion  to  the 95 

e lec t ive  locomot ive  p ro jec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then  jus t  to  conf i rm th is  po in t  i f  

we can go to  the work ings  document  tha t  you  took to  the 

Cha i r ,  tha t  you took  the Cha i r  th rough yes te rday that  i s  in  

Bund le  6A page 420,  420 ,  and can  you  take  the Cha ir  to  the 

par ts  o f  that  document  tha t  con f i rm that  the re was p rev ious ly  

an a r rangement  be tween CSR and  CGT in  re la t ion to  the 95 

p ro jec t .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  as  we d iscussed yeste rday 20 

th is  was a  work ings document  tha t  was d is t r ibuted eventua l ly  

to  Ashu  Chawla  and i t  ind icates  the  amounts  o f  money tha t  

were  due  to  be pa id  under va r ious k ickback con t racts  in  

re la t ion  to  the 359,100  and 95 p ro jec t  work ings.    

As  we can  see  on  the  four th  co lumn we have  the  95 
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p ro jec t  under the heads,  i t  p rov ides the to ta l  va lue o f  the 

con t ract  and  thereaf te r  i t  p rov ides  a  ca lcu la t ion o f  the 

amount  to  be rece ived  by CGT and  the res t  to  be  pa id  to  the 

Gupta Ente rp r ise ,  that  is  the ent ry  to  the le f t  reads :  

“JJT/CJT and  expend i tu res . ”  

And the  95  p ro jec t  tha t  says:  

“Out  o f  20% rece ivab les  CGT rece ive  15% and   

expend i tu res is  85% percent . ”  

The  l ine  above  con f i rms tha t  the to ta l  k ickbacks  on  that  

con t ract  was to  be 20%.  So read ing those two toge ther  we 10 

understand tha t  CJT was due to  rece ive 15% of  that  20% 

k ickback.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And wh i le  we  on  th is  work ings 

document .   Can you take the Cha i r  to  the p rov is ions wh ich 

show that  JJT,  tha t  the re was an  a rrangement  be tween Ch ina 

South  Ra i l  and  JJT in  re la t ion  to  the  359  p ro jec t  and the  100 

p ro jec t?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  aga in  a t  the heads we have 

359,100  p ro ject  wh ich a re  t reated toge ther  in  the  

spreadsheet .   I t  p rov ides  as under  rece ivab les  f rom CSR 20 

21% as  to ta l  rece ivab les,  2% advance  excess  fee  and 19% 

rece ivab les  on  actua l  bas is  when i t  i s  due  f rom CSR and  the 

l ine  be low that  is  JJT/CJT and  expend i tu res  and  that  reads 

out  o f  2% excess  fee ,  1% excess  fee  fo r  JJT and 1% 

expend i tu res ou t  o f  19% CSR rece ivab les,  JJT who rece ive 
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15% and  expend i tu res  is  85%. 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     And then  to  f in ish th is  so r t  o f  

d igg ing in  re la t ion to  the 359 cont rac t .   Can  I  ask you to  tu rn  

to  the  cont rac t  tha t  we  d iscussed wi th  the  Cha i r  yes te rday ,  i t  

i s  a  cont rac t  be tween Tequesta  and CSR 18 May 2015 ,  i t  is  

a t  page same bund le ,  Bund le  6A page 365?  I t  i s  Annexure  F 

maybe i f  we can just  go to  the cover  page wh ich is  on 358 

and then come down to  365.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  a t  page 358  we have  cover 

page  wh ich reads:  10 

“Bus iness  deve lopment  se rv ices agreement . ”  

Ente red in  between CSR Hong Kong Company L im i ted w i th 

Tequesta  Group L im i ted w i th  an  agreement  da te  o f  the 18 t h  

o f  May 2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  then i f  you go down to  c lause 

3 .3  on  page 365.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  i f  I  may i t  m ight  be  worth 

c la r i f y ing  i t  a t  362  the de f in i t ion is  g iven fo r  th is  p ro jec t  as 

p ro jec t  359 so  that  you know i t  re fe rs  to  the  359  p ro jec t .   We 

tu rn  to  365  c lause 3 .3  reads :  20 

“The  company has  adv ised  Tequesta  tha t  the  

p rev ious  agreement  had  been  s igned between CSR 

Zhuzhou E lect r ic  Locomot ive  Company L im i ted  and JJ  

Trad ing FZE here inaf te r  re fe r red to  as JJT.   However 

the  company adv ise  us  to  Tequesta  tha t  in  an  event  
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that  JJT d isputes  o r  contes t  the  cance l la t ion  o r  none 

payment  in  a  cour t  o f  law and i f  the cour t  decrees 

that  the agreement  w i th  JJT is  va l id  o r  the mutua l  

agreement  is  reached between Tequesta  and  JJT in  

the f inanc ia l  compensat ion to  JJT wh ich w i l l  no t  

exceed  the  re ten t ion  amount  that  is  15% of  the  to ta l  

amount  payab le  to  Tequesta  and th is  agreement  w i l l  

be deducted  f rom the  amount  re ta ined  f rom Tequesta  

as  per  c lause 6 .16 and  the ba lance  i f  the re is  w i l l  

then  be  pa id  to  Tequesta  wi th in  30 days a f te r  the 10 

company rece ip t  o f  the last  payment  and o r  re tu rn  o f  

a l l  bank  guarantees  re leased  by the  c l ien t  whichever  

occurs la te r .   Under th is  c i rcumstances the  invo ices 

the re tent ion to  the company sha l l  not  be  c la imab le  

and re tu rnab le  to  Tequesta .   Tequesta  sha l l  reso lve 

d ispu te  w i th  JJT th rough  amicab le  consu l ta t ion  and 

ensure there  is  no  fu r ther  d ispute  w i th  the company 

f rom e i ther  s ide. ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So that  c lause no tes tha t  the re 

has  been a  p rev ious  agreement  be tween CSR and JJT in  20 

re la t ion  to  the 359 p ro ject?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t  Chai r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Not  so long ago you read a  paragraph o r  

a  c lause  in  an  agreement  tha t  seems very  s im i la r  to  th is  one .  

Wou ld  that  have been between o ther  par t ies?  I  mean a few 
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m inu tes  ago  I  th ink  i t  was  those  pages that  a re  not  very  c lear  

that  a re  very dark.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r  i f  I  can  ass is t  you that  was 

the c lause in  Annexure  L .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wh ich that  re la tes to  95  E lec t r ica l  

Locomot ives Pro jec t  and  th is  one  to  the 359 .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  the c lauses  a re  very  s im i la r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And  the par t ies a re? 10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The par t ies a re  the  same.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay ,  thank  you.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Oh sor ry  when I  sa id  the  par t ies 

a re  the same.   The par t ies  to  those the o r ig ina l  agreement  

had d i f fe rent  par t ies because the or ig ina l  agreement  on the 

95 Locomot ives was CGT and the or ig ina l  agreement  on the 

359 was JJT.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  l i ke  I  sa id  there must  be some 

persona l i t y ,  over lapp ing  persona l i ty  a t  least  i f  the re a re  

c lauses tha t  a re  s im i la r ,  maybe.   20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Maybe Mr .  Ho lden  is  the  one to 

ask on tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  someth ing you are  ab le  

to . . . [ in te rvene]  

MR HOLDEN:    Yes Cha i r  CJT is  another  company tha t  
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e f fec t ive ly  is  d i rec ted by  the  Wor ld  Window Group another  

ent i t y  that  e f fect ive ly  is  a  s is te r  company to  JJ Trad ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     There  is  another ,  the re is 

ev idence o f  another  poss ib le  con t rac t  w i th  CGT.   Can I  take 

you  to  page  304  o f  the  bund le  wh ich  is ,  th is  i s  an  agreement 

between CNR and I  th ink  Tequesta .   Ja ,  CNR and Tequesta  

a t  page 304 and i t  i s  Annexure B ,  Bund le  6A.   Can I  ask you 

to  go down to  page 306 and there  you  -  can you read  to  the 

Cha i r  what  i t  says  under agreement  date  and  what  you in fe r  10 

f rom tha t?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  the re is  an  agreement  date  

that  i s  ente red  in  there  wh ich  show mean and  re fe r  to  the  8 t h  

o f  Ju ly  2013  be ing the  da te  o f  the execut ion o f  th is 

agreement  which  I  take  to  mean tha t  was an agreement  tha t  

p receded th is  agreement  between CNR and  the Tequesta 

Group .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Why is  that  the case?   Why do 

you  make tha t  in fe rence? 

MR HOLDEN:    Because  the da te  o f  the agreement  is  the 8 t h  20 

o f  Ju ly  2013  wh ich  is  p r io r  to  the  agreement  da te  o f  th is 

par t i cu la r  exc lus ive  agency  agreement .   We a lso not ice  that  I  

am sure  the  Ev idence Leader  we  wi l l  get  to  i t  but  the re  a re  

scat te red  re fe rences to  CGT th roughout  the document .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We l l  maybe i f  I  can take you  to  
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one o f  those  on page 309  c lause 7 .4 ,  Bund le  6A,  309.   

CHAIRPERSON:    609? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    309 Chai r ,  309.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Three zero  n ine? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Three  zero n ine.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And Mr.  Ho lden can you  take the 

Cha i r  to  what  you see  is  s ign i f i can t  there.  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly ,  c lause 7 .4  reads :  

“The  success fee o f  2% on the  to ta l  va lue o f  the 10 

p ro jec t  as s ta ted above were pa id  by  CNR Da l ian 

Locomot ive and Ro l l ing  Sta r  Company L im i ted to  

Centu ry  Genera l  Trad ing FZE here ina f te r  re fe r  to  RAL 

wh ich  is  actua l ly  Reg iments  As ia  L im i ted  wh ich is  

du ly  incorpora ted ex is t ing and the company ’s  

o rd inance  o f  Hong Kong and hav ing as  reg is te red 

address a t  P .O.  Box 17398 Hong Kong UAE du ly  

author ised and represented by  Mr.  Sa l im  Essa. ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Have  you been  ab le  to  t race  any 

payments  f rom CNR to  Centu ry  Genera l  Trad ing  in  respec t  o f  20 

the 323  p ro jec t?  

MR HOLDEN:    No  Cha i r  I  have not  and i t  appears  tha t  by 

the t ime that  pro jec t  was f ina l ised w i th  Transne t  the 

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  CGT had  te rminated.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  ear l ie r  you  ment ioned  that  
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the  da te  o f  th is  agreement ,  the  da tes,  the  actua l  date  o f  th is 

agreement  was 20  May 2014.   Can  I  jus t  ask you  to  go to 

page  305  to  show the Cha i r  were tha t  date  is?  

CHAIRPERSON:    We l l  I  was  s t i l l  t ry ing  to  sor t  out  what  I  

th ink you know because the agreement  dates there re fe rs  to  

8  Ju ly  but  ear l ie r  on i t  i s  g iven as 20 t h  May so I  was 

s t i l l…[ in te rvene ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Indeed,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    …t ry ing  to  unders tand what  i s  go ing  on ,  ja 

okay a l r ight  con t inue.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr .  Ho lden maybe i f  you can  jus t  

exp la in  your  thes is  o r  your  theory  to  the  Cha i r  in  re la t ion  to 

that  to  co r rect  that  o r  to  why you  hav ing  that .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because I  have gone  to  the end o f  the 

agreement  to  see i f  I  wou ld  see any dates  there but  then i t  

says  the date  wr i t ten above .   So  a re  you ab le  to  shed  l igh t?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  my theory is  that  the re  was a 

con t ract  that  was ente red  in to  between CNR and  CGT in 

re la t ion  to  th is  con t ract  wh ich was dated Ju ly  2013  and then 

th is  was superseded by th is  agreement  but  in  p repar ing  the 20 

documentat ion insu f f i c ien t  ca re was taken to  rep lace cer ta in  

key  c lauses  in  the  o r ig ina l  con t ract  such  as  the  agreement  

date  and you  see  fo r  example CGT appear ing and  RAL 

appear ing where I  th ink  they rea l ly  mean Tequesta  Group.   

So  c lear ly  there  was a  p r io r  agreement  that  they  then  ed i ted 
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cop ied and pas ted cer ta in  th ings  bu t  re ta ined cer ta in 

e lements  o f  the o r ig ina l  con t ract  by  m istake .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  jus t  on tha t  da te  o f  20  May 

2014  maybe to  comple te  th is  sequence  i f  one  goes  to 

Annexure  C…[ in tervene ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  have no t  rea l ised  that  even  the  years 

a re  d i f fe rent .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Indeed Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes ,  okay  a l r igh t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Annexure C at  page 316 we see 10 

that  the re was another  cont rac t  a lso conc luded on 20 May 

2014 .   Can you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  that  cont rac t  i s?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  th is  is  an  exc lus ive agency 

agreement  between CNR Da l ian  Locomot ive  and  Ro l l ing 

S tock  Company w i th  Reg iments As ia  and on the fo l lowing 

page  i t  ind icates  the  agency  agreement  is  da ted  the 20 t h  o f  

May 2014.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then can we go  back  to  the 

work ing  documents  a t  page  420.   You have  taken the  Chai r  

th rough  th is  document  in  some de ta i l  las t  n ight  and  I  am not  20 

go ing to  ask  you to  do tha t  aga in  but  i f  you go up to  the 

cover ing  ema i l  I  jus t  would  l i ke  us  to  ge t  those  da tes 

re f reshed  in  our  memor ies  o f  how th is  document  t rave l led 

over  t ime.   The cover ing ema i ls  a t  page 419 and  i f  you  can 

just  take  the Cha ir  qu ick ly  th rough  those th ree  da tes.   
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MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Chai r  we  have  th ree  dates 

appear ing in  th is  emai l  cha in .   The ear l ie r  s ta te  wh ich seems 

to  in i t ia te  the  emai l  cha in  is  the  6 t h  o f  January  2015  and tha t  

i s  the ema i l  sent  f rom Rupesh  Bansal  to  Sharma.   The 

fo l lowing  day  Sharma fo rwarded tha t  ema i l  to  Bus inessman 

to  whom we unders tand  that  to  be Sa l im  Essa  that  was  on 

the 7 t h  o f  January and then…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Just  one  second Mr .  Holden  befo re  you 

p roceed I  see tha t  I  was  mak ing a  no te  here yeste rday  in  

re la t ion  to  Sharma bu t  I  d id  not  comple te  i t .   You sa id  he is  10 

very sen io r  execu t ive  a t  and  then  I  d id  no t  put  the name.  

MR HOLDEN:    A t  CSR.   

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  CSR,  okay  thank  you  yes you may 

con t inue .   

MR HOLDEN:    And  then  the  f ina l  date  tha t  i s  ind ica ted 

there  is  that  bus inessman o r  Sa l im Essa sends the  document  

to  Ashu Chawla on the 22n d  o f  March 2015.   So the ema i l  

cha in  beg ins on  the 6 t h  o f  January 2015 and  the f ina l  one 

that  we  see is  the 22 n d  o f  March  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now I  wan t  to  jus t  put  a  ques t ion  here  Mr.  20 

Chaska lson  and obv ious ly  Mr .  Holden is  l i s ten ing .   I s  i t  

d i f f i cu l t  to  get  conc lus ive ev idence as  to  whose  emai l  

address  Bus inessman was o r  who Bus inessman was because 

I  th ink  the Fundudz i  Repor t  sa id  probab ly  i t  was  Mr.  Sa l im 

Essa.   Is  that  someth ing  that  has  been done  somewhere? 
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r ,  what  we wi l l  do in  the 

cause  o f  our  –  a t  some s tage  in  presen t ing  ev idence  is  we 

wi l l  p roduce  a  co l lected  bund le  o f  a l l  o f  the  Bus inessman 

emai ls  tha t  we have.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Our  thes is  ce r ta in ly  i s  tha t  i t  was 

Sa l im  Essa.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes ,  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  a l l  -  everyth ing  po in ts  to  the 

fac t  tha t  i t  was Sal im Essa .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes ,  no  tha t  i s  a l r ight  i f  -  because  I  th ink 

f rom what  I  read  in  the  Fundudz i  Report  they  just  made that  

s ta tement  that  i t  was  p robab ly  h im bu t  I  do not  remember 

see ing  the factua l  bas is  fo r  tha t  conc lus ion .   I  wou ld  l i ke  a  

fac tua l  bas is .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  what  we  can do  is  

p roduce  the  fu l l  bund le  the  bus inessman le t te rs  and show 

that  they  a re  cons is ten t  w i th  bus inessman be ing  Sa l im  Essa 

and i t  i s  d i f f icu l t  to  see them be ing cons is tent  w i th 

bus inessman be ing  anyone e lse .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay ,  no tha t  w i l l  be he lp fu l .  Thank  you .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry  Mr .  Ho lden we were ta lk ing 

abou t  the  dates .   Yes te rday  we had d iscussed b r ie f ly  ce r ta in 

t rave l  a r rangements  that  were  made in  la te  February  2015 

were  Sharma,  Sa l im Essa ,  Tony Gupta ,  Aash ika S ingh and 
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Ano j  S ingh were a l l  booked in  the Oberoy  in  the las t  week o f  

February 2015 .   And you had  a lso  descr ibe  the b reakdown of  

the re la t ionsh ip  between Wor lds Window and the Gupta 

Ente rp r ise  a round th is  per iod and how on the o ther  s ide o f  

th is  per iod we see the Wor lds Window en t i t ies  be ing 

supplanted  and  rep laced  in  the cont racts  w i th  CSR and  CNR 

by Tequesta  and Reg iments,  I  jus t  wan ted  to  recap that .    

What  we a re  go ing  to  do  now is ,  i s  to  go back in  t ime 

to  a  per iod where Wor lds Window and the Gupta Ente rp r ise 

were  work ing  happi ly  toge ther  and  look  in  some deta i l  a t  10 

what  you have descr ibed  p rev ious ly  as  the Hawa la Ledgers 

because tha t  is  where we ge t  much of  our  in fo rmat ion  about  

movements o f  funds between these two g roups and a lso 

payment  o f  k ickbacks to  JJT and  CGT.    

So can  I  ask  you to  go  to  page  213 ,  Bund le  6A where  

you  s ta r t  descr ib ing the Hawa la Ledgers .   And maybe i f  you 

cou ld  beg in  a t  167 ,  paragraph  167  on page  230 .  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Cha i r  a t  paragraph  167  I  

ind ica te…[ in te rvened]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  hang on  you sa id  page  213? 20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Two th ree  zero ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Two th ree zero? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Two th ree  zero .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  have  got  i t .   I t  is  paragraph 167 , 

i s  that  r igh t?  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  is  co r rect  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR HOLDEN:    What  I  ind icate  there is  that  on the 19 t h  o f  

August  2013,  but  Cha i r  I  must  ind ica te  tha t  that  ac tua l ly  the 

date  is  incor rec t  the re  i t  i s  the 19 t h  o f  August  2015  no t  2013 

that  is  a  typo .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No I  th ink i t  is  2013 ,  i t  i s  2013 

we l l  maybe qu ick ly  we  can go to  the document  thereaf te r .  

MR HOLDEN:    I  was read ing in  the  bund le  th is  morn ing and 

I  th ink…[ in tervene]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay  we cor rec t  the da te  la te r?   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The da te  does not  need to  be 

cor rected Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay .  

MR HOLDEN:    The po in t  i s  I  have m isd i rec ted myse l f  

read ing  the bund le  th is  morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay ,  a l r ight .    

MR HOLDEN:    So on the 19 th  o f  August  2013 Ronica 

Ragavan sent  an emai l  to  Ashu Chawla  wi th  the  sub ject  l ine 

SA1(2-XLSX) and wro te :  20 

“ Is  th is  what  you a re  look ing fo r? ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  Cha i r  maybe i f  we  can go  to  

that  ema i l  and  the document  undernea th  i t  wh ich  a re  a t  

Bund le  6A page  625.1 ,  625 .1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes .  
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MR HOLDEN:    I s  i t  bund le  A  o r  bundle  B? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bund le  A .  You m iss ing the po in t  

6A,  625 .1 .  

MR HOLDEN:    I  appear  to  be.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We l l  I  cannot  ask  you  to  ident i f y  

an emai l  that  you cannot  see.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  got  i t  th is  t ime.   So o f ten  he has got  i t  

and we do not  have  i t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  ask you then to  do i t  th is 

way.  Is  626  the spreadsheets  tha t  you ca l l  the  Hawa la 10 

Ledgers and  that  was a t tached  to  the  ema i l  to  which you 

re fe r r ing  in  your  bund le  in  your  repor t ,  ah  Mr  Sel lo ’s  got  

page  65…[ in te rvene]  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t  Chai r .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     Maybe i f  you  can  jus t  conf i rm 

that  65.1  is  the ema i l  to  wh ich you  a re  re fe r r ing? 

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t  Chai r .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then the  spreadsheet  that  

s ta r ts  a t  page 626 tha t  was a t tached to  that  ema i l  is  qu i te  a  

con fus ing document ,  can you  take the Cha i r  th rough tha t  20 

document  exp la in  what  i t  i s  and how i t  opera tes? 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly  Chai r  i t  m igh t  be  eas ie r  w i th  

re fe rence  to  the  screen .   I s  your  sc reen on Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  not  on .   I  do  no t  know who needs to 

do what  to  put  i t  on.   Our  techn ica l  team when we need them 
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the  most  they  a re  no t  here.   One o f  the  peop le  who normal ly 

he lps  is  s ick  h is  not  here Reverend  Stemela and  somebody 

e lse tha t  i s  usua l ly  he lp fu l  i s  a lso o r  does  no t  seem to  be 

there .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r  we  wi l l  be  go ing to  these 

spreadsheets in  some de ta i l  so  might  I  –  I  must  apo log ise 

but  can we ask fo r  ano ther  f i ve  m inu tes ’  ad journment 

because i t  i s  not  jus t  the  one t ime we wi l l  be us ing  the 

moni to r  i t  w i l l  be much  more  Cha i r .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay ,  a l r ight  we wi l l  ad journ.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you Cha i r .    

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Chai r.   So this set  of  

ledgers that  starts  on page 628 Annexure AA oh sorry 627 

MR HOLDEN:   626.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   626 I  am not  going to go any lower 

than that .   We cal l  the Hawala ledgers or  you cal l  the Hawala 20 

ledgers can you explain to the Chai r  how this ledger system 

operates? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   So what we have is 

effect ive ly a recordal  of  t ransact ions of  money f lows both in 

cash and as electronic t ransfers between companies fal l ing 
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under the Worlds Window Group and companies fal l ing under 

the Gupta Enterpr ise.  This is al l  s tored on a shared ledger 

which has a running tota l  balance which indicates at  any one 

t ime who owes what amounts who which individual  and 

probably the best  way to descr ibe the sheet  – I  should 

indicate here Chai r  that  there are two sheets of  mater ia l  

interest .    

 The f i rst  I  have indicated here which reads Account 1 

and then in brackets [2]  and for your records Chai r  that  

begins at  628 of  Bundle A and runs to… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you say i t  begins at  628? 

MR HOLDEN:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR HOLDEN:   And that  includes t ransact ions beginning on 

the 7 January 2010 and the f inal  t ransact ion is ind icated as 

the 29 August  2012 on that  part icular sheet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR HOLDEN:   And then there is an addi t ional  sheet  which is 

just  referred to as Count – Account 2 which cont inues the 

t ransact ion recordals and that  runs f rom pages 626 to 627 in  20 

Bundle A.   And the f i rst  t ransact ion there is the 26 

September 2012 and then i t  concludes wi th the f inal  

t ransact ion of  the 22 February 2013.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   No I  th ink you were too fast  for me.  

MR HOLDEN:   Okay.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   Fi rst  we were at  page 626 

and then you said let  us go to 628 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chai r  I  th ink – I  th ink the confusion 

is that  the document is not  st ructured chronological ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So to start  chronological ly one 

needs to go to 628.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Where there is one spread sheet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then there is a second spread 

sheet  that  is later in t ime but  – which is at  page 626.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay so let  us start  at  628 just  repeat  

what you said because you lef t  me behind.  

MR HOLDEN:   Okay certainly Chai r.   Apologies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR HOLDEN:   So what we have at  628 is the Hawala ledger.   

You may not ice at  the very top of  the Hawala ledger i t  has in 

purple Worlds Window which indicates that  Worlds Window is 

the owner of  th is ledger.   20 

 And the f i rst  t ransact ion we can see there is on the 7 

January 2010 and the f inal  t ransact ion which I  th ink appears 

on page 630 is the 29 August  2012.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have seen that  ja.  

MR HOLDEN:   And then chronological ly the – the accounts 
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cont inue by going back to 626. 

CHAIRPERSON:   626.   Okay.  

MR HOLDEN:   And we can see there the account  

t ransact ions resume.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR HOLDEN:   With the f i rst  date of  entry being the 26 

September 2012 and then the f inal  t ransact ion which is also 

recorded on 626 is given as the 22 February 2013.    

 So reading these two spread sheets together or these 

two sheets together we were able to t rack the Hawala 10 

arrangement between the Gupta Enterpr ise and the Worlds 

Window network between January 2010 and February 2013.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And can you descr ibe to the Chai r  

what the columns refer to and how the ledger works? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chair  I  am going to choose an 

example which might  be easy to work through which I  have 

indicated on the screen.   I  wi l l  h ighl ight  just  so that  i t  is a 

l i t t le bi t  more legible.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And for  record purposes can I  – 

can you just  te l l  me where you are in which – the 22 June 20 

2011? 

MR HOLDEN:   23 June 2011 and that  is at  row 76 and i f  I  

was to check the bundle i t  is the f inal  ent ry on  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Page 628? 

MR HOLDEN:   628.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  the 23 June 2011? 

MR HOLDEN:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR HOLDEN:   So to do – descr ibe the operat ion of  the 

Hawala ledger obviously on the lef t  hand side we have the 

date of  a t ransact ion which here is the 23 June 2011. And 

then we have two part ies to the t ransact ion.    

In the f i rst  column i t  is JJ for JJ Trading.   In the thi rd  

column i t  ind icated Global  Corporat ion LLC which as we 

descr ibed in relat ion to the Est ina and the Liebherr  10 

discussions is a  Dubai  based company cont rol led by the 

Gupta Enterpr ise.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  stop you there Mr Holden.   Is  

the party in the second column a lways a Worlds Window 

party? 

MR HOLDEN:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then the party in the thi rd 

column is always a Gupta Enterpr ise party? 

MR HOLDEN:   That  is correct  Chai r.   Unfortunately what that  

means is that  there are t ransfers to and f rom the Gupta 20 

Enterpr ise and the Worlds Window Group so to ascer tain the 

di rect ion of  t ravel  of  funds we wi l l  get  to that  shor t ly you 

have to sort  of  read the Hawala ledger amounts accord ing to 

integer but  in  the – in  column D which is  the fourth column i t  

provides a method of  payment and in th is case i t  says bank 
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by which we understand to mean a bank t ransfer.  But  there 

are other cases where i t  refers cash in hand or cash to  

South Af r ica or some other mode of  payment.    

Then i t  g ives the locat ion of  the t ransfer which in th is 

case is Dubai .  And then the fol lowing columns which run 

f rom F to I  prov ide the t ransact ion in a part icular 

denominat ion where i t  is a rand amount i t  is column F and 

then there is an exchange rate calculat ion tool  there and 

then i f  i t  is in  the amount of  Indian Rupees that  appears in  

column H over here that  also is an exchange rate between 10 

the dol lar and the Indian Rupee at  that  part icular t ransact ion 

date.    

And then f ina l ly i t  – there is an amount  here which is  

the US Dol lar equivalent  of  any of  the t ransact ions i f  they 

take place in Rand or Indian Rupees but  for our example 

here the t ransact ions took place in Dol lars so i t  is just  

ref lected in – in  column J as $4 mi l l ion.   And this is  where i t  

gets s l ight ly un – sl ight ly unintui t ive.    

The Hawala ledger is const ructed as i f  f rom the 

perspect ive of  the Worlds Window Group.  So whenever a 20 

payment is made f rom a Gupta Enterpr ise company to the 

Worlds Window Group i t  is ref lected as a posi t ive integer 

and when an amount is made the other way i t  is made – 

referenced as a negat ive integer which then has an impact  

on the running total  ba lance here at  column K.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Just  hold on.   I  may be confused 

but  I  th ink I  need to correct  you there.   So i f  you – that  when 

a posi t ive payment – when a posi t ive number is ref lected 

that  is a payment f rom Worlds Window to the Gupta 

Enterpr ise and so the running balance is the amount 

standing to the credi t  of  the Worlds Window Group as a 

whole.   Is that  correct? 

MR HOLDEN:   That  is correct  Chai r.   I  – the spread sheet  is  

s l ight ly unintui t ive and I  tend to get  – I  have to work through 

i t  every sing le t ime I  look at  i t  but  yes the evidence leader is 10 

correct  here.    

So in th is case i f  we read this part icular column – oh 

sorry th is row what we understand i t  to mean is that  on the 

23 June JJ Trading t ransferred to  Global  Corporat ion via a 

bank in  Dubai  $4 mi l l ion and that  increased the balance in  

the Hawala ledger to $4 317 281.00 which we understand to 

mean that  accord ing – at  th is part icular po int  in t ime as the – 

as my evidence leader indicted the Worlds Window Group 

was in credi t  to that  amount as in  i f  they were to set t le up 

this balance at  th is point  in t ime and to t ry [00:10:01]  Euro 20 

balance the Gupta Enterpr ise would make – need to make a 

payment of  $4.3 mi l l ion to set t le i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Now you have done a fai r ly 

extensive exercise now that  we have access to bank 

statements and bank statements in the Gupta Leaks to  
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corroborate or to  conf i rm the t ransact ions ref lected in the 

Hawala ledger.   Can I  take you to  Annexure RR which is at  

Bundle 6B at  page 989 – 6B – 989.   And can you tel l  the 

Chair  what Annexure RR is? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   Annexure RR is  an exercise 

where I  extracted payments of  interest  that  were ref lected in 

the HSBC transact ion records in re lat ion to both Century 

General  Trading and JJ Trading.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And i f  we look at  page 989 what – 

what is that  tab le? 10 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   Th is is a table that  indicates 

al l  of  the payments that  are made f rom JJ Trading FZE to 

Gupta Enterpr ise companies.   The vast  major i ty  are made to 

Global  Corporat ion LLC but  as you see on the top l ine we 

have an ent ry for SCS Technologies Limited which is a Gupta 

Enterpr ise company based in Ind ia and below that  is an 

amount that  was paid to Sahara Computer and Elect ronics.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And this table is extracted f rom the 

HSBC records or f rom the records that  have been furn ished 

to us by HSBC? 20 

MR HOLDEN:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can we do an exercise of  matching 

these authent icated JJ Trading t ransact ions wi th  entr ies on 

the Hawala ledger?  And for th is Chai r  I  th ink what might  be 

easiest  –  I  mean in due course again we wi l l  g ive you this 
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table wi th the references and l ine references but  for  present  

purposes Chair  i t  may make sense to keep that  page of  your  

f i le open page 989.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then Mr Holden wi l l  go to  the 

spread sheet  and we can visual ly see the matching 

t ransact ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Mr Holden can you take us to the 

entr ies on the Hawala ledger that  match the ent r ies that  we 10 

see on the HSBC records ext racted at  Annexure RR? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly  Chai r.   So the f i rst  ent ry under 

Annexure R is a t ransact ion for . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is RR ha or is i t  R?  You said R? 

MR HOLDEN:   Annexure RR – double R.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   I  just  want to make sure the 

record does not  mislead.  

MR HOLDEN:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   RR we – ja okay.  

MR HOLDEN:   And we have an amount that  is ref lected on 20 

the 2 January – i t  is actual ly sorry indicated on the – on 

Annexure RR as the 3 January 2012 and we can see an ent ry 

against  Sahara Computer  and Electronics that  is the second 

entry on Annexure RR page 1.   And the t ransact ion date is 

given as the 3 January 2012 and the t ransact ion amount is 
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$2 146 684.46 and that  then appears on the Hawala ledger 

at  row 138 of  the sheet  Account 1[2]  and i f  we scrol l  to the 

r ight  here so we have the 2 January JJ and Sahara 

Computers were the two ent i t ies via a bank in Dubai  and the 

amount is then g iven as 2 146 700.00 US Dol lars which is 

s l ight ly more than the t ransact ion amount indicat ing here.   I  

th ink the di fference is  most  l ike ly a t ransact ion fee that  has 

been appl ied by the bank.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Next  ent ry.  

MR HOLDEN:   On the 9 January 2012 we have an ent ry in  10 

the – in Annexure RR for –  let  me just  mark the decimal  

points quickly so I  do not  get  th is wrong – for  a – for a 

$100 000.00 is that  correct? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja that  is 100 000.00.  

MR HOLDEN:   Yes $100 000.00 and then i f  we go to the 9 

January i t  probably appears the 8 January we see at  row 145 

of  the Hawala ledger we see an ent ry for the 8 January again 

involving JJ and Global  Corporat ion.   The mode of  payment 

is bank.   The count ry is Dubai  and the amount here is 

$100 000.00.    20 

So we have effect ively the same t ransact ion wi th a 

sl ight  di fference of  date one ind icated the date of  – probably 

the date of  payment and the second is the value date – the 

amount that  – the date i t  actual ly  arr ives in the benef ic iary 

account.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And i f  you go up one ent ry you wi l l  

get  another match? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   One entry below the entry we just  

descr ibed in the Annexure RR we have a t ransact ion val idate 

of  the 9 January 2012 an amount  of  $650 000.00 f rom JJ 

Trading to Global  Corporat ion LLC and that  then appears at  

row 144 of  the Hawala ledger sheet  account 1[2]  and again 

we have 8 January as the date the two part ies are JJ Trading 

and Global  Corporat ion.    A t ransfer in a bank in Dubai  and 

the amount is indicated to the far r ight  as $650 000.00.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Mr Holden we have done a lot  of  

these exercises over  the last  few days can I  just  ask you are 

there any of  these RR ent r ies between JJ and Global  that  do 

not  appear in the Hawala ledger? 

MR HOLDEN:   I  w i l l  have to double check because there was 

a t racing exercise that  I  d id at  Annexure SS.  There may be 

certain payments here that  do not  ref lect  in the Annexure 

SS.  I  need to double check that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Maybe let  us go to Annexure SS 

and you can explain to the Chai r  what Annexure SS is?  I t  is 20 

at  page 996 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And i f  you take the Chai r  through 

Annexure SS.  

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   So Annexure SS is a 



08 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 320 
 

Page 156 of 187 
 

corroborat ion exercise that  I  undertook using some of  the 

records that  were provided to me by the commission and 

what I  at tempted to do in  Annexure SS was conf i rm as many 

of  the t ransact ions and the var ious internal  Gupta Enterpr ise 

account ing records against  bank records.    

So at  SS page 1 that  is my at tempt to ver i fy  

t ransact ions that  appeared or ig inal ly as Annexure O to my 

Est ina – apologies i t  is Annexure O to the Transnet  bundle 

which is wi thin  Bundle 6 and then I  indicate where I  found a 

conf i rmatory bank statement.   Annexure SS – page 2 of  10 

Annexure SS is  the same exercise that  I  performed in  

re lat ion to what I  cal led the UAE ledgers that  we deal t  wi th 

extensively in relat ion to Est ina.   And Annexure – page 4 of  

SS – of  Annexure SS which appears at  999 of  bundle 6A is 

then the Hawala ledger where I  have extracted al l  the 

payments in the Hawala ledger where I  could f ind a 

conf i rmatory banking record of  some descr ipt ion.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And on Annexure SS 4 how many 

Hawala ledger ent r ies were you unable to conf i rm? 

MR HOLDEN:   Chai r  in the Hawala ledger there are a tota l  of 20 

262 t ransact ions that  are indicated.   Of  those 195 

t ransact ions were bank t ransact ions rather  than cash 

t ransact ions.    

The tota l  bank – the total  number of  t ransfers that  

occurred in Ind ia were 31 and the reason I  indicate that  is  
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because we do not  have documentat ion that  wi l l  a l low us to 

ver i fy those source of  payments.    

So for those t ransfers where we had a reasonable 

chance of  success in terms of  t racing payments the total  

bank t ransfers in the Hawala ledger made ei ther in Dubai  or 

South Af r ica was 164.    

There are 67 cash t ransact ions that  we cannot t race.   

So of  the 164 potent ia l ly  t raceable bank t ransfers we can 

f ind 86 corroboratory or conf i rmatory banking records.   

Part ia l ly that  is because I  bel ieve that  JJT and CJT at  the 10 

t ime were operat ing accounts outs ide of  the HSB network 

where we have bank statements.    

Where we have more rel iable indicat ion of  the 

accuracy of  the Hawala ledger is in  relat ion to t ransfers that  

happened within South Af r ican where the banking records 

are far more complete.   There I  ident i f ied 62 d i fferent  

t ransact ions.    

Of  those 62 t ransact ions I  made clar i f icatory notes in  

re lat ion to 8 where I  indicated perhaps the date might  be 

sl ight ly wrong or the amount is s l ight ly mismatched but  only 20 

one t ransact ion for which I  could f ind no records.   So of  

these 62 South Af r ican t ransfers we have the most  complete 

bank records who – I  was able to ident i fy a conf i rmed 61 out  

of  62 t ransact ions.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You say that  you bel ieve that  JJT 
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had a bank statement – was operat ing bank accounts other 

than the HSBC account.   Can I  take you to the HSBC records 

for JJT.  I  just  want to get  the correct  reference.   I t  wi l l  be 

Bundle 6B 995.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bundle 6B? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   6B.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay 99? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   995 bear wi th me for one moment 

Chai r.   I t  is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   995.19.   And Chai r  the records that  

HSBC were able to provide us included any records wi th  a 

counter party to which JJT – involving a t ransact ion to which 

JJT was a counter party.   So i t  was not  just  records where 

JJT had an HSBC – records of  the HSBC bank accounts of  

JJT i t  a lso included records where other part ies wi th HSBC 

bank accounts t ransacted wi th JJT at  non-HSBC banks but  of  

course where – what HSBC could not  g ive us was records of  

where a non-HSBC party t ransacted wi th JJT at  an account  

other than the HSBC account.   But  for present  purposes Mr 20 

Holden can you ident i fy on the JJT records f rom 995.19 any 

JJT accounts that  are not  HSBC accounts? 

MR HOLDEN:   This is s l ight ly di ff icul t  to read Chai r.   I  am 

afraid I  do not  know offhand but  I  can do a quick 

invest igat ion.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Let  me give you a – let  me g ive 

you an example for instance.   I f  you look at  places where – 

wel l  maybe we should not  do this  on the f ly but  actual ly 

come back wi th a l ist  of  the JJT – wi th the known JJT 

accounts that  are evidenced in th is set  of  t ransact ion 

records f rom HSBC where JJT holds banks other  than at 

HSBC.  We have a – we have a co l lect ion of  bank accounts 

of  that  nature.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR HOLDEN:   I  have actual ly now ident i f ied a couple of  10 

them.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Maybe i f  you can do so now can 

you alert  us to one or two? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly Chai r.   I f  we refer to the – the 

spread sheet  in relat ion to the t ransact ions I  have quickly 

just  done a f i l ter ing of  those t ransact ions on the screen here 

and I  have indicated the way I  f i l tered i t  is so that  I  am only 

select ing payments to JJ Trading and then i t  indicates the 

benef ic iary account numbers here and then the benef ic iary 

banks over here.    20 

And as we can see there is qui te a large number of 

banks outside of  the HSBC network  that  includes Habib bank 

in Zur ich,  the Bank of  Baroda which is in the UAE.  An 

Emirates bank account which is also located in the UAE that  

is Emirates MBD Bank.    
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We also have a Nat ional  Bank of  Ras Al -Khaimah 

also registered in  the UAE and I  th ink that  is the last  of  the 

banks.   So we see at  least  I  th ink i t  is by my calculat ions 

here i t  is four separate accounts that  do not  fa l l  w i th in the 

HSBC network.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And of  course there may wel l  be 

t ransact ions into those accounts – i f  t ransact ions into those 

accounts are not  made by HSBC part ies we wi l l  have no 

records of  them? 

MR HOLDEN:   That  is correct  Chai r.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can we now go back to the Hawala 

ledger and look at  k ickback payments that  are ref lected in 

the Hawala ledger?  And can we stop… 

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  is in Bundle? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Bundle 6A Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   From page 4 – 629 – 629.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh that  is –  that  is  where we had opened 

before we went to  Bundle 6B? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  is correct  Chai r.   And can I  20 

ask you f i rst  Mr Holden to go to a t ransact ion that  appears 

on page 629 in the wri t ten bundle and is dated 22 December 

2011?  Can you f ind that  t ransact ion? 

MR HOLDEN:   Yes I  can I  have ident i f ied here on screen 

Chai r.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And can you explain that  

t ransact ion to the Chair? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   What we have here is a  – the date 

is given as the 22 December 2011 and the two part ies are 

given as JJ Trading and Shanghai  Zhenhua Heavy Industr ies 

also referred to as ZPMC and as we discussed ear l ier JJ 

Trading and this  company had entered into a kickback 

arrangement in re lat ion to the provision of  cranes.   I t  

indicates a payment was made via a bank t ransfer v ia a bank 

account in Dubai  and the amount is  l isted as $969 086.00.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then can I  ask you to go over the 

page onto 630 and the t ransact ion on the 31 March 2012 and 

tel l  the Chai r  what  you see there? 

MR HOLDEN:   Certainly.   Chai r  at  row 178 of  the sheet  t i t led 

Account 1[2]  we have a t ransact ion that  is dated the 31 

March 2012.  The two part ies are indicated as JJ for JJ 

Trading and Shanghai  Zhenhua Heavy Indust r ies.   The mode 

of  payment is given as bank.   The locat ion of  the bank 

t ransfer is Dubai  and the amount indicated here is 

$969 086.00.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then i f  you go down to page 633,  

and I  th ink this is  dupl icate of  the 22 December payment but  

can you just  check that? 

MR HOLDEN :    I  am af raid.   I  am sl ight ly lost .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So this is a payment also on 
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22 December 2011.   I t  is ref lected at  page 633.  

MR HOLDEN :    633? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Ja,  that  is correct .    

MR HOLDEN :    And the date?  I  am afraid I  have lost  you 

here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    22 December 2011.   

MR HOLDEN :    At  row 134? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  is correct .   The amount. . .   As 

I  read i t ,  that  is a dupl icate of  an ear l ier t ransact ion.   I t  is on 

a separate ledger.   But  I  may – I  mean,  I  am not  sure i f  you 10 

can comment on that? 

MR HOLDEN :    No.   I f  you. . .   I  wi l l  just  double check that  

quickly.   I  am af ra id I  do not  see that  dupl icat ion.   The 

confusion may ar ise Chair  because there are three 

worksheets in th is  part icular – say three spreadsheets to th is 

part icular workbook.    

 And the – one of  i t  is indicated as account  1 which is the 

thi rd one.   Over is  exact ly the same as account 1(2).   So i t  is 

not  actual ly dupl icat ion.    

 I  just  th ink i t  is in  the pr int ing.   I t  was effect ively pr in ted 20 

two copies of  the same ledge sheet.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Oh.   But  can I  ask you to go to  

another t ransact ion on page 626,  the latest  – to the last  of  

the ZPMC transact ions,  28 January 2013,  page 626.  

MR HOLDEN :    28 January,  is that  correct? 
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    28 January 2013.  

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly Chai r.   Here at  row 38 of  the sheet  

ent i t led account 2 in the workbook.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on.   Did you 626? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    626 Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON :    626.   Okay I  am there.   The date is 28 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    28 January 2013.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Ja,  I  can see i t .   Okay you may 

cont inue.  10 

MR HOLDEN :    We have an amount of  –  on the 

20t h of  January,  the two part ies again are JJ Trading and 

Shanghai  Zhenhua Heavy Indust r ies.   The motor payment 

was via bank in Dubai  and the payment amount  is ref lected 

as 1 245 974 Dol lars.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now these i tems when they 

appear on the Hawala Ledger,  appears negat ive numbers.   

Can you explain to the Chai r  why that  is the case? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly Chai r.   My understanding is that  

because the Hawala Ledger is a recordal  of  the running 20 

balance between the Gupta enterpr ise and the World 

Windows Group.   This was effect ively accounted as a 

payment that  was or ig inal ly tendered for the benef i t  of  the 

Gupta enterpr ise rather than the Worlds Window Groups.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And why would that  t ranslate into 
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a negat ive number in the ledger? 

MR HOLDEN :    Because that  would require. . .   I  a lways 

misdirect  mysel f  here.   The negat ive amount is an indicat ion 

of  a deduct ion f rom the running total  and the running total  is  

the amount that  is owed by the Worlds Window Group to the 

Gupta enterpr ise where . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    [ laughs]   [Speaker unclear. ]   The 

running total  is the amount standing to the credi t  of  the 

Worlds Window Group.  

MR HOLDEN :    Correct .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So i f  they get  paid an amount – i f  

they receive an amount that  is  due to the Gupta enterpr ise 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MR HOLDEN :    That  is . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . . then the amount standing to be 

a credi t  drops.  

MR HOLDEN :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Whi le we are on these ledgers,  

can we look at  two more payments,  st i l l  on the same page, 

626.   A payment made by CSR Locomot ive on 20 

29 December 2012.  

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly Chai r.   This appears at  row 23 of  

the sheet  account  2,  and again,  the date is indicated as the 

29t h of  December 2012 and the two part ies are indicated as 

Century,  which I  take to mean Cent ra l  General  Trading,  and 



08 DECEMBER 2020 – DAY 320 
 

Page 165 of 187 
 

the counter party  is  CSR Locomot ive.   Sl ight ly miss-spel t .   

The mode of  payment is banked or i t  does not  actual ly give 

the reject ion.   And then the amount is ind icated as a 

negat ive of  5 932 934 Dol lars.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And lower down the page, 

9 February 2013.  

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly Chai r.   At  row 45,  we have an ent ry 

again ref lected as the 9 of  February 2013 and the two 

part ies are Century,  which I  take to mean Central  General  

Trading and CSR Locomot ive.   The mode of  payment is bank.    10 

 And the f igure that  is given is a negat ive ledger of  

351 941 Dol lars to which I  take to mean that  th is is an 

amount that  would eventual ly being accruing to the benef i t  of  

the Gupta enterpr ise.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you Mr Holden.   Now you 

have done an exercise of  adding these two amounts together 

and reconci l ing them with the amounts projected as being 

due on the AmaBhungane spreadsheet.   Can you tel l  the 

Chair  about  that  exerc ise? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly Chai r.   My calculat ions indicate that  20 

those two payments together provided a total  of  6 287 757 

Dol lars.   Apology Chai r.   I  am actual ly reading f rom the 

wrong part  of  my notes here.   The actual  total  accord ing to 

that  Hawala Ledger is 6 284 876.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And then i f  you go to the 
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AmaBhungane spreadsheet where they project  what the 

kickback should be and that  is in Bundle 6B at  885.1 Chai r.  

MR HOLDEN :    Chai r,  a lso ind icat ing on the screen here.   

We have a t ransact ion which is ind icated under the 95 Loco 

spreadsheet.   That  is 95 Locomot ive Project .   The date is  

given as the 21s t  of  December 2012.   

 I t  is a payment f rom Transnet to CSR in relat ion to the 

95 deal .   A rand amount  that  is t ransferred is  

R 268 679 00,00.   A 20% kickback.   That  is an est imated 

Rand value of  R 53 735 800,00.    10 

 And then at  the prevai l ing exchange rate at  the t ime,  

that  would be for the payment of  6 287 757 Dol lars which is 

almost  exact ly the same as the total  amounts that  I  have 

added on the Hawala Ledger occurr ing roughly the same 

dates as wel l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can you just  ref resh the Chai r ’s 

memory as to the dates of  those payments that  we have just  

looked at  on the Hawala Ledger? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly Chai r.   So the payment f rom 

Transnet to  CSR, i t  takes place on the 20 

21s t  of  December 2012.   And then. . .   Okay let  me look here.   

The f i rst  payment is made on the 29 t h of  December 2012.   So 

i t  is eight  days af ter they make payment f rom Transnet and 

then the second payment  is  made on the 

9 t h  of  February 2013.   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We now looked at  the payments to 

the Gupta. . .   Sorry.   We have ident i f ied payments to the 

Worlds Window ent i t ies on the Dubai  Ledgers.   Sorry,  on the 

Hawala Ledgers.    

 Can we now look at  payments f rom the Wor lds Window 

Group to the Gupta enterpr ise on a di fferent  set  o f  ledges 

which you have assembled on Annexure O?   

 We have discussed Annexure O before.   That  starts at  

page 439.   And maybe,  let  us f i rst  go to Annexure O at  page 

439.    10 

 And you can just  ref resh the Chair ’s memory as to what  

Annexure O is.  

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly  Chai r.   Annexure O which is  an 

annexure we addressed in relat ion to the payments that  were 

made by Liebherr.   At  a certain date in December 2014,  

Sanjay Grover was di rected to report  the t ransact ions in the 

four offshore ent i t ies,  that  is Global  Corporat ion,  Fidel i ty,  

Accurate and Gateway in a sl ight ly di fferent  format.    

 According to the bank account each sheet  according to a 

part icular company and ind icated the t ransact ions appearing 20 

in di fferent  banks and bank accounts f i led by those 

companies.    

 I  took al l  of  those reports that  were made by Sanjay 

Grover over a per iod of  t ime and took al l  of  those ent r ies 

and put  them into a single Excel  spreadsheet so we can read 
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a l l  the t ransact ion simultaneously.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And in your  report ,  do you have 

extracted f rom Annexure O four  payments that  are made into 

Global  Bank of  Baroda Di rham account  f rom an ent ry cal led 

JJT Century.   Can I  ask you to go to page 256 to which and 

tel l  the Chai r  what  that  table is depict ing? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly Chai r.   What I  have indicated here 

is when I  assessed Annexure O, I  ident i f ied that  there were 

four payments into Gupta enterpr ise companies in here,  in  

part icular,  Global  Corporat ion ’s accounts.    10 

 I  ident i f ied four  separate payments which I  have 

indicated in the table here.   The f i rst  taking place on the 

13t h  of  May 2014.  Second on the 14t h of  May.   The thi rd also 

on the 14t h of  May and a fourth also on the 15t h of  May.    

 A l l  of  them are made to Global  Corporat ion.   Al though i t  

is worth not ing that  the f i rst  payment of  two mi l l ion Di rham 

was made to Global  Corporat ions Bank of  Baroda Di rham 

f ixed account.    

 And the remainder of  the payments – remaining three 

payments went to  Global  Corporat ions Mashreq Bank Dirham 20 

account.   The total  value of  those four payments,  I  indicated 

at  the bot tom of  that  table as 8 795 400 Di rham.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And then i f  we can go to page 

258?  You have a simi lar analyses in relat ion to payments 

f rom JJT and related companies into Gupta accounts.  
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MR HOLDEN :    Certainly Chai r.   This where m long l ist  of  

company payments come into re levance.   What we have 

here,  is  a vast  number of  payments that  are made f rom 

entr ies descr ibed as JJ and then another descr iptor  which I  

took to mean ei ther one of  these subsid iary companies as 

ident i f ied by name into var ious Gupta enterpr ise companies.    

 So my analyses noted that  there were 55 payments 

made into Global  Corporat ions Di rham denominated Bank of  

Baroda account which were descr ibed as JJT Mangalam, JJT 

BRI,  JJT Force Exum, JJT E l-sa-bat (?),  JJT Mahere(?) 10 

General  Trading,  JJT World Vision,  JJT Double X,  JJT 

Carl ton Coast  and JJT Cash Ex-di f .    

 The payments were al l  made between the 23r d of  Apr i l  

and the 12t h of  July 2014 and total led 73 457 494 Di rham.   

 As you wi l l  not ice Chai r,  certain of  those JJ entr ies refer  

to companies that  I  can ident i ty.    

 So one example is JJT Force Exum.  Another is JJT 

Carl ton Coast  which is a Dubai  registered company.    

 Some of  the other ent r ies I  cannot  ident i fy but  which I  

would probably – which I  assume would mean that  there are 20 

certain other JJT re lated companies that  we are not  aware of  

according to company f i l ings.    

 Moving on to 248.b at  paragraph B.   I  not iced that  18 

payments were made into Global  Corporat ion’s US Dol lar 

denominated account at  the Bank of  Baroda between the 
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22n d of  May 2014 and the 29t h of  October 2014.   

 These payments were descr ibed ei ther as JJT World 

Vision or JJT Golden Coast .   And the payments total led 

11 118 926 Dol lars.    

 Chai r,  you wi l l  note at  footnote 10 i t  fa l ls wi thin that  –  

fa l ls under those paragraphs.   I  do indicate why I  have come 

to bel ieve that  Golden Coast  is a company that  is l inked to  

the World Windows network.    

 For example,  on the Golden Coast ’s websi te that  there is  

a sister company to Risk Metal  FC which is a Worlds Window 10 

Group company.    

 At  paragraph C I  not ice that  two payments into Fidel i ty ’s  

US Dol lar denominated account at  the Bank of  Baroda worth 

2.48 mi l l ion Dol lars and descr ibed as JJT Golden Coast .    

 These two payments are made on the 19t h of  July and 

the 29t h of  October 2014.   

 I t  is worth not ing that  pr ior to these two payments,  

Fidel i ty t ransferred 1.8 mi l l ion to JJT Golden Coast  which 

was the precise value of  the f i rst  deposi t  on the 12t h  of  July.   

This shows that  money f lowed both ways between the Gupta 20 

enterpr ise and the Worlds Window JJT companies.    

 I  point  to Annexure O.  At  paragraph D, I  not iced that  

f ive payments were made into a Rel iable US Dol lar  

denominated accounts and Rel iable is another  Gupta 

enterpr ise company at  Mashreq Bank.   They were al l  made 
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on the 1s t  of  May 2014.   

 The payments were descr ibed ei ther as JJT Force Exum 

or JJT Double X.   A total  of  4 499 836,  44 Dol lars.    

 And under paragraph E,  I  ident i f ied 18 cash payments 

made by JJT between the 21s t  of  Apri l  2014,  on the 16t h of  

July 2014.   Total  value of  the cash t ransact ions was 77 223 

769 Dirham.   

 And then at  paragraph 249,  calculat ing of  the prevai l ing 

exchange rate at  the t ime between the Di rham and the 

Dol lar,  the total  Dol lars value for the above t ransfers and the 10 

cash deposi ts made into the Gupta Enterpr ise accounts by 

JJT and i ts var ious subsid iar ies was 62 832 549,  25 Dol lars.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And these,  of  course,  only the 

t ransact ions that  we can t ract  f rom the record that  we see 

and those records are by no means exhausted.  

MR HOLDEN :    That  is correct  Chai r.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We have. . .   There is one last  JJT 

payment that  we picked up through the HSBC records 

because i t  comes af ter  the closure of  the Dubai  – Gupta 

leaks records.   Can I  ask you to go to your Annexure RR at  20 

page 991,  Volume 6B, page 991? 

MR HOLDEN :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And . . . [ intervenes]   

MR HOLDEN :    999? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    991.  
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MR HOLDEN :    Apologies Chai r.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And can you descr ibe to the Chai r  

what you see there? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly Chai r.   This is an ext ract  again 

f rom the HSBC t ransact ion records where i t  says JJT.   And 

what we have indicated here is a  single US Dol lar  

denominated payment made on the 16t h of  May 2014 for an 

amount of  10.5 mi l l ion Dol lars f rom CSR Zhuzhou Electr ical  

Locomot ive company to JJT Trading FCE.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Is there any s igni f icance to the 10 

date and the amounts that  you can infer? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly.   There are two signi f icant  th ings to  

not ice here.   The f i rst  is  the date which is  only a few days 

pr ior to CSR and Regiment Asia and Tequesta enter ing into 

var ious Asian agreements and effect ively displacing JJT 

Trading.   The . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  just  stop you there?  Chai r,  

your  reference for that  would be the agreement Annexure B 

at  Bundle 6A, page 304 which is the CNR Tequesta 

Agreement of  20 May 2014.  And Annexure C, at  Bundle 6A, 20 

page 316 which is  the CNR Regiments Asia Agreement of  the 

same date,  20 May 2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi l l  you just  repeat  just  please the page 

numbers?  I  looked at  the wrong bundle in here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  is 304.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    304? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And 316 of  the two cover pages.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Yes,  okay I  have got  that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And Chai r  i f  you go,  the f i rst  l ine 

of  the fol lowing page,  af ter each cover page says this  

agency agreement  is dated 20 May 2014.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So those are concluded on 

20 May 2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And the other one is 316.   Ja.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  is the date that  you have 

spoken to the amounts.  

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly Chai r.   The amounts are unusual  in 

re lat ion to the payments that  were made by var ious 

manufacturers to  ei ther JJT/CJT or Regiments Asia or to  

Tequesta Group,  in that ,  is a round f igure and i t  is  an amount 

that  is not  repeated anywhere else on the bank statements.    

 I  take that  to understand,  in fact ,  what I  infer f rom that  20 

payment and the context  of  the contracts that  are then 

entered into thereaf ter,  is that  th is must  have been a 

payment that  is  made for a f inal  set t lement of  the 

re lat ionship between JJT and CSR or  as an inducement f rom 

CSR to JJT to rol l ing the ships.   I t  is c la ims against  the 
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company as a f ina l  payment.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We talked on and off  about  how 

the relat ionship between the Worlds Window Group and the 

Gupta enterpr ise soured in the course of  or had soured by,  in 

the f i rst  quarter of  2015.    

 Can I  ask you just  br ief ly in ampl i f icat ion of  what you 

have al ready said in that  regard,  to go to Bundle 6B, page 

869.67 and descr ibe to the Chair  what you see there f rom 

869.67.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  have got  i t .  10 

MR HOLDEN :    Thank you Chai r.   At  that  page,  we see an 

emai l  that  was sent  f rom Gri ff in Dranath who is  a Gupta 

enterpr ise employee and employed by Oakbay to Tony 

Gupta.    

 And the subject  is  Arch House Agreement and at taches a 

number of  Word documents.   And then the message reads:  

“Dear Tony for your  interest .   The bank has asked 

Jaf tha. . . ”  

 And I  should clar i fy Jaf tha here.   He is an accountant 

employed by the Gupta enterpr ise.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I f  I  might  correct  you there?  I  

th ink you are talk ing about Jaf tha,  an at torney.   A W Jaf tha 

and Associates.    

“ . . .a l though he has conf i rmed that  wants the loan to  

be paid to securi ty shal l  be released and no need 
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for any let ter f rom the borrower.  

He is conf i rming i t  in wri t ing.   I  am wait ing for the 

emai l .   Marthinus is also preparing the power of  

at torney.   Ronica is in  a rev iew meet ing.   Once she 

is f ree,  I  wi l l  d iscuss the Mccorb i t  story also.   

Regards Ravinja(?). ”  

MR HOLDEN :    That  is correct .   My apologies.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And then over  the page 869.68.   I t  

is Volume B6.  Is th is one of  the at tachments? 

MR HOLDEN :    That  is correct  Chai r.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And what is that  document? 

MR HOLDEN :    This is a draf t  of  a  cancel lat ion of  a  mining 

contract  ship agreement between Arch House Trading which 

was the Worlds Window ent i ty and i t  Idwala Coal  (Pty) Ltd 

which was the Gupta enterpr ise ent i ty.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  you go to down to 869.71,  

st i l l  in Bundle 6B.  

MR HOLDEN :    That  is a cancel lat ion of  a mining contract  to  

ship agreement  between Arch House Trading and Idwala 

Coal  (Pty) Ltd.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And down to page 869.74.  

MR HOLDEN :    This again is a draf t  cancel lat ion document 

which cancels the min ing contract  ship agreement between 

Arch House Trading (Pty) Ltd and Tegeta Explorat ion and 

Resources (Pty) L td.    
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And maybe i f  we can also address 

the document at  page 869.77 over  the page f rom that ,  st i l l  

Bundle 6B.  

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly Chai r.   What we have here is an 

emai l  f rom V Singala @Gmai l .com sent  on the 

4t h  of  May 2015 to Tony Gupta wi th  the subject  Book 2 and 

an at tachment which is styled as Book2.xl fx.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And over the page, is that  the 

spreadsheet that  was the at tachment? 

MR HOLDEN :    That  is correct  Chai r.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And can you br ief ly te l l  the Chair  

what that  spreadsheet is descr ib ing? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly Chai r.   As far as I  understand the 

sheet ,  i t  is a reconci l iat ion of  a contestat ion about who owes 

what to whom in relat ion to Arch House.   I t  is  a loss and 

prof i t  account.    

 And we see at  the second column, i t  says as per PGD(?) 

which is understand to mean Pr iyesh Goyal  and as per us 

which I  understand to mean the Gupta enterpr ise.    

 And i f  you work through the sheet ,  there are 20 

discrepancies in the amounts.   And I  bel ieve th is to be an 

at tempt to t ry and reconci le the amount outstanding re lat ion 

to Arch House so that  th is relat ionship can be completed.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Now Mr Holden,  we have come 

very c lose to the end but  I  th ink i t  may be worth stepping 
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back and taking stock of  the ful l  amount of  the kickbacks 

that  the var ious Transnet cranes. . .    

 Sorry,  var ious Transnet  cont racts provided for the Gupta 

enterpr ise,  whether di rect ly or through the Worlds Window 

Group.   

 Let  us look f i rst  at  the amounts that  went through the 

Worlds Window Group that  we know of .   We know f rom – we 

are talk ing Dol lars at  th is stage.    

 Maybe the start ing point  is the workings document which 

we have come to and f rom several  t imes but  just  to  refresh 10 

our memories on that  document.    

 And i t  is at . . .   Sorry.   I t  is at  page 420 in Bundle 6A.  

Four,  two,  zero.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  found i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i t  has a set  of  calculat ions 

which we have been through several  t imes.   For present  

purposes,  let  us just  look at  the number of  total  receivables 

which would be the total  amount due on the kickback 

contracts in respect  of  the 359 and the 100 and 95 Projects.    

 And we can maybe wri te that  down on – as the f i rst  entry  20 

on our table.   Can you tel l  the Chair  what that  amount  is? 

MR HOLDEN :    Certainly Chai r.  That  is R5 267 007 200,00.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So R5 267 007 200,00 [Five 

Bi l l ion Two Hundred and Sixty  Six Mi l l ion and Seven 

Thousand Two Hundred Rands]? 
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MR HOLDEN :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am a t  420,  i s  tha t  where  you are?  

Page?  Or  d id  I . . .?  

MR HOLDEN:    I t  i s  420.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    420,  okay.  

MR HOLDEN:    I t  i s  the  co lumn to  the  fa r  r igh t  under  to ta l  

and i t  i s  the  four th  en t ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  5  267 007 200,  i s  tha t  the  number?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  yes .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  how much  is  tha t?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  ind ica ted  in  m i l l i on  there  bu t  we 

have rendered i t  as  f i ve  b i l l i on ,  two hundred and s ix t y  

seven mi l l ion ,  seven thousand two  hundred rand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  tha t  i s  the  to ta l  in  respect  o f  what  

i s  in  tha t  co lumn,  the  hor izonta l  co lumn.  

MR HOLDEN:    Yes,  so  tha t  i s  the  to ta l  in  respect  o f  the  – 

the  to ta l  k ickbacks tha t  were  to  be  pa id  in  re la t ion  to  

359 195 pro jec ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   Ja .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now tha t ,  o f  course ,  was not  the  

sum to ta l  o f  the  Transnet  cont rac ts  in  wh ich  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  had an  in te res t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on,  Mr  Chaska lson,  you  say,  Mr  

Ho lden,  tha t  i s  the  to ta l  k ickbacks bu t  i s  there  someth ing  
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tha t  when I  see on th is  document  w i l l  te l l  me tha t  i s  the 

to ta l  o f  k ickbacks? 

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r,  the  f ina l  co lumn under  

to ta l  –  i f  you  go f rom the  top  l ine  where  i t  reads to ta l ,  i t  i s  

the  –  you have to ta l  w i th  a  b lank ce l l  and then you  have a  

ce l l  tha t  reads ZAR 221 522.32 and in  the  ce l l  underneath  

tha t  reads 5  267.007.2  and i f  you  read ac ross to  t he  le f t ,  

Cha i r,  tha t  i s  descr ibed as  to ta l  rece ivab les  fo r  B  f rom CSR 

for  the  who le  p ro jec t s ,  20% for  95  and 21% for  259 and 

100.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  rece ivab les  the  cor rec t  word  fo r  

k ickbacks?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  th ink  we need to  qua l i f y  tha t .   

There  cou ld  be  rece ivab les  fo r  th ings o the r  than k i ckbacks 

bu t  on  th is  spreadsheet ,  Cha i r,  what  i t  re fe rs  to  i s  the  to ta l  

amount  tha t  w i l l  u l t imate ly  be  due in  te rms o f  the  

ar rangements .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Yes,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And we know tha t  th is  i s  a  20 

spreadsheet  o f  k ickbacks.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  okay.  Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now,  Mr  Ho lden,  we have looked 

a t  a  who le  ser ies  o f  cont rac ts .   Th is  tab le  jus t  dea ls  w i th  

the  100 locos –  sor ry,  359 locos and 95 l ocos.   Can you 
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ident i f y  the  o ther  cont rac ts  tha t  i t  does not  cover?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  there  a re  four  o ther  cont rac t s  o f  

no te .   The f i rs t  was the  cont rac t  in  re la t ion  to  the  supp l ie r  

by  CNR of  232 d iese l  locomot ives  to  Transnet  and the  

amount  o f  the  rece ivab les  in  tha t  case were  R2.088 b i l l i on .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you jus t  repeat  tha t  f igure?  

MR HOLDEN:    I  w i l l  ac tua l l y  g i ve  the  fu l l  f igure  ra ther  

than a  round ing ,  i t  i s  R2 088 870 974.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    2  088 870…? 

MR HOLDEN:    974.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    974.   How do you der i ve  tha t  

f igure?   

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  a  ca l cu la t ion  o f  21% of  the  to ta l  

cont rac t  va lue  and tha t  a r rangement  i s  s t ipu la ted  in  the 

cont rac t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And jus t  to  ge t  the  re ference  

aga in?   I s  tha t  cont rac t  annexure  B? 

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Annexure  B  on the  232  

locomot ives  and  the  re levant  c lause is  a t  page  309 o f  20 

bund le  6A,  c lause 7 .  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And what  e lse  is  m iss ing  f rom 

tha t  cont rac t  –  ou r  tab le?  

MR HOLDEN:    There  was the  k ickbacks in  re la t ion  to  a  12  
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year  main tenance p lan  en te red in to  be tween CSR and  

Transnet  wh ich  is  governed by  the  cont rac t  a t  annexure  H.   

The to ta l  va lue  o f  the  k ickback is  ind ica ted  as  

R1 298 137 567.23.   I  w i l l  read i t  ou t  aga in .   

1  298 137 567.23 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  was annexure  H.   Cha i r,  the  

re ference fo r  tha t  payment  –  sor ry,  how do you de r ive  tha t  

f igure?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly.   That  i s  a  21% commiss ion  on  

the  cont rac t  va lue  be tween Transnet  and CSR.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And tha t  a r rangement  i s  

s t ipu la ted  in  annexure  H a t  c lause 6 .1 .1  on  page  398 o f  

bund le  6A.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then the  next  m iss ing  cont rac t?  

MR HOLDEN:    We have the  con t rac t  in  re la t ion  to  BEX,  

wh ich  was the  re loca t ion  cont rac t  fo r  re loca t ion  o f  cer ta in  

p roduct ion  fac i l i t i es .   The to ta l  amount  tha t  we are  aware  

o f  tha t  the  Commiss ion  had a le r ted  me to  tha t  tha t  was 

pa id  under  th is  cont rac t  was R67.2  m i l l ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    And,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  exc lus i ve  o f  VAT.   The  

ac tua l  amount  was jus t  in  excess o f  76  m i l l ion  bu t  i t  

inc luded VAT.   That  was a  payment  tha t  was made onshore  

and i t  w i l l  be  addressed when we br ing  ev idence  o f  the 

onshore  k ickbacks and money launder ing .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And tha t  payment  wou ld  f low  

f rom annexure  E  a t  page 346,  wh ich  is  the  bus iness 

deve lopment  agreement  o f  25  Apr i l  2015 between CNR and  

Bus iness Expans ion  S t ruc ture  Products  and Cha i r,  you w i l l  

reca l l  tha t  the  payment  te rms o f  tha t  cont rac t  gave BEX an 

in te res t  in  any amounts  tha t  Transnet  cou ld  be  pe rsuaded 

to  pay ove r  a  base l ine  pr i ce .  

 Mr  Ho lden,  you ment ioned four  add i t iona l  cont rac ts  

beyond those re f lec t ing  on  the  work ings document .   What  10 

is  the  four th?  

MR HOLDEN:    The four th  was  fo r  the  spare  par ts  fo r  

d iese l  locomot ives  and tha t  ind i ca ted  a  f la t  payment  wou ld  

be  made o f  18 .12  mi l l ion  do l la rs .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And tha t  cont rac t  wou ld  be  

annexure  C and  the  re levant  payment  a r rangement  i s  a t  

page 324,  c lause 7 .2 .    

Can I  suggest  tha t  there  is  a  f i f th  cont rac t  tha t  we 

have not  inc luded,  wh ich  is  the  ZPMC cranes  cont rac t  

because we have jus t  been look ing  a t  the  locomot ives  in  20 

th is  tab le  bu t  o f  cou rse  the  c ranes were  a lso  p rov id ing  

k ickbacks in to  the  Gupta  en terp r ise .  What  i s  the  –  we know 

the  te rms o f  tha t  a r rangement  bu t  we cannot  t rans la te  them 

in to  rands and cents  because we  do not  know what  the  

benchmark  o f  ZPMC was but  wha t  i s  the  to ta l  amount  o f  
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k ickbacks tha t  we  have been to  t race  the re?  

MR HOLDEN:    In  re la t ion  to  ZPMC us ing  the  var ious 

in te rna l  Gupta  account ing  ledgers  I  t racked a  to ta l  o f  4 .25  

m i l l ion  do l la rs  pa id  in  re la t ion  to  tha t  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    4 .25?  

MR HOLDEN:    M i l l i on  do l la rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Oh,  th is  i s  do l la rs .   The o ther  

amounts  you gave were  a l so  do l la rs?   I  wro te  t hem in  

rands.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    There  is  on ly  one o ther  do l la r  10 

amount ,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  the  18 .12 mi l l ion  on  the  

main tenance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The d iese l  ma in tenance 

cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  i f  you  add up your  rands – le t  

i s  add up our  rands and our  do l la rs  separa te ly.   What  i s  the  

to ta l  amount  o f  rands?  Can you g i ve  us  tha t  number?  

MR HOLDEN:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The to ta l  amount  o f  rand  20 

k ickbacks tha t  were  due to  be  pa id  was e igh t  b i l l i on ,  seven  

hundred and twenty  one mi l l ion ,  two hundred and  f i f teen  

thousand,  seven  hundred and fo r ty  one rand and s ix ty  

th ree  cents .   For  the  record  tha t  i s  8  721 215 741.63.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And the  two do l la r  amoun ts?  
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MR HOLDEN:    The two do l la r  amounts  are  fo r  18 .12  

mi l l ion  US do l la rs  and fo r  the  second amount  i t  is  4 .25  

mi l l ion  do l la rs ,  a l though I  w i l l  hes i ta te  to  add here ,  Cha i r,  

tha t  under  the  4 .25  b i l l i on  do l la rs  tha t  i s  on ly  the  number  

o f  t ransact ions tha t  we can t race .   I  do  no t  know fo r  cer ta in  

whethe r  tha t  was  the  to ta l  amount  o f  t ransact ions.   Add ing  

those two together  g i ves  us  a  do l la r  amount  o f  twenty  two 

mi l l ion ,  th ree  hundred and seventy  f i ve  thousand do l la rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    P lease jus t  repeat  tha t  number,  22  

m i l l ion…? 10 

MR HOLDEN:    22  750 000 do l la rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  we were  to  conver t  tha t  

f igure  in to  rands  –  le t  us  f ind  ou t  what  today ’s  ra te  i s .   

15 .01 ,  ca l l  i t  15 .   I  ge t  R335 500 000.  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  repeat  i t ,  p lease?  

MR HOLDEN:    335 500 000.   Of  course  the  preva i l ing  rand  

exchange ra te  when those k ickbacks were  pa id  wou ld  have  

been d i f fe ren t .    20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  i t  wou ld  be  fa i r  to  say tha t  

the  to ta l  amount  o f  k ickbacks prov ided fo r  in  the  var ious 

Transnet  cont rac ts  in  re la t ion  to  t ra ins  and locomot ives ,  

tha t  we know about ,  wou ld  a lmost  cer ta in ly  have exceeded 
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R9 b i l l i on?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.   There  is  a  very  

qu ick  ca lcu la t ion  I  have done a t  the  R15 exchange ra te ,  

the  f igure  I  ge t  i s  n ine  b i l l i on ,  f i f t y  s ix  m i l l ion ,  e igh t  

hundred and fo r ty  thousand,  seven hundred and fo r ty  one  

rand and s i x ty  th ree .   For  the  record  tha t  i s  

9  056 840 741.63 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And jus t  to  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  i t  9  058 404 01…? 

MR HOLDEN:    I  th ink  we are  m iss ing  a  d ig i t  there .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

MR HOLDEN:    I t  i s  9  056.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR HOLDEN:    840 …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    401.  

MR HOLDEN:    741.63.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  7  jus t  be fore  the  las t  4?  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Okay,  thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And ju t  to  emphas ise ,  we a re  20 

ta lk ing  no t  about  the  va lue  o f  the  cont rac ts ,  we are  ta lk ing  

about  the  va lue  o f  the  k ickbacks tha t  were  pa id  in  respect  

o f  those cont rac ts .  

MR HOLDEN:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  a  lo t  o f  money.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  conc ludes Mr 

Ho lden ’s  ev idence fo r  now.   We may concede tha t  we w i l l  

be  ab le  to  ca l l  h im back to  dea l  w i th  domest ic  money  

launder ing  as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  we run  in to  prob lems wi th  some o f  the  

f igures  we w i l l  ca l l  you  back.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    He has got  a  lo t  o f  homework ,  

he  has go t  to  conc lude h is  ev idence,  conc lude h is  tab les  

tha t  he  has to  p repare  fo r  us .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .   Okay.   No,  thank you ve ry  much,  10 

Mr  Ho lden,  thank  you very  much.   So tha t  w i l l  be  tha t  fo r  

today,  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay and tomor row even ing  do you have  

someone?  You do not  have anyth ing .   Okay,  then Thursday 

dur ing  the  day you have w i tnesses .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  do ,  Cha i r,  Thursday w i tnesses 

w i l l  be  coming f rom McKinsey.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes and we w i l l  s ta r t  normal  t ime,  ten  

o ’c lock?  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  I  unders tand tha t  there  i s  a  

Transnet  w i tness  who is  –  who w i l l  have to  very  br ie f l y  be  

led  be fo re  the  McK insey w i tnesses  come.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  expec t  the  McK insey w i tnesses 
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to  s ta r t  f rom 11.30 a f te r  the  tea  break.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  a re  you ta lk ing  about  Eskom? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Oh,  Eskom,  I  am sor ry,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Okay,  

we w i l l  ad jou rn  then fo r  today.   Once aga in ,  thank you,  Mr  

Ho lden.  

MR HOLDEN:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much.   We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 9  DECEMBER 2020  


